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September 7, 2004

The Office of International Corporate Finance
The Securities and Exchange Commission
Mail Stop 0302, Room 3010

450 Fifth Street, NW

Washington, D.C. 20549

US.A.
Re:  Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited - Information Furnished
Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) Under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (File No. 82-4021)
Dear Sirs:

Enclosed please find a copy of a document to be furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant to subparagraph (1)(ii1) of Rule 12g3-2(b)
(the “Rule”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). In
accordance with subparagraphs (4) and (5) of the Rule, the document furnished herewith is
being furnished with the understanding that it shall not be deemed “filed” with the Commission
or otherwise subject to the liabilities of section 18 of the Exchange Act, and that neither this
letter nor the furnishing of the document pursuant to the Rule shall constitute an admission for
any purpose that the Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited, a joint stock limited company
established under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, is subject to the Exchange Act.

If you have any question in connection with this matter, please contact the
undersigned at Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (telephone: 86-532-5713831; facsimile:
86-532-5713240).

Very truly yours,
R Is
SUN Xiaohang
(Enclosure) :
cc: Lu Yuan : ;
(Tsingtao Brewery) PH@GESS ' (
Jiang Liu § orre & 2004 :
(Sullivan & Cromwell LLP)
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A E R AL T WA R BRI R S0R - B R AT 5% (5% U bR BER

MR - REERZ FNRERTERRE BN KA EERFL A REGAME -
REBE - FMEMRREIEAEFHENTIT S -

21 EXHe
£® NS

(REBT) (REE

—ggmnF ZEREZE —2ZNEF ZEE=E

AA=+E +ZA=+-—8 ~AAE=+RE +ZA=t+—H
B W EH G 56,010,069 10,757,817 24,074,981 4,509,948
T 72 i B BT 18 B 40,308,554 47,519,934 21,595,688 23,972,519
B & 145,336,043 111,646,338 11,117,461 9,676,964
EE T R 10,563,120 4,107,052 4,516,361 2,256,937
Hil 5,640,536 6,698,686 2,951,830 4,752,068
&t 257,858,322 180,729,827 64,256,321 45,168,436
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22 HRREBH

23

£E 28
(REBEF) (REBHH)
—EBSME TREZE ~BEME TEEZH
~A=+8R +ZA=+—H ~A=+B +ZA=+—H
HMEREBER 124,142,451 18,423,59] 60,269,623 2,555,370
F B2 A 10,090,872 11,241,335 6,723,293 8,595,201
EHER 31,245,170 3,638,615 6,755,930 —
KEEM 7,982,408 3,908,260 267,877 —
R 25,273,314 17.576,942 17,000,000 3,512,492
Hitr 38,938,942 8,062,864 6,998,895 3,693,035
45t 237,673,157 62,851,607 98,015,618 18,356,098
BEHEE
(REBFEH)
—EEOF ZEREZE
ANA=+A +-A=+—8
BEEEBHAHALT (MRBAFA]) ZREFL () 27,000,000 —
AEBRERMIEARAT (THEMATD Z RIFE(H) 23,784,000 —
Hib 284,422 —
aE 51,068,422 —
(@) ALFAEXHELAFAZEHERMUGS —FR > LHEASRARER (H8K) R -FZTNENAE =

HAE T —F A0 - MEZAR - ARLTFRELW L FTE KR ERES5427,000,000% -

FLRAEH-FHARERTR CEBELHFPRENESAREREZEELR  EABREEMER
THRRFEEETPTAKRAELAR  BEEHEEERANFAFEFOR —FHRBEREH
27,000.000JC1E T 2 B Ay 85 -

(b) FAFHABEANAASEEGRMS—F ERERFTHFRA A B THFHE - VI
AR AR FFIRBEMAFERA LI ERMAEK - WIE G 423,784,0000T o A 4 B AR

ERLEHRMEERRDEHRGR « EARAFEMR

CHRBRGEFEEETZS e

T A TE R A 20 BT T 20 @ B S0 B S B 23,784,000 fF T R Bre E 6 -
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24 AEBAFEES

(a) EHAM
(REEF)
—g8mE
EE4E BTAE HRHUSRKAE BUNEE ANAZTE
GHETMHBARDEFE RS 665813304 ZTEZE  F-IE —  665.813.304
HA—R ZAZ+—8
EHETERAFES 269,817,965 ZEEZE ZE-EF — 269817965
SR E B +A-+-8 +AZ+H
BHMETERAAKE 269,817,965 ZEENE E-—F —  269,817.965
EEL N ZRA=t-H ZR=+H
1,205.449,234
(b) EHAL
(REE) (REE) (REHEE)
HHEH HDEMATE 5 s B FHERFE BRBRAEAFE
R ES 4,513,880 9,087,172 (7,440,422) 6,160,630

MZZFEZF+AZ+—H » AQFAHABLART —~H(BRUEEERSE  BRAEATH_TE=
ERG > ALABSZHREABLFAURSRESETENETHELFAES > FEELLBE
1,416,195,0007C (# & #71,503,448,00070) » I 7] % fB T 31 BF ) 3R S 4 A 20 &) 39 485 308,219, 1 78 iR HA ©

E-BOTERIREH

B EHFREE S S E%280,800,0007T (T4 £1297,999.0000T) - ERZFEZHEM B BT
ABABIWERZEE=ZELAZHLERERE4168T A HARM496TT) MEREBHRE LT
60,000,000/ FF i HR - E— M EHEELFEES -

EoHGUHRAEES
FEoHBEHFEBESE B G27,120,00000 & 45 A B #665,813,000T) » ERE—HHEER
TEZFEFNOAFARET c ABLARIXNARAREESHEEMNIER - TLUEREW4LGET INEH
AN E4.967T) H A8 BHR W A 2 F) 134,000,000% 57 5 AL o 3 5 5% 74F 50 TR o 0 ok BR R B A S TR R i
GHFEEER -  EoHATEHEAAESNERNRE 2% HABLTASEHREHEEANAX
TR F B U RATERTEINR -

WERRRMEED N - A-BLARDNRTEBRBHE -
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24

25

TEBQARES ()
FZHOTHRLAME

FEWBEF A S B EIE508,275,000T (T8 HANRH539,636,0007T) » CHZIEEZHE+
ARZZZWUEZAFHET  ABLAEARINHHBHESEENIER > T LUGRRES445T (OF
EHARMAT2IT) EHEEH AN T 114,219 178REFIEHAR - F R 7E MR &R B AR W
EREEE AT - BEHM MR AFABENEREL2% - HA-BA TS EHRFMHBH AL
B EATE R R L R AR T R -

BWEAHEMMEEIH - ABARPRITHEIBRKE -

RE—HG BoWGRE=ZHOUHRAFEMEFNERYE  SETHEHARETER (AER]) ®
AATHNHERLEE OB EKN400%TBEEL37.7% * 33.5%%30.6% ¢ T A-BL &7 A4 5 #
FHRLGIE, oAl d K45 LT E9.9% ~ 20.0%527.0% « Kl - F 5 =50 8B A A HE 5
HEE ABATABAEAL T 2HEHTHON TS HITHRABRERMNARRE - A-B
NRIAWMEFZERGERMEHRHZE BERMAIRZLEROTEZEE - Al BERTER
FRANALSTWARSMBE TR OAREMNBR RS LT EZE R ORI WS R -

R

(REE)
—REMEXNA=ZTA ZEEZFE+ZA=+—8
e 5 (%) L (%)
ok i AR
HEA
He BEHER 399,820,000 37.72% 399,820,000 37.72%
BREAFEER 53,330,000 5.03% 53,330,000 5.03%
453,150,000 42.75% 453,150,000 42.75%
ELTmBER
BRETHARY
Wl (AR 200,000,000 18.87 % 200,000,000 18.87%
A ETTRISNERR (HAR) 406,850,000 38.38% 406,850,000 38.38%
606,850,000 57.25% 606,850,000 57.25%
i 1,0660,000,000 100.00% 1.060,000,000 100.00%
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26 BELERQHE

a) £®

(REE) (REEEH)

BB 7 19 R 48 B BER

A i 1,771,139,906 — 1,771.139,906
R (AR 6,304,398 — 6,304,398
RZREEEEH 4,871,808 — 4,871,808
RHE T (i) — 23,819,242 23,819,242
BERFAFRSHAINFZ AR 11,743,649 1,258,584 13,002,233
HAt 4,817,221 2,039,642 6,856,863
aEt 1,798,876,982 27,117,468 1,825.994,450

(b) 27

(REBT) (RE\BH

B KERENH BRY

fi# A i (€ 1,771,139.906 — 1,771,139,906

W RS 56,043,498 — 56,043,498
EEEEEREEE 4,871,808 — 4,871,808
BRERFEH — 23,819,242 23,819,242
BT A BN R 2 KK 11,743,649 1,258,584 13,002,233
EA 4,817,221 2,039,642 6,856,863
Eh 1,848,616,082 27,117,468 1,875,733,550

() ZRENKEEATERENEEELA0RREFEEMRBREZHE  HHREHH

FES(0)) °
27 B&%LOE
(a) EM@

(REBE
—BBNF ZEBEDF
<A=+-—8 +ZR=+—H
BERBAES 218,185,385 218,185,385
BEARE 176,978,672 176,978,672
ks 395,164,057 395,164,057
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27 BHQR (&)

(b) 27
(REHED)
—“EE0ONF TERZE
RBE=+—-R +=ZB=+—8
BERBRAME 151,280,901 151,280,901
EELN RS 122,011,680 122,011,680
&t 273,292,581 273,292,581

WECPEARKME AR ALOAEBRRE RGN - AL FEFE DA CHR L
FEBRTD NI0RRIEERBLHE  TEERARANERAFRDEEAS0% LEF > 7]
FRER ECEABOESEFHBAMEATAREHER  UEHNRE - BRTHEREH
BES  BERBAHEREMELRE  AREARSREAN25% -

FOMEEZEFE B U FEEBEE (52T 10%8MEE A5 E - B A Ty EEEANm
ARRERESE  HBEEMAE  #REAHBATRRRAN - HX B SHNBAMAERS
AEAMEERERMEE -

FERBEALFARABEANREREERBLOMSREELARSE -

28 R4 EF B

f- A
(REB (REBEEH)
—EEMmE ZEEZEF i 3 Juig: 2 ZERZE
XAE=t+HB TZRHR=+-8 XA=+A +ZA=+—H
F /W) & 4 B R 259,760,239 108,828,477 359,653,103 163,428 623
o EYAE - KEA
HEERAERERY
2 IR Y
ReBF — 220,000,000 — 220,000,000
EYARSENEY
FAER M@ 259,760,239 328,828,477 359,653,103 383,428,623
o R EFRG
&) 148,250,561 253,871,661 149,013,610 245,280,600
WRBREERBAR - (55,530,809) — (24,528,060)
W BRBREBEEAHES — (47,409,090) — (24,528,060)
W RS AR AR R (212,000,000) (220,000,000) (212,000,000) (220,000,000)
B ok 4 B A 196,010,800 259,760,239 296,666,713 359,653,103
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29 FERBUAREE
(a) BEBD BT

MRARBREAAFZEIEEHAEELRMERE  MECEBUASREFEEZ EG%H
WARMERZ T L BhASEE A REREEEF 2 I -

(b) FHEEDBF R

=8
(GREGET (REE
—RENF ZEFE=F
NA=ZTBH® ~A=Z+ B

TEEBWA ~{8R <A
FEHLE 1,300,030,916 1,082,293,059
Hofth L R & 604,088,389 607,474,545
L B 1,176,726,236 922,265,465
EmHE 1,342,837,557 1,243,984,922
BOMeE 154,034,999 229,574,634
N3 4,577,718,097 4,085,592,625
25 b B 43 FB 7 AR B K 8 (240,023,177) (250,130,590)
aE 4,337,694,920 3.835,462,035
EX-F 3. 3°%:3
FE i@ 691,910,711 615,668,400
HCfth, () Bt (B 407,202,573 405,880,435
E 0 777,389,350 599,990,960
5 M B 793,418,528 749,224,005
O E 82,102,282 137,861,962
AEE 2,752,023,444 2,508,625,762
& b [ 41 B ) 48 ELAE 68 (240,023,177) (250,130,590)
e 2,512,000,267 2,258,495,172

BRAREZEZEEBUARIEEB AN IECFLSRLERLE WA EEAESHIIR -
BEZTZZUWEANAZTHLEARAR  AEALFLAMMNELEFHEREINNE

273.292,0007C £ 246,371.0007C » R M EA B R AL A EZHBEERANG30%K17.53% (ZF
FZFESNAZTHIEARMA - 350,842,0007C % 277,427,0007C © (69.15% K21 48%) -
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30 TRERBSREM

31

32

£=H o
(REHD (K @BHES (RGE) (RE#ED
—E2EOF TEEZF —B2EWNF ZEEZ
RA=Z+8L ~A=Z+81k XA=t+tHLE AA=Z+THIE
HREE ~{EA R {E A A<EAR NEA
HEW R EE36(d) 400,817,171 349,860,509 63,433,673 52,785,141
R AT A
ERB RMaE36(c) 42,901,462 34,850,949 12,647,635 9,144,945
HAd 21,386,450 17,588,241 5,682,093 3,889.312
At 465,105,083 402,299,699 81,763,401 65,819,398
He¥ssam
iR 2
(REHE) ) (REH)
—gemE —gBnfF
RNA=+AL ANA=ZTHI XB=t+84L
A{BA <A ~EA
H BB A
BB & 27,318,996 1,732,219 96,032,560 196,623,320
BEREHE 9,215,884 7,055,163 1,647,782 632.458
Hit 25,246,965 10,607,925 4,224,674 2,285,195
ANEt 61,781,845 19,395,307 101,905,016 199,540,973
HEERE
Mo E 27,475,653 3,050,581 97,528,869 197,520.028
BE 8 2,809,176 1,477,414 1,424,976 632,458
Hit 15,716,657 7.621,879 1,890,098 714,572
ANEE 46,001,486 12,149,874 100,843,943 198,867,058
o B F 15,780,359 7,245,433 1,061,073 673,915
MKER
25 R
(REED (REHF) (RBEF)
—BTOE —2ZNF ZEREZF
ARE=tBL® AAZTAIE NA=+AHL AA=Z+AL
~1BB NEA ~EA S{EA
B (34,528,190) (67,848,827) (18,927,219) (20,768.265)
o R Bg A — EAth 6,916,968 6,055,230 1,718,296 1,400,634
IE 518 %2 1% B 3,071,284 (3,276,186) 2,602,093 (1,478.440)
His (2,511,980) (1,932,126) (1,774,413) (2.836,903)
& (27,051,918) (67,001,909) (16,381,243) (23.682.974)
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33 REWH

34

35

50

£H 28

(RBE) OGRS (REEH kB
—2ZME TEE=F —SemF ZEE=4F
NB=t+B i@ SNBAZ+HIEE ANA=+AHL AA=Z+A4
~BA 18 A ~{E A 1A

Sy e R F 40 A
B (R R — — 24,809,516 (2,492,031)

A A7 B o 2

HAH (B8 BF (4,146,171) (3.318,885) 456,328 75,973
BRI E 97,978 983,652 97,978 983,652
BRI 10,133,610 11,737,678 7,986,297 8,376,914
TR EFR B A — — 10,777,660 —
Hi (1,598,421) 21,112 1,712,538 —
i 4,486,996 9,423,557 45,840,317 6,944,508

AR ERERTFARMBENREAL AR EEE LRS-

BRHWA

AEBPRABEEBEEERETHRLGEEYS > BAEBTBFERGR > EHRERT A
HREE-EREMGTMEEREER BLEERERARUERTOARMNSERS B AN
BMEHMIA -

REALAREI GO BHEECAEAAREEERTARERE L BAREE XS B

BEMARIH
-1 2 7]
(RBEH (FREEF (RBE) (RBEF)
—2gME ZERZE —BEMF ZELEF
~B=+B & ~A=Zt+HLE RXBE=Z+ B NAZTHIE
<{EA {8 A <18 A A EA
B IMRA
REEEREE RN R 2,749,462 1,491,424 31,574 187,106
Hit 2,719,134 2,188,030 112,059 413,677
BE 5,468,596 3,679,454 143,633 600,783
EEMNTH
B BHNERMRE 50,992,521 — 50,903,306 —
EEETEEFREK 9,370,205 5,948,642 7,018,769 869,314
FHEE T EEREERH 46,919,496 24,001,718 — —
HAt 1,330,135 5,465,504 150,000 2,671,214
i 108,612,357 35,415,864 58,072,075 3,540,528
ZEZMEFHBE




36 FrBH

=8 2T

(REE) (REHE) (K BEF)

—2ZNF —BeOF _EF=g

RB=1+8Bi AA=Z+8ik ~B=+84¢ ANAZ=ZT R

{8 B ~E A <8 A A

o B 4 2 BT 18 H (a) 74,483,833 54,437,013 30,678,556 19,511,684

FHFR BB () 1,452,777 478,130 — —

&t 75,936,610 54,915,143 30,678,556 19,511,684
(a) PELEMBH

(b)

(c)

FEHEEFBRIHBERSANEARREFEAFTRENARARSIAE - A TUEZFN S
BEEEHERER -

BRERFRBERE-NMAEFEA+ AR B2~ > aA0E ML AREEERYEHE
AR EERBSEAZHE AL FNEAB T BEER IS ZMWHER > HERTEA -
ARFAR—ANLEZAZTZAEEE ST HBANED > CREARBEREESTER -
ZKAF - MMABRAH A RERLIWRECET TERCEBAFBBE . dEEEN
EEEFAMEZREBCFER c AELHKAFAELMEREE - ML AEZEBHEE
URGES A ENMERNTEE -

FHEEFEMMPENBBE > REEENEEEA TSR AR MERL LB HBH « REE
HRHEMHBEMHNBREURAEMNEFEIEEZREHER -

HBAREEMARASHNAEEREMESEFERTLRE  KABBEBEG SR HE
HEBE -

AEERAMR PRI REENHEARMERBTSER EER R0 HEAFBH -
BERBREH

FEAMBHRDEBAAHGETEAENEBER IS CEEZFERNAZFE  17.5% 2B EE
e

BEBH
HegR (e A RAL TN (0 2E 3 (SR G AT (R BID A SR PR B A SH A5 WA BY 17 Y 18 BB R AR 8

TESEE R - MR AR R R A BT AT A I R R R MY R SR A
Hh > AEMERESEERANTeM3% > 2R F SR AN LB TR -
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36 FREHL A

37

38

52

(d) HEH

A R B B ECED - BB R AR T (BRI ER TR S BB BOSR AT A0 (RS (2001)845%) )
HE BT ERES (SRR REEYINS) 3,000 LAY B EEBESSH250T -

HA vy % NEEWH2R20THMAHER -

BH

WA MR > A% B AR O ol oy B B = 4F B B0 RO £5212,000,0007T (AR AR HF0.25T) « AL
RAEFERAERIERE_FLEEFRNAZTELSEANFPRAM (CERZZFERA=Z+H 8 -

DR E

BRREEZKE

IEFZRBEABREERARBLT
(ZERZFERRRE  ERAR¥0.227D)

(REBEH (R H)

—REOE —Fm=

AREtAL AAZ+HLE
~M A A

_ 87,782,000

212,000,000

220,000,000

ZERZFERBESRARWOT IR ZFFNERA - ZRRE  REZFTENEAA=ZF

Hib > ZREHKTREESE -

BHABERARS

AEEEHEREARGERNERLAANLBAAFEENBEEDNT

AREH
0 7 9 A %
B B PR
B B L PR
T T A A
T B 03 R 4 A RO A
BT A IR A )

HEREYEERFT R A

HBEIE (RN A RAR

79 %2 18 27 0 AROR AR AR

SEENE PR

HEKRENHEE

WmAFE SR EARE
WMHFEER LA EEREK
ERORCICE: o9& I DE -3 3
ORI ER RAAREERRE
BOAFEF RAHR EERE
WHARFE R RAER EERR
WHHEEERR AR EERR
HHARERRAAR EERRE

BT LA D R A




38 MEFBERAXS (4)

DEEE

A B sk X gt
BAfmomangid
BAagayERTH
IHTHEETEELEERT
WHRBHEFREHERA A
Wi B LRERA A
AABERIE=ZBRAATRLA
HHRELHRAERTBERLT
HERAMEh0XERAF
1B EME R

B EEMELAERAE
A-BL A
FRWE (BN BEHERAA
EEEEREAERRAEAH
HEW GEH AR
RELETROBEEHARAA

RGN

B
Bi]
N

THEWEMARAGERLA

BREZLWTETRAEERERARLA

PHAEEARL DERESE

BEEENEE
BT AT BN
BRTL®DEBRR
BRFLA SRR
ERTAAIEBBRE
BT AR S ERE
BRTA®DBBER
BERTAEDERER
BERT AR SRR
ERTF AR S BRRK
BT AR S BRH
BERT AW ERR
FEEEE

®] H # B
mroomr oMy R
IR
Zooa m B

=
R
5
ol

H I F 4 B IR R
BTN A MR

BABAFAS  UEIBMBAERSBEAYEREALATARE -
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8 EMBABERERE ()
(a) AHHNAEHERB XN IBLEEENT

(REEH) (R BET
—EENE TEREZF
ABE+HHLE AAZ+ALE
@A 7B A
BEEY:
HELETESREEHERAE 74,747,233 40,582,785
ML E 5,018,054 —
FEWEHEETRALAA 313,118 —
FERB 3,031,101 2,199,569
EEWE G FRAE — 47,768
83,109,506 472,830,122
FwmEy
FEEAE 80,738,288 33,303,875
ERUEDEEEERAA 12,176,544 6,281,831
WHREHEFEESRLS 48,272 180,975
HEBE EMN FRAE 20,475,045 —
HEBEEEARLA 4,288,731 —
HFHEBETLEARAR 256,952 —
117,983,832 39,766,681
BAEERMEE SR
FTERERSHEERLE — 470.633
FEBLEHEHALERBRRTETRRE
EHERBEIRAEMRLAE 110,109 —
BAERRERIHBEHITRRE
EFEWETHRERLD 688,623 79,800
BALBERIREABE
FEEREHEBARAL G 39,764,000 125,000,000
BAgamEktesd EAPRAEE
MAGR - BAESYERIGH — 125,000,000
39,764,000 250,000,000

() AEMBETHRINERRIREBFRBRZEYUTEREHEREEELR -
() REBQELEERAFABELE—~LFEF LG HSWE (B M BEHH R 5 3L FE RS E

W AR KB AR ST BIIR 8 T 41105000000 BR - MZBBEENAZ+8 » FEUPKEMA
BAYE R E B 54163,808,0005T « #1E R S(R38(D) °
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33 BBMAIMERRXS (F)
by REFFWENRAZTH » AEHAFB CENVERRE RGBT -

=y g
GREET) (REBFS)
—E8mE BT —EgmnmE ZER=F
~A=+8H +ZA=Z+—H ~AEZ+8 +ZA=+—H
UEMBRE (FHED
B HAT)
FEuE B
HRAHE 56,450,000 66,450,000 56,450,000 66,450,000
R ERRRE
RHBRRERR
FEEE (BN 8

BHEARL A

(taj(ii)) 82,560,810 86,860,810 82,560,810 86,860,810
Elaae =g bR

ERELELE 11,245,784 11,245,784 11,245,784 11,245,784
H B

R4 A 1,588,376 1,553,781 1,588,376 1,553,781
O E (M)

HIRAA 1,177,728 1,086,850 1,177,728 1,086,850
BELR 5,101,947 — — _
FERRE 1,893,809 — 1,893,809 —
H & E (M)

HRAHE — 156,000 — 156,000

103,568,454 100,903,225 98,466,507 100,903,225
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38 BHABERRXS (H)
by RZFEZMEXA=Z+H - FEHARBCENEREHRABEQOT -

£H AT
(REBH) (REET .
—ZEMF ZEFE=E —EZME ZEEZE
<A=+8B +ZRA=+-H ~B=+8 +ZA=+—8
BEREMERKR
BMEAF 21,019,200 — — —
BEEHUTETR
ERERE
HRAE 906,533 877,186 — —
1] kB 48,669 2,204,706 — —
FEWEETE
H R4 E 212,942 208,373 212,942 208,373
TG % i v E
OB BB 227,992 126,479 — —
H B e 5 9E
HRAT 12,812 3,037,775 12,812 10,775
FH &g g £ W
HRAF] 7,075,757 2,936,756 4,379,147 240,146
F B E T
IR E 209,575 248,154 209,575 248.154
FEWENEEE
HRAHE 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525
HEEE (EMN)
FRH 11,900,605 15,524,000 11,500,000 11,500,000
HEWI IR GAE
- /N 9,996,279 5,000,000 — —
1% 72 B B (R )
FANH RS A — 5,679 — —
B R i E
HIRAH — 10,000,000 — 10,000,000

54,548,889 43,107,633 19,253,001 25,145,973
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38 BESBRERRARS (H)

() RIFTMEAAZTHE - AENERRCENERRMRGEHNT - (A

£ A
(REB/E) (REBE)
—RERmF ZESNF

i 4
+ 4
i
m 4

AB=+8 +=A

ARZ+8 +=A

BERBEARKA
MELA 61,442,163 — — —
& RiE (R
HRAHE 444,104 — — -
HERE LR
B E — 1,189,240 — —
61,886,267 1,189,240 _ —
BERBEERRR
HENELEEH
BHEARAR 626,326 3,073,220 626,326 3,073,220
TREEBEY
A EN R 36,496 — — —
mELH 183,885 — — —
846,707 3,073,220 626,326 3,073,220
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38 BHABERARSE (&)
by PIEFWERAZTE  ASBHEEBCENERBEARSHEOT 0 4

&B Q8
(REBEE) (REBEE)
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

(Unaudited)
30th June  31st December
ASSETS Notes 2004 2003
Current assets
Cash at bauk and in hand 6 1,632,394,367 932,900.408
Short-term investments 38 60,980,000 66,450,000
Notes receivable 7 98,054,616 50,883,184
Accounts receivable 8, 38 228,049,915 165,204,439
Other receivables 9, 38 297,431,119 307,667,155
Advances 1o suppliers 10, 38 241,768,470 134,349,330
Inventories 11 1,276,504,057 1,305,503,104
Prepaid expenses 12 27,018,332 14,123,395
Total current assets 3,862,200,876 2,977.081,015
Long-term investments
Long-term equity investments 5.13 78,810,652 (59.435,258)
Total long-term investments 78,810,652 (59,435,258}
Fixed assets
Fixed assets-cost 14 8,850,172,955 8.639,564,734
Less: Accumulated depreciation 14 (3,601,292,040) (3,390,796,250)
Fixed assets-net 14 5,248,880,915 5,248,768,484
Less: Provision for impairment of fixed assets 14 (162,426,271) (124,758,450)
Fixed assets-uet book value 5,086,454,644 5,124,010.034
Construction materials 29,817,319 —
Construction in progress 15 151,251,874 214,991,772
Fixed assets pending disposal 938,787 527.005
Total fixed assets 5,268,462,615 5,339,528,811
Intangible assets and other assets
Intangible assets 16 684,760,600 685,135,590
Long-term prepaid expenses 17 5,852,176 6,084,362
Long-term accounts receivable 8, 38 53,808,142 53,808,142
Total intangible assets and other assets 744,420,918 745,028,094
Total assets 9,953,895,061 9,002,202,662
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Person in charge of Person in charge of
Legal represeniative: accounting function: accounting department:
Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Guo Yu Zhu Ming
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont’d)

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

(Unaudited)
30th June 3lst December
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Notes 2004 2003
Current liabilities
Short-term loans 18 1,246,664,760 1.302.612,990
Notes payable 19. 38 496,297,540 525,449,509
Accounts payable 20, 38 786,619,283 646,912,821
Advances from customers 20, 38 146,121,518 129,067,846
Accrued payroll 12,250,844 13,855,730
Welfare benefits payables 32,236,489 27,733,911
Dividends payable 37 214,876,000 1,100,000
Taxes payable 21 257,858,322 180,729,827
Other payables 20, 38 940,529,539 759,215,114
Other levies payable 11,323,466 4.083.608
Accrued expenses 22 237,673,157 62,851,607
Provisions 23 51,068,422 —
Current portion of long-term loans 18 47,020,329 61.385.555
Current portion of convertible bonds 24 6,160,630 4,513,880
Total current liabilities 4,486,700,239 3,719,512,398
Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans 18 46,514,815 53,783,722
Convertible bonds 24 1,205,449,234 939,156,300
Long-term payables 38 124,150,500 124.047,480
Total long-term liabilities 1,376,114,549 1.116,987.502
Total liabilities 5,862,814,788  4,836.499.900
Minority interests 613,479,038 651.800.24]
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 23 1,060,000,000 1,060,000,000
Capital surplus 26 1,825,994,450 1,798.876,982
Surplus reserve 27 395,164,057 395,164,057
Including: public welfare fund 27 176,978,672 176,978,672
Undistributed profits 28 196,010,800 259,760,239
Foreign currency translation differences 431,928 101,243
Total shareholders’ equity 3,477,601,235 3,513,902,521
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 9,953,895,061 9,002,202,662
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Person in charge of Person in charge of
Legal representative: accounting function: accounting depariment.
Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Guo Yu Zhu Ming
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

(Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
ASSETS Notes 2004 2003
Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand 6 717,417,924 257,825,760
Short-term investments 38 1,952,059,671 1,693,587,616
Notes receivable 7 19,119,400 5,454,500
Accounts receivable 8, 38 149,746,133 173,908,573
Other receivables 9,38 334,189,007 250,308,891
Advances to suppliers 10, 38 5,988,227 16,793,506
Inventories 1] 224,786,947 277,753,489
Prepaid expenses 12 13,946,042 5,662,480
Total current assets 3,417,253,351 2,681,294,815
Long-term investments
Long-term equity investments 513 1,837,215,697 1,629,446.381
Total long-term investments 1,837,215,697 1,629,446,381
Fixed assets
Fixed assets-cost 14 2,018,186,856 1,991.468.752
Less: Accumulated depreciation 14 (1,066,688,381) {1,026,501,139)
Fixed assets-net 14 951,498,469 964,967.613
Less: Provision for impairment of fixed assets 14 (6,879,712) (6,890,750)
Fixed assets-net book value 944,618,757 958,076,863
Construction in progress 15 67,982,326 68,347,365
Fixed assets pending disposal 346,544 —
Total fixed assets 1,012,947,627 1,026.424,228
Intangible assets and other assets
Intangible assets 16 147,994,225 150,514,709
Long-term prepaid expenses 17 2,378,600 2,579,200
Long-term accounts receivable 8, 38 53,808,142 53,808,142
Total intangible assets and other assets 204,180,967 206,902,051
Total assets 6,471,597,642 5,544,067,475

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Person in charge of Person in charge of
Legal representative; accounting function: accounting department:
Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Guo Yu Zhu Ming
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET (Cont’d)

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

{(Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Notes 2004 2003
Current liabilities
Short-term loans 18 827,670,000 579,369,000
Notes payable 19, 38 82,543,600 99,384,500
Accounts payable ' 20, 38 135,408,376 105,475,575
Advances from customers 20, 38 36,217,295 52,082.206
Accrued payroll (125,675) —
Welfare benefits payables (3,126,764) (7,687.456)
Dividends payable 37 213,100,000 1,100,000
Taxes payable 21 64,256,321 45,168,436
Other payables 20, 38 203,181,619 115,926,175
Other levies payable 6,322,122 949,758
Accrued expenses 22 98,015,618 18,356,098
Provisions 23 51,068,422 —
Current portion of long-term loans 18 20,530,000 25,147,237
Current portion of convertible bonds 24 6,160,630 4.513,880
Total current liabilities 1,741,221,564 1.039,785,409
Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans 18 19,234,000 23,564,000
Convertible bonds 24 1,205,449,234 939,156,300
Total long-term liabilities 1,224,683,234 962,720,300
Total liabilities 2,965,904,798 2.002,505.709
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 25 1,060,000,000 1,060,000,000
Capital surplus 26 1,875,733,550 1.848,616,082
Surplus reserve 27 273,292,581 273,292,581
Including: public welfare fund 27 122,011,680 122,011,680
Undistributed profits 28 296,666,713 359,653,103
Total shareholders’ equity 3,505,692,844 3,541,561,766
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 6,471,597,642 5,544,067,475
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Person in charge of Person in charge of
Legal representative: accounting function: accounting department:

Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Guo Yu Zhu Ming
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND PROFIT APPROPRIATION

FOR THE SIXTH MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

Revenue from main operations
Less: Cost of main operations
Tax and levies on main operations

Profit from main operations

Add: Profit from other operations

Less: Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Finance expenses-net

Operating profit

Add: Investment income
Subsidy income
Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

Total profit
Less: Income taxes
Less: Minority interests

Net profit
Add: Undistributed profits at the beginning of period
Retrospective adjustments

Undistributed profits at beginning of period
restated after retrospective adjustments

Undistributed profits

Less: Appropriation to surplus reserve fund
Appropriation to welfare fund

Profit distributable to shareholders
Less: Dividends

Undistributed profits carried forward

Supplementary information:

Gain on disposal of business units or investments
Loss arising from natural disasters
Increase in total profit as a result
of changes in accounting policies
4. Increase in total profit as a result
of changes in accounting estimates
Losses from debt restructuring
6. Other — Provision for litigation (Note 23)

(SRS

bl

(Unaudited)
Sixth months
ended 30th June

(Unaudited)
Sixth months
ended 30th June

Notes 2004 2003
(Note 43)

29, 38 4,337,694,920 3.835,462,035
29, 38 (2,512,000,267) (2,258.495,172)
30 (465,105,083) (402,299,699)
1,360,589,570 1,174,667,164

31 15,780,359 7.245,433
(710,465,123) (624.,175,205)
(324,382,325) (306,936,162)
32 (27,051,918) (67,001.909)
314,470,563 183,799.321

33 4,486,996 9,423,557
34 29,485,149 23,285,609
35 5,468,596 3,679,454
35 (108,612,357) (35,415,864)
245,298,947 184,772,077
36 (75,936,610) (54.915,143)
(21,111,776) (13,453.650)

148,250,561 116,403,284

259,760,239 108,828,477

— 220,000.000

259,760,239 328.828.477

408,010,800 445,231.761

408,010,800 445,231.761
37 (212,000,000) (220,000.000)

196,010,800

(Unaudited)

Six months
ended 30th June
2004

51,068,422

225,231,761

(Unaudited)

Six months
ended 30th June
2003

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Person in charge of
accounting function:

Legal representative:

Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Gue
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND PROFIT APPROPRIATION

FOR THE SIXTH MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months Six months
ended 30th June ended 30th June
Notes 2004 2003
(Note 43)
Revenue from main operations 38 1,405,044,107 1,291,348,729
Less: Cost of main operations 38 (782,667,563) (774,009,876)
Tax and levies on main operations 30 (81,763,401) (65.819,398)
Profit from main operations 540,613,143 451,519,455
Add: Profit from other operations 31 1,061,073 673,913
Less: Selling and distribution expenses (257,909,945) (195.051,413)
General and administrative expenses (75,602,737) (106,062,645)
Finance expenses-net 32 (16,381,243) (23,682,974)
Operating profit 191,780,291 127,396,338
Add: lInvestment income 33 45,840,317 6,944,508
Non-operating income 35 143,633 600,783
Less: Non-operating expenses 35 (58,072,075) (3,540,528)
Total profit 179,692,166 131,401,101
Less: Income taxes 36 (30,678,556) (19.511.,684)
Net profit 149,013,610 111,889,417
Add: Undistributed profits at the beginning of period 359,653,103 163.428.623
Retrospective adjustments — 220.000,000
Undistributed profits at beginning of period
restated after retrospective adjustments 359,653,103 383,428,623
Undistributed profits 508,666,713 495.318.,040
Less: Appropriation to surplus reserve fund — —
Appropriation to welfare fund — —
Profit distributable to shareholders 508,666,713 495,318,040
Less: Dividends 37 (212,000,000) (220,000,000)
Undistributed profits carried forward 296,666,713 275,318,040
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months Six months
ended 30th June ended 30th June
2004 2003
Supplementary information:
1. Gain on disposal of business units or investments 1.712,537 —
2. Loss arising from natural disasters — —
3. Increase in total profit as a result of
changes in accounting policies — —
4. Increase in total profit as a result of
changes in accounting estimates — —
5. Losses from debt restructuring —_ —
6. Other — Provision for litigation (Note 23) 51,068,422 —
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Person in charge of Person in charge of
Legal representative: accounting function: accounting department:
Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Guo Yu Zhu Ming
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

?)

4.

5.

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sale of goods
or rendering of services
Refund of taxes and levies
Cash received relating to other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Payments of taxes and levies

Cash paid relating to other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of
investments, other than subsidiaries
Cash received from rewurns on investments
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets
Cash received relating to other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

Cash paid to acquire investments,
other than subsidiaries

Cash paid to acquire subsidiaries

Cash paid relating to other investing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from issuance of convertible bonds
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received relating to other financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash repayments of amounts borrowed
Cash payments for distribution of dividends
or profits and interest expenses
Inctuding: dividends paid to
minority interests by subsidiaries

Cash payments relating to other financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

Net increase in cash

(Unaudited)
Group

5,193,917,622
33,073,563
623,789,580

{(Unaudited)
Company

1,921,342,681

61,897,348

5.850,780.765

1,983,240,029

(2,818,234,918)
(313,009.854)
(863,250,125)
(992,924.533)

(1,123,315,912)
(72,966,138)
(217,020,978)
(174,341,131)

(4,987,419,430)

(1,587.644,159)

863.361,335 395,595,870
41,768,527 41,723,536
4,794,762 35,394,762
2,980,503 70,810
15,286,863 31,000,000
64,830,655 108,189,108

(198,409,261)

(94,348,924)
(42,951.120)
(6,259,108)

(43,169.036)

(201,876.842)
(294,530,000)

(341,968,413)

(539,575,878)

(277.137,758)

(431,386,770)

270,275,413 270,275,413
705,521,080 265,644,000
57.651.622 500,000
1,033.458,115 536,419,413

(764,940,154)
(59,400,724)

(29,624,000)

(26.339,197)

(14.638,498)

(54,012,796) —
(878,353.674) (40,977.695)
155,104,441 495,441,718

241,878 (58,654)
741,569.896 459,592,164

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

Legal representative:

Li Gui Rong
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Person in charge of
accounting function:

Sun Yu Guo
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont’d)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Supplementary Information Group Company
1 Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
Net profit 148.250.561 149,013,610
Adjust for: Profit of minority interests 21,111,776 —
Provision for assets impairment 73,030.316 3,223,715
Depreciation of fixed assets 234,788,240 49,543,737
Amortisation of intangible assets 11,376,830 2,571,484
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses 934,156 200,600
Increase in prepaid expenses (12,894,937) (8,283,562)
Increase in accrued expenses 174.821,550 79,659,520
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6,620,743 6,987,195
Finance expenses 27.611.222 17,208.923
Investment income (4,486.996) (45,840,317}
Decrease in inventories 15,072,061 52,966,542
(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables (259,015,385) 3,551,274
Increase in operating payables 426,141,198 84,793,149
Net cash flows from operating activities 863.361,335 395,595,870
2 Investing and financing activities that do not
involve cash receipts and payments
Exemption of debt 1,258,584 1,258,584
3 Net Increase in cash
Cash at end of period 1,579,319,523 689,417,924
Less: cash at beginning of period (837.749,627) (229,825.760)
Net increase in cash 741,569,896 459,592,164

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Person in charge of Person in charge of
Legal representative: accounting function: accounting department:
Li Gui Rong Sun Yu Guo Yu Zhu Ming
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RMB YUAN UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

10

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND OPERATIONS

Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (the “Company™) was established in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC”) on 16th June 1993 and it obtained the business license of a Sino-foreign Joint Stock Company
on 27th December 1995, The H shares of the Company were listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on [5th July 1993 and its A shares were listed on The Shanghai Stock
Exchange on 27th August 1993.

On 21st October 2002, the Company signed a strategic investment agreement (the “Strategic Investment
Agreement”) with Anheuser-Busch International Holdings, Inc. (“A-B Company™), pursuant to which the
Company issued several tranches of mandatory convertible bonds ("CB”) to A-B Company amounting to
approximately HK$1,416.195.000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1.503.448,000). Upon full conversion
of the CB. the equity holding of A-B Company in the Company will increase to approximately 27%. In
2003, approximately HK$1,162.057.000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,233,630,000) of the CB were
issued and the related proceeds were received from A-B Company, out of which approximately
HK$280,800,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB297,999,000) of the CB had been converted into
60,000,000 new H-shares in 2003. The remaining balance of the CB of approximately HK$254,138,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB269,818.000) was received on 31st March 2004, More details are set out
in Note 24. For the six months ended 30th June 2004 (“the Period™) all the CB has been issued without any
convertion of new H shares occurred.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™} are principally engaged in the
production and distribution of beer products.

The major acquisitions of the Group and the Company during the Period are detailed in Note 5.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and “the Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises” and related regulations, as
promulgated by the Central Government of the PRC.

{(b) Accounting Period
The Group's accounting year starts on Ist January and ends on 31st December.

(c) Basis of accounting and measurement bases
The Group follows the accrual basis of accounting. Apart from those assets which were recorded at the
revalued amount approved by the State-owned Assets Administration Bureau upon the reorganisation

of the Company into a Joint Stock Company, all assets are initially recorded at actual costs and
subsequently adjusted for impairment, if any.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(d) Recording currency, foreign currency translation and foreign currency financial statement

(e)

)

(g)

translation

The recording currency of the Company is the Renminbi (RMB). The amounts of the financial statements
are expressed in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB at the exchange rates stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China (“the stipufated exchange rates”) at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into RMB at the stipulated
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from these translations are
expensed. except for those attributable to foreign currency borrowings that have been taken out
specifically for the construction of fixed assets, which are capitalised as part of the fixed assets costs.

All assets and liabilities in foreign currencies financial statement are translated into RMB using the
stipulated exchange rates at the balance sheet date; shareholders’ equity. excluding undistributed profit,
is transjated using the stipulated exchange rates on the day when the transaction took place, undistributed
profit represents the sum of translated balance of profit appropriation statement, the income statement
is translated using the average stipulated exchange rate for the year. Any exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements are accounted for separately as Foreign Currency
Translation Differences in the balance sheet. The cash flow statement is translated using the stipulated
exchange rate at the balance sheer date.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement., cash comprises all cash in hand and call deposits. Cash
equivalents comprise investment with a maturity of three months or less and highly-liquid investments
that are readily convertible 10 known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, restricted bank balances, including time deposits with
maturity in excess of three months, are not inciuded as cash and cash equivalents.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments mainly represent entrusted lending. Entrusted lending refers to loans that has
provided to other parties via intermediary financial institutions. All balances are due for repayment
within one year. Interest income that has been accrued but cannot be collected when due, is reversed
and further accrual for interest income is suspended.

Receivable and provision for bad debts

Recetvables represent accounts receivable and other receivables. The Group adopts the “allowance
method” in accounting for potential bad debts. The net receivables are presented in the financial
statements based on the actual receivable balance net of the provision balance. The accounts receivable
balances incfude balances due from both related parties and non-related parties.

The Group determines the amount of bad debt losses on ending receivable balances as at year end
(including balances due from related parties). Management determines the needs of such provision
based on ageing analysis, past experience and financial and operating situations of the customers,
Excluding the receivable balances which management considers with no collectibitity problem, generat
bad debt provision of 50% and 100% are made for receivable balances aged within 1 to 2 years and
over 2 years, respectively.

When there is any evidence indicating that the accounts receivable balances become uncollectible, for
instance, when the debtors suffer from liquidation, bankruptey. having net liabilities or inadequate
cash flow, bad debis are recognised and the balances are written off againsi the corresponding provision
for bad debts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(h) Inventories

(i)

Inventories include raw materials. work-in-progress, finished goods, low cost consumables and packaging
materials, and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

[nventories acquired are accounted for at actual cost, The costs of raw materials and finished goods
are calculated on weighted average method. while the cost of consumables and certain packaging
materials are amortised into expenses over their estimated useful lives of {-5 years using straight-line
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-process include the costs of raw material, direct
jabour and indirect production costs allocated based on appropriate percentages of total indirect
production costs under normal production capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated selling and distribution expenses and related taxation expenses
necessary to canclude the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as cost in the period
in which the refated revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
write-down or {oss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from
an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Long-term investments

Long-term investments comprise equity investruents in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated and
other investments in companies, which are expected to be held for a pericd over one year, and bonds
or other debt investments which could or are not readily realised.

(1) Long-term equity investments

Subsidiaries are investees in which the Company has, directly or indirectly, an interest of more
than 50% (50% exclusive) of the voting share capital, or otherwise has power to govern the
investees’ financial and operating policies. Joint ventures are investees that are under the joint
control of the Company and other venturers. Associates generally represent investees jn which the
Company has an interest of between 20% (20% exclusive) to 50% (50% exclusive) of the voting
share capital or otherwise has significant influence over the financial and operating policies.

Long-term equity investments are recorded at the actual cost of acquisition or based on the
carrying amount of non-monetary assets contributed and any related taxes and charges. The
Company accounts for long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
using the equity method of accounting. Other equity investments, which the Company intends to
hold for more than one year, are accounted for using the cost method of accounting.

When long-term equity investments acquired prior to 17th March 2003 are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, the difference between the initial cost of investment and the
proportionate share of the net assets of the investee is amortized using the straight-line method
over 10 years. Where long-term equity investments acquired after 17th March 2003 are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, if the initial cost of investment is less than the
proportionate share of the net assets of the investee, the difference is accounted for as capital
surplus. If there is an excess of the initial cost of investment over the proportionate share of net
assets of the investee, the excess is amortized using the straight-line method over 10 years.

Under the equity method of accounting, the attributable share of the investees™ net profit or loss
for the period is recognized as an investment income or loss. When the investees declare dividends,
the carrying amount of the investment is reduced accordingly. Under the cost method of accounting,
investment income is recognized when the investees declare dividends,

Interim Report 2004




2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

M

@

Long-term investments (Cont’d)
(2) Long-term debt investments

Long-term debt investments are recorded at the actual cost of acquisition less interest accrued but
can not be collected when due.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets include buildings, machinery and equipment used in production or held for management
purposes, which have useful lives of more than one year. Effective 1st January 2001, when construction
takes place upon the Company’s land and the construction is for the Company’s own use, the carrying
value of the land use rights is capitalised as part of the building costs within fixed assets.

Fixed assets purchased or constructed are recorded at actual cost. The revalued amount is determined
based on the asset valuation undertaken by the Company upon its reorganisation into a joint stock
company subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company and confirmation from the State-
Owned Assets Administration Bureau of the PRC.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account their estimated residual value. For those assets which have been
provided for impairment, depreciation rate and the depreciation amount are re-determined based on
the restated net book values.

The estimated useful lives, residual value and annual depreciation rate of fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated Estimated Annual
useful lives residual value depreciation rate
Land and buildings
— at cost 20-40 years 3% 24% — 49%
— Land use rights 50 years 0% 2%
Plant and machinery 5-14 years 3% 6.9% — 19.4%
Motor vehicles 5-12 years 3% 8.1% — 19.4%
Other equipment 5-10 years 3% 9.7% — 19.4%

When fixed assets are sold, transferred, disposed of or destroyed. gains and losses on disposal are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the assets, reduced by related
taxes and expenses, and are included in non-operating income/expenses,

Repairs and maintenance of fixed assets are expensed as incurred. Subsequent expenditures for major
reconstruction, expansion. improvement and renovation are capitalised when it is probable that future
economic benefits in excess of the original assessment of performance will flow to the Company.
Capitalised expenditures arising from major reconstruction, expansion and improvement are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the remaining useful lives of the fixed assets. Capitalised
expenditures arising from the renovation of fixed assets are depreciated over the expected beneficial
period.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews each of the fixed asset items. Provision for impairment
losses are made for the excess of the carrying amount of an asset over its recoverable amount, which is
caused by continuous decline in market value, out-dated technology. damage, or idle usage. etc.. When
economic benefits can no longer be derived from the fixed assets. these assets are fully provided for
impairment loss individually and the corresponding charges are recognised in the profit and loss
account of the year.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

14

(k) Construction in progress

()

Construction in progress represents fixed assets under construction or installation and is stated at cost
incurred. Cost comprises the construction costs and other direct costs, original cost of machinery and
equipment, installation costs and borrowing costs on specific borrowings for financing the construction
or acquisition of fixed assets until the assets are ready for their intended use. Construction in progress
is transferred to fixed assets and depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

At each balance sheet date. the Group conducts a full-scale review of its construction in progress.
Provision for impairment losses is made and charged to the profit and loss account when the recoverable
amount is Jower than its carrying amount, when constructions is suspended and expected not to resume
tn coming 3 years, the specification and technology are obsolete and the economic benefits of which
are uncertain, or when other evidences for impairment losses.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets comprise land use rights, trademark, computer software and technology know-how.
The net carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The costs of land use rights purchased or obtained by way of payments of land use right fees are stated
at the respective costs of purchase and recognised as intangible assets upon the commencement of
construction of the related projects. The costs of land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. From Ist January 2001 onwards, the carrying values of land use
rights are transferred to construction in progress when the land involved is developed for self-use
projects.

Trademarks mainly represent the “TSINGTAO BEER” trademark injected by the founding shareholder
into the Company on 16th June 1993 as capital injection. The recorded value of the trademark was
determined based on a valuation amount approved by the State-owned Assets Administration Bureau
of the PRC. Amortisation of the trademark is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the
revalued amount of the trademark over its estimated useful lives of 40 years.

Other trademarks were acquired during acquisitions of certain subsidiaries and are amortised over
their estimated useful lives ranging from 5-10 years.

All research and development fees for internally generated intangible assets are charged to the profit
and loss account as expenses when incurred. The Group's technology know-how was injected by a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary during the reorganisation of that subsidiary. It was recorded at a
value agreed among all the shareholders of that subsidiary and is amortised on a straight-line basis
over an expected period of inflow of economic benefits of 10 years.

The Group regularly reviews the estimated future economic benefits of each intangible asset item.
When there is evidence indicating that the value of the intangible asset has been impaired, provision
for impairment Joss are made for the excess of carrying amount over its recoverable amount,

(m) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include advertising expenses, building usage right, greenery expenses and
expenditures on improvement projects incurred which should be amortised for more than one year.
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized on the straight-line basis aver the expected beneficial
period and are presented at cost net of accumulated amortization.

All expenses incurred during the pre-operating period are first aggregated as long-term prepaid expenses
and were expensed in the first month of commercial operation.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Borrowing

Borrowing are initially recognised at the amounts of the proceeds received. Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing arrangement are expensed as incurred,

Borrowing éosts, including interests, ancillary costs and exchange differences, incurred in connection
with specific borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as
costs of the fixed assets when capital expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred and the activities
have commenced to enable the assets to be ready for their intended use. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The interest expenses arising from specific loans are capitalised based on the weighted average of
capital expenditures and the weighted average rate of these specific loans, subject to a cap of the
actual interest expenses incurred,

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are recognised as liabilities at issue price upon its issuance and before their conversion
into shares. The difference between the issue price and the face value is recognised as premium or
discount, which is to be amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the bond. The amortisation
is charged together with the bond interest based on the principle of accounting for borrowing costs.
When the bonds are converted into shares, they are converted at their carrying amounts. The difference
between the carrying amount of the convertible bonds and the face value of the shares so converted.
net of any related expenses paid, is recognsied as share premium.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past transactions
or events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Profit distribution

Profit distribution is transferred out of shareholders equity in the period when the distribution plan is
approved by the general meeting of the shareholders.

Revenue recognition

(i} Sales of good
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably. sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have been transferred to the customer
and when the Group does not have the rights to manage and control the goods.
Sales discounts are net off against revenue in the current Period.

(if) Other revenue

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account deposit balances or
entrusted lending and the effective yield.

Subsidy income is recognised when received.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(s) Taxation

The Group provides for enterprise income tax on the basis of its profit before tax for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items which are not assessable or deductible as
well as all the available tax benefits, using the applicable tax rates.

The accounting treatment adopted by the Group for its enterprise income tax is based on the tax
effects on accounting, using the liability method. Deferred taxation is provided for using the liability
method. Timing differences are differences in the timing of recognition of income, expenses and profit
and loss as a result of the tax regulations and accounting system. The effects of timing differences on
the cumulative amount of income tax as at year end are adjusted based on the current tax rate.

Deferred tax asset is not recognised unless the related benefits are expected to crystallise in the
foreseeable future.

(t) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the Company and subsidiaries, and are prepared based
on the requirements of Cai Kuai Zi [1995] No. 11 “the Articles on issuance of consolidated financial
statements” and related regulation promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC,

The turnover, cost of sales and profit and loss account of the subsidiaries during the year are included
in the consolidated profit and loss account from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal when the control over the subsidiaries is ceased. Significant inter-group balances,
transactions and unrealised profits are eliminated on consolidation. Minority interests represent the
interests shared by third party shareholders over the operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

Significant differences arising from various accounting policies adopted by the Company and the
subsidiaries that have material impact to the Group’s accounts are adjusted in accordance to Company’s
accounting policies.
3 NON-MONETARY TRANSACTION
During the Peirod, there was no significant non-monetary transaction for the Group and the Company.
4 SEASONAL/CYCLICAL REVENUE
Summer and autumn times (May to October) of each year is the peak season for beer sales. The sales

volume during the peak season is normally | to 2 times the sales volume in the slack season (November to
April) of the following year.
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5 INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
establishment and Registered Equity interest held
Name of subsidiaries principal operation capital by the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held

Tsingtao Brewery Huanan Shenzhen, the PRC RMB200,000,000 95% — Investment holding
Holding Company Limited
("Huanan Holding")

Tsingtao Brewery (Zhuhai) Zhuhai, the PRC RMEA0,000.000 — 72.83% Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
("Zhuhai Company™) of beer

Tsingtao Brewery (Sanshui) Sanshui, the PRC RMB41,335,505 — 71.25% Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“Sanshui Company™) of beer

Tsingtao Brewery (Chenzhou) Chenzhou, the PRC RMB70,000.000 - 84.36% Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
("Chenzhou Company} of heer

Tsingtao Brewery (Huangshi) Huangshi. the PRC RMB3,000,000 — 90.25% Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(*Huangshi Company”) of beer

Tsingtao Brewery (Yingcheng)  Yingcheng. the PRC RMBS.000,000 - 90.25% Manufacturing and
Company Limiled domestic trading

of beer

Shenzhen Tsingtao Shenzhen. the PRC U5$30.000,000 51% - Manufactering and
Brewery Asahi trading of beer
Company Limited
{“Shenzhen Asahi”)

Shenzhen Tsingtao Shenzhen, the PRC RMB21,000,000 95% — Domestic trading
Brewery Sales of beer
Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Sales”)

Tsingtao Brewery Shanghai, the PRC RMB100,000,000 95% — Investment holding
Huadong Holding
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Huadong Shanghai. the PRC RMB3,000,000 - 94.03% Domestic trading
Shanghai Sales of beer
Company Limited

Tsingiao Brewery Nanjing. the PRC RMB1.000.000 — 93.88% Domestic trading
Huadong Nanjing Sales of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery (Shanghai) Shanghai, the PRC RMB50.000,000 - 90.25% Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer
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5 INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

(Cont’d)
Place of
establishment and
Name of subsidiaries principal operation
Tsingtao Brewery (Wuhu) Wuhu, the PRC

Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery (Maanshan) Maanshan, the PRC
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Shanghai Shanghai. the PRC
Songjiang Company
Limited (*Shanghai
Songjiang™}

Tsingtao Brewery (Shouguang)  Shouguang, the PRC
Company Limited
("Shouguang Company™}

Tsingtao Brewery (Weifang) Weifang, the PRC
Company Limited
(*Weifang Company™)

Tsingtao Brewery (Angiu) Angu, the PRC
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Pingdu. the PRC
No. 3 Company
Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Peixian, the PRC
(Xuzhow) Company
Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Pengcheng, the PRC
(Xuzhou Pengcheng)
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Xuecheng, the PRC
(Xuecheng) Company
Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Tengzhou, the PRC
(Tengzhou)

Company Limited
("Tengzhon Company™)

Tsingtao Brewery Taierzhuang, the PRC
(Taierzhuang)
Malt Company
Limited
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Registered
capital

RMB20,000,000

RMBS,000,000

175$36.640,000

RMB60,606,060

RMBS$,000,000

RMBS5.000.000

RMB10.000,000

RMB39,336.899

RMB3,000,000

RMB45,000.000

RMB15,000,000

RMB5,000,000

Equity interest held

by the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held

— 85.50% Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

-~ 90.25% Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

5% ~ Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

9% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

0% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

95% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

95% — Manufactaring and
domestic trading
of beer

66% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

90% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

85% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

95% — Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of beer

— 86.20% Manufacturing and
domestic trading
of malt




5 INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

(Cont’d)
Place of
establishment and Registered Equity interest held
Name of subsidiaries principal operation  capital by the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held

Beijing Tsinglao Beijing, the PRC U$828,900,000 2% 5% Manufacturing and
Brewery Three Ring (Note 4i(a))  (Nore 41{a}) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
(“Three Ring Company™)

Beijing Five Star Beijing. the PRC RMB862,000,000 37.64% 5% Manufacturing and
Tsingtao Brewery domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
("Five Star Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Fuzhou, the PRC U8826,828.100 5% 25% Manufacturing and
{Fuzhou) Company domestic rading
Limited of beer
("Fuzhou Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Langfang. the PRC RMB 10,000,000 95% — Manufacturing and
(Langfang) domestic trading
Company Limired of beer
(“Langfang Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Xian Xian. the PRC RMB222.200.000 76.10% - Manufacturing and
Company Limited domesic trading
{*Xian Company™) of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Weinan. the PRC RMB50.000.000 28% 34.79% Manufacturing and
Weinan Company domestic trading
Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery (Anshan) Anshan, the PRC RMB50.000,000 60% — Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Jixi, the PRC RMB20,000,000 95% — Manufacturing and
(Xingkathu) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
("Xingkaihu Company™)

Tsingtao Brewery (Mishan) Mishan, the PRC RMB20,000.000 95% - Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
("Mishan Company”} of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Haerbin, the PRC RMB22.000.000 95% - Manufacturing and
(Haerbin) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
("Haerbin Company”)

Tsingiao Brewery Penglai, the PRC RMB37,500.000 30% — Manufacturing and
(Penglai) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

(“Penglai Company™)
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5 INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

(Cont’d)
Place of
establishment and Registered Equity interest held
Name of subsidiaries principal operation  capital by the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held

Tsingtao Brewery Rongcheng, the PRC - RMB20.000,000 0% — Manufacturing and
(Rongcheng) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
("Rongcheng Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Qingdao, the PRC RMB11.000,000 97.73% — Import/Export trading
Import/Export of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Sates Qingdao, the PRC RMBS,000,000 95% — Domestic trading of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Qingdao, the PRC RMB34,610,000 93.79% — Manufacturing and
No. § Company domestic trading
Limited of beer
{"No. § Companv"}

Tsinglao Brewery Qingdao, the PRC RMB1,320,000 100% — Domestic trading of beer
Development
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Pingyuan. the PRC RMBS,000,000 90% — Manufacturing and
(Pingyuan) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Rizhao, the PRC RMB10.000.000 95% — Manufacturing and
(Rizhao) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Heze, the PRC RMB10.000.000 90% — Manufacturing and
(Heze) Company domestic trading
Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Chongging, the PRC RMB7,000.000 95% - Manufacturing and
(Chongging) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Taizhou, the PRC RMB10.000,000 95% - Manufaciuring and
(Taizhou) Company domestic trading
Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Hong Kong, the PRC HKDS00.000 100% — Trading of Tsingtao
(Hong Kong) beer in Hong Kong
Trading Company
Limited
(“Hong Kong
Company™)

Tsingtao Brewery Hanzhong, the PRC RMB29,410,000 — 50.23% Manufacturing and
(Hanzhong} domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
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5 INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

(Cont’d)
Place of
establishment and Registered Equity interest held
Name of subsidiaries principal operation capital by the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held

Tsingtao Brewery (Doumen) Zhuhai , the PRC RMB10,000.000 ~ $5.82% Manufacturing and
Malt Company Limited {Note 31(c)) domestic trading
("Doumen Company™) of malt

Tsingtao Brewery Luzhou, the PRC RMBI11.110.000 95%(b(i)) — Manufacturing and
{Luzhou) Company domestic trading
Limited of beer
("Luzhou Company™)

Tsingtao Brewery (Nanjing) Nanjing, the PRC US85.000,000 5% — Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading

of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Sugian. the PRC RMB10.000.000 95% — Manufacturing and
{Sugian} Company domestic trading
Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Beijing. the PRC RMB29,980,000 80% 14.25% Domestic trading
Beifang Sales of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Haerbin, the PRC RMB10.000.000 35% 14.25% Domestic trading
Haerbin Northeast of beer
Sales Company Limited

Tsinglao Brewery Qingdas. the PRC RMB16,635,592 50% 46.90% Manufacturing and
(Laoshany domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

Tsingiao Brewery Tengzhou, the PRC RMB300,000 — 90% Domestic trading
{Tengzhou) of beer
Huaihat Sales
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Taicang, the PRC RMBS5.000.000 10% 85.50% Manufactoring and
{Suzhou) Company domestic trading
Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Hangzhou, the PRC RMB1,000,000 — 94.03% Domestic trading
Huadong Hangzhou of beer
Sales Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Huadong Suzhou, the PRC RMB3.000.000 — 7%6.10% Domestic trading
Suzhou Sales of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Chengdu, the PRC RMB2,000.000 60% 3% Domestic trading
Kinan Sales of beer

Company Limited
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5 INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

(Cont’d)
Place of
establishment and Registered Equity interest beld
Name of subsidiaries principal operation  capital by the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held

Tsingtao Brewery Suizhou, the PRC RMB24,000,000 — §5.50% Manufacturing and
(Suizhou) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer
(“Suizhou Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Tianmen, the PRC RMB 18,000,000 ~ 85.50% Manufacturing and
(Tianmen) domestic trading
Company Limited of beer

Tsingtao Brewery Taizhou, the PRC RMB6,800,000 — 48.45% Domestic trading
(Taizhou) Sales of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Xianghong Qingdao, the PRC RMB1,000.000 95% — Car rental services
Trading Company
Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Qingdao, the PRC RMB2,000,000 51% -~ Logistic services
Zhaoshang Logistic and management
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Chenzhou, the PRC RMB1,000.000 — 94.69% Domestic trading
Chenzhiou Sales of heer
Company Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Weifang. the PRC RMBZ,000.000 - 90.30% Domestic trading
Luzhong (Weifang) of beer
Sates Company
Limited

Tsingtao Brewery Xiamen, the PRC RMB10,000.000 755%(b{ii)} 25%(b(ii}) Muanufacturiag and
(Xiamen) domestic trading
Company of beer
Limited
{("Xiamen Company”)

Tsingtao Brewery Xiamen, the PRC RMB1.000,000 — 40% Domestic trading
(Xiamen) Sales of beer
Company Limited

Tsingtac Brewery Qingdao. the PRC RMB1,000,000 - 53.75% Warehousing,
Haifeng Warehouse packaging and
Company Limited logistics

Tsingtao Brewery Baoji Baoji. the PRC RMB1.000,000 30%{d) 53.27%(d) Manufacturing and
Company Limited domestic trading
(“TB Bagji") of beer
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5

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(a) As at 31st December 2003, the information of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:
{Cont’d)

(b)

During the Period. information of the subsidiaries newly acquired/established by the Group are as

follows:
Place of
Date of establishment  Registered
establishment and principal  and paid-in Equity interest held by
Name of new subsidiaries  acquisition operation capital the Company (%) Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
held held
Xuzhou Pengcheng Sales Janwary 2004 Xuzhou, RMB5,000,000 — 83.80% Trading of beer
Company Limited the PRC
Tsingtao Brewery January 2004 Changsha, RMB68,000.000  70% 28.50% Manufactering and
(Changsha) the PRC domestic trading
Company Limited (1) of beer
(i) InJanuary 2004, the Company and Huanan Holding. a subsidiary of the Company, jointly invested

in a newly incorporated company, namely Tsingtac Brewery (Changsha) Company Limited
(“Changsha Company”), with registered capital amounting to 10,000,000. The Company injected
cash capital of 7,000,000, which accounted for 70% of the total registered capital while Huanan
Helding injected cash capital of 3,000,000, which accounted for the remaining 30% for the total
registered capital, In March 2004, the Company and Huanan Holding injected additional capital to
Changsha Company after approved by the Board of Directors meeting. The Company and Huanan
Holding injected cash capital of 40,600,000 and 17,400,000 respectively. After the injection of
capital. the registered capital of Changsha Company increase from 10,000,000 to 68,000,000 and
cquity interest of Changsha Company held by the Company and Huanan Holding remains
unchanged.

During the Period, changes in the equity interests of the following subsidiaries held by the
Company are as follows:

()

(ii)

In May 2004, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with Sichuan Huo Ju Hua
Gong Company Limited (Sichuan Huo Ju) to acquire 40% cquity interest of Luzhou Company at
consideration approximately 34,296,000, After the transaction, the effective ownership percentage
held by the Company in Luzhou Company increases from 55% to 95%.

In May 2004, the relevant procedures, of which Hong Kong Company acquired 5% and 20%
interests of Xiamen Company held by the Company and Ou Mei Investment Company respectively,
have been completed. In addition, the Company and Hong Kong Company injected additional
capital of 60,000,000 and 20,000,000 respectively into Xiamen Company, which has been approved
by Xiamen Foreign Investment Bureau and the renewal of business registration procedures have
been completed in July 2004. After the additional capital injection, the registered capital of
Xiamen Company increased from 10,000,000 1o 90,000,000 with the equity interests of Xiamen
Company held by the Company and Hong Kong Company unchanged.
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24

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(¢) As at 30th June 2004, information of the principal associated Companies of the Group are as

follows:

Place of
Name of associated
companies

Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou)  Yungzhou,
Company Limited the PRC

Qinghua [mernational Canada
Trade Development
Company Limited
("Qinghua International”)

Tsingtao Beer and Asahi Qingdao,
Beverage Company the PRC
Limited

Nanning Tsingtao Nanning,
Brewery Company the PRC

Limited
{“Nanning Company”} {1}

establishment and
principal operation

Registered
Capital

RMB3,000,000

U55500,000

RMB70.000.000

RMB730.000.000

Equity Interest held
By the Group
Directly held Indirectly held

Principal activities

0% - Manufacturing and
domestic tading

of beer

50% - International trading

and distribution
of beer

— 37.52% Manufacturing and
domestic trading

of beer

— 30% Manufacturing and

domestic trading
of beer

Ending

Net Investment

Cost

21090314

115.332.220

(1) Huanan Holding, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased 30% equity interest of Naning Company
from Tailian Brewery (Cayman Islands) Company Limited (“Tailian Brewery™) and the relevant
equity transfer procedure have been completed in June 2004, the difference from the initial cost
of investment less than the proportionate share of the net assets of the investee has been recorded
in capital surplus (Note 26(i)). In May 2004, Huanan Holding signed an equity transfer agreement
with Tailian Brewery, pursuant to which Huanan Holding will purchase 45% equity interest of
Nanning Company from Tailian Brewery at a consideration of 200,880,000. As at the reporting
date, the approval procedure of the equity transfer by Ministry of Commerce of the PRC is stil] in
progress. After the completion of the above equity transfer. the effective percentage of equity
interest indirectly held by the Company in Nanning Company increases from 30% to 75%.

(d

~—

In 2003, Xian Company, a subsidiary of the Company, and Shanxi Baoji Brewery Company Limited

(“Baoji Brewery Company”) entered into a lease agreement, pursuant to which Baoji Brewery Company
leases all its operating assets except for current assets and seconds its employees to TB Baoji, which
was jointly set up by the Company and Xian Company, for beer production business, and TB Baoji
bears all the operating costs relating to the Jeased assets and employees.

In May 2004, TB Baoji and Shanxi Baoji Alcohol Factory (“Bacji Alcohol™), the biggest shareholder
of Baoji Brewery Company, entered into a lease agreement, pursuant to which Baoji Alcohol Teases its
buildings, lands and equipments to TB Baoji at the consideration that TB Baoji will utilise Baoji
Alcohol’s staff and afford relevant staff cost.
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6 CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

(a) Group
(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Foreign Foreign
currency Exchange RMB currency Exchange RMB
balance rate  equivalents balance rate equivalents
Cash in hand
— RMB 1,872,457 1,953.642
Cash at bank
— RMB 1,532,062,679 889,531,221
Subtotal 1,533,935,136 891,484,863
Foreign currency
deposits
— US$ 5,305,615 8.2767 43,913,198 4,965.005 8.2770 41,094,545
— HKD 51,375,783 1.0617 54,546,033 301,212 1.0660 321.000
Total cash at
bank and
in hand 1,632,394,367 932,900,408

(b) Company

(Unaudited)

30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Foreign Foreign
currency Exchange RMB currency Exchange RMB
balance rate  equivalents balance rate equivalents
Cash in hand
— RMB 704,392 815.229
Cash at bank
— RMB 695,418,452 217,644,766
Subtotal 696,122,844 218.459.995
Foreign currency
deposit
— USS$ 2,572,893 8.2767 21,295,080 4,751,007 8.2770 39,323,257
— HKD — — — 39,888 1.0660 42,508
Total cash at
bank and
in hand 717,417,924 257.825,760
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6 CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND (CONT’D)

{¢) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises the following:

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Cash at bank and in hand 1,632,394,367 932,900.408 717,417,924 257.825,760
Less: Time deposits with
original maturity
of more than
3 months (31,024,144) (12,015,816) (28,000,000) —
Restricted cash
at bank (/) (22,050,700) (83,134,965) — (28,000,000)
Total 1,579,319,523 837,749,627 689,417,924 229,825,760

(1) Restricted cash at bank are pledged deposits required to obtain trade finance facilities from the
banks.

7 NOTES RECEIVABLE

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Bank drafts 98,054,616 50,883,184 19,119,400 5,454,500

All above are all unsecured and not pledged for any banking facilities.

8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003

Accounts receivable and

long-term accounts

receivable 436,605,755 363,651,899 287,242,130 308,783,195
Less: Provision

for bad debts (154,747,698) (144,639.318) (83,687,855) (81,066.480)

Total 281,858,057 219,012,581 203,554,275 227,716,715
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONT’D)

The aging analysis of accounts receivable and long-term accounts receivable and related provision for bad
debts is analysed below:

(a)

(b)

Group
{Unaudited)
30tk June 2004 st December 2003
Provisien for Provision Provision for Provision
Amount Percentage (%) bad debts Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%) bad debts  Percentage (%)
Within one vear 199,103,037 45.60% (1933430 398% 128795973 3542% (259911 102%
Between one and
W0 years 33,447,490 7.66% (8,745,438) 26.05% 42273098 1L62% (12391434 29.79%
Between two and
three years 36,003,967 825% (33937319 94.260% 827230 191%  (19.311.43) 68.31%
Over three years 168,651,261 38.49%  (104,131,484) 6196% 164310481 45.19% (110,137,241 67.03%
Total 436,605,735 100.00%  (134,747,698) 3544% 363651899 100.00%  (144.639.318) 39.17%

As at 30th June 2004, the aggregate amount of the Group’s five largest accounts receivable and long-
term accounts receivable balances was approximately 130,319,000 (31st December 2003: 123,213.000),
being 30% (31st December 2003: 34%) of the total accounts receivable and long-term accounts
receivable balances.

During the Period, the Group wrote off uncollectible accounts receivable and long-term accounts
receivable against the provision for bad debts in the amount of approximately 641,000 (31st December
2003 27.131,000).

Company
{Unaudited)
30th June 2004 st December 2003
Provision for Proviston Provision for Provision
Amount Pereentage (%) bad debts Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%) bad dehts  Perceniage (%)

Within one year 128,788,683 44.84% (15,540) 0.01% 144130872 46.68% (1400839 097%
Between one and

1wo years 12,566,033 43%  (1,18214) 1033% 29827429 9.66%  (6.378.960) 21.39%
Between two and
three years 17,620,687 962%  (26837,128) 97.06% 18,646,014 6.04% (11,010,959 59.05%

Over three years 118,266,707 AT% (55,836,977 4.96% 116,178,880 31602%  {(61,27572)) 53.60%

Tota) 187,242,130 100.00%  {83,687,855) 10.43% 308,783,195 100.00% (81,066,480 26.25%

As at 30th June 2004, the aggregate amount of Company’s five largest accounts receivable and long-
term accounts receivable balances was approximately 130,319,000 (31st December 2003: 185,203,000).
being 45% (31st December 2003: 60%) of the total accounts receivable and long-term accounts
receivable balances.

During the Period, the Company did not write off any uncollectible accounts receivable and long-term
accounts receivable against the provision for bad debts (31st December 2003: 18,246,000).

As at 30th June 2004. the Group and the Company had no accounts receivable and long-term accounts
receivable balances owed from pariies who own 5% or above shareholdings in the Company.
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8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONT’D)

(¢) In 2001, the Group and the Company reached a settlement agreement with a customer and a related
company (collectively “the Debtors”) in connection with an aggregate outstanding receivable balance
of 105,000,000 (“the Debts™). Pursuant to the agreement, the Debts are repayable in eight annual
installments, commencing from Ist January 2002. in addition, Tsingtac Brewery Group Company
Limited, a related company, has undertaken to guarantee the repayment of the outstanding balance. As
at 30th June 2004, provision for doubtful debts had been provided for part of the balance. The
remaining outstanding balance of the Debts of approximately 10,000,000 and 53,808,000 were recorded
as accounts receivable and long-term accounts receivable balance in both the balance sheets of the
Company and the Group (Note 38(aj(ii)).

9 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
{(Unaundited) (Unaudited)

30th June 31st December 30th June 3]st December

2004 2003 2004 2003

Due from subsidiaries — — 214,182,943 219,590,544
Due from related companies 54,548,889 43,107,633 19,253,001 25,145973
Others 297,545,121 318,879,075 131,090,115 37,986,461
352,094,010 361,986,708 364,526,059 282.722.978
Provision for bad debts (54,662,891) (54,319,553) (30,337,052) (32,414,087)
Total 297,431,119 307,667,155 334,189,607 250,308,891

The ageing of other receivables and the related provision for bad debts is analysed below:

(a) Group
(Unaudited)
30th Jupe 2004 318t Decernber 2003
Provision for Provisian Provision for Pravision
Amount Percentage (%) bad debts Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%) bad debts  Percemage (%)
Within one wear 228,520,058 54.90% (3,816,596) 167% 228986540 63.25% (224735% 0.98%
Between ane and
w0 years 51,712,903 14.68% (7,291,128} 14105 33,260,608 13.7% (3268.823) 592%
Between {wo and
three years 3,966,438 153% {7,082.865) 78.99% 38,041,853 051% (11479889 30.18%
Over three years 62,894,591 1186% (36472300 599% 39,697,296 1097% (37323489 04.00%
Toial 35209401 10000%  (54,662891) 1553% 361986708 100.00% (34319553 15.00%

As at 30th June 2004, the aggregate amount of Group’s five largest other receivable balances was
approximately 186,258,000 (31st December 2003: 143,265,000}, being 53% (315t December 2003:
40%) of the total other receivables balances.
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9 OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(b) Company

{Unaudited)
30th June 2004 315t December 2003
Provision for Provision Provision for Provision
Amount Percentage (%} bad debts Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%) bad debts  Percentage (%)
Withia one year 132,438,956 36.33% 42,231 0.03% 60351112 21.35% (31.092) 0.05%
Between one and
1o years 197,999,324 4% (3,572,501) 180%  173.499.340 61.36% {53,713) 0.03%
Between (wo and
three vears 9,148,153 151% (2,448,872) 26.77% 15,276,388 8.94% (8.907.428) 35.24%
Over three years 14,939,626 684%  (42713448) 97.33% 13.596,138 835%  (23.421.854) 99.26%
Tolal 364,526,039 100.00%  (30,337,052) 8% 82712978 100.00%  (32414.087) 11.46%

As at 30th June 2004, the aggregate amount of Company's five largest other receivable balances was
approximately 94,794,000 (31st December 2003: 245.884.000), being 26% (31st December 2003:
87%) of the total other receivable balance.

The Company’s other receivables balance. which aged from one to three years, were mainly loans
made to subsidiaries for financing their working capital. The Company considered that no provision

for doubtful debts was necessary after taking into account the operating results of the subsidiaries.

As at 30th June 2004, the Group and the Company had no other receivables balance due from parties
who own 5% or above shareholdings in the Company.

10 ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

The ageing of advances to suppliers is analysed below:

(a) Group
(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Amount Percentage(%) Amount Percentage(%)
Less than one year 240,931,906 99.65% 133,152,529 99.11%
Between one and ’
two years 446,951 0.18% 1,002,165 0.75%
Between two and
three years 354,033 0.15% 104,559 0.08%
Over three years 35,580 0.02% 90.077 0.06%
Total 241,768,470 100.00 % 134,349,330 100.00%
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10 ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS (CONT’D)

30

(b) Company

Less than one year
Between one and
two years

Total

(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Amount Percentage( %) Amount Percentage(%)
5,986,427 99.97 % 16,793,506 100%
1,800 0.03% — —
5,988,227 100 % 16,793,506 100%

As at 30th June 2004, the Group and the Company have no advances to suppliers balance which was

made to parties who own 5% or above shareholdings in the Company.

Advances to suppliers balance of the Group and the Company, which aged over one year, were mainly
deposits paid for purchasing of materials.
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11 INVENTORIES

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Raw materials 367,931,900 425,140.694 115,009,874 134,133,346
Packaging materials 397,462,877 353,727,924 10,434,489 12,077,263
Low cost consumables and
auxiliary materials 236,794,189 251,178,676 25,952,461 34,124,005
Materials on consignment 4,255,925 6.859,009 262,656 3,785,599
Work in progress 174,621,507 128.849,769 39,271,166 28,994,890
Finished goods 135,336,241 164,877.217 34,878,539 65.660.624
1,316,402,639 1,330,633,289 225,809,185 278.775.727
Less: Provision for loss on
realisation of inventories (39,898,582) (25,130,185) (1,022,238) (1.022.238)
Total 1,276,504,057 1,305.503,104 224,786,947 277,753,489

Provision for loss on realisation of inventories:

(Unaudited)
Beginning (Unaudited) (Unaudited) End of the
of the Period Addition Reversal Period
Group

Raw materials 2,805,178 183,070 —_ 2,988,248
Finished goods 9,049,580 — — 9,049,580
Others 13,275.427 14,799.151 (213.824) 27.860.754
Total 25,130,185 14,982,221 (213,824) 39,898,582
(Unaudited)
Beginning (Unaudited) (Unaudited) End of the
of the Period Addition Write off Period

Company
Raw material 1,022,238 — — 1,022,238

Provision for loss on realisation of inventories is made based on the excess of original costs of inventories
over their net realisable value when inventories are damaged, becoming wholly or partially obsolete, or
when their selling prices are lower than their costs.
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12 PREPAID EXPENSES

Group
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Beginning (Unaudited) Amortisation End of the Reasons for balance
of the Period Addition for the Period Period retained at Period end
Insurance premium 7.826,634 4,315,289 (7,123.264) 5.018,659  Not yet fully amortised
Advertising expenses 3,426,473 14,756,157 (9.346,838) 8,835,792 Not yet fully amortised
Rental 985,807 1.692.594 (1,851,806) 826,595  Not yet fully amortised
Others 1,884,481 37,295,006 (26,842,201) 12,337,286 Not yet fully amortised
Total 14,123,395 58,059,046 (45,164,109 27.018.332
Company
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Beginning (Unaudited) Amortisation End of the Reasons for balance
of the Period Addition for the Period Period retained at Period end
Insurance premium 4,977,472 935,736 (3.765,376) 2,147,832 Not yet fully amortised
Advertising expenses — 13,138.502 (5,358,000) 7,780.502  Not yet fully amortised
Rental 447,550 673,033 (810,445) 310.138  Not yet fully amortised
Others 237,458 6,621,516 (3.151,404) 3,707.570  Not yet fully amortised
Total 5.662,480 21,368.787 (13,085,225) 13,946,042

13 LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Group
{Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
Notes 2004 2003
Investments in associated companies (b) 142,531,962 21.202,259
Other equity investments (c) 25,727,367 25,837,109
Provision for impairment (7,054,780) (7.054,780)
161,204,549 39,984,588
Consolidation difference (d) (82,393,897) (99.419.846)
Total 78,810,652 (59.435,258)
Company
Investments in subsidiaries (a) 1,886,793,542 1,687,466,851
Investments in associated companies (b) 5,906,182 5.449 854
Other equity investments (c) 17,969,562 17,969,562
Provision for impairment (2,992,862) (2,992.,862)
1,907,676,424 1,707.893,405
Equity investment differences (d) (70,460,727) (78,447,024)
Equity total 1,837,215,697 1.629,446,381

32 Interim Report 2004




13 LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) The details of equity investments accounted for by the equity method are as follows:

(Unaudited)

Total (Unaudited) Total

Year of investment  (Unaudited) Dividend  (Unaudited)  investment

commencement asat  Changein received  Cumulative asat

and Initial  Additional 31st December equity during during changes 30th June

Name of investees cessation  investment  investment 2003 the Period  the Period inequity 2004

Xian Company 1996 109.618397 43287534 265380621 40.628389 — 133103039 306,009,010

Shanghai Songjiang 000 287,233,335 — 193,624,566 5,688,172 -~ 12079403 299312738

Huanan Holding 2000 190,000,000 — 2492914 34455287 — 40248171 23948171

Shenzhen Sales 1999 19,000,000 — 185147 44355549 — 137204796 176204396

Shenzhen Asahi 1997 126,746,680 — 163562397 16989.329 (30600000 25205046 151031726

Luzhou Company 2000 61110000 36335684 49190088  37.640.163 —  {10615433) 86,830,251

No.5 Company 000 37625391 —~ 69780970 3123123 — 3287302 72913093

Fuzhou Company 2000 60831224 16606992 S2487.657 (4,796,029 ~  (29.766388)  47.691.628

Changsha Company 2004 7000000 40.600.000 — 47600000 - — 47600000

Haerbin Company 2000 24770378 58.000.000  50.430.010  (2.846,694) —  (35.486.962) 47283416

Three Ring Company 001 37561561 — 15248695 (2.28943)) — (24602298 12999263
Others (ending

halance less than
10.000.000) 1993 361323728 489.287.418  380.408.586 11052864 (1.672.000)0 (451.821.696) 398.789.450
1,322,840.694 704,117,648 1.687.466,851 231,598,691 (32,272,000} (140.164.800) 1,886,793,542

There are no significant restrictions on realisation and the repatriation of investment held by the
Group.

{(b) The Group’s and the Company’s main investments in associates are as follows:

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Balance as at Increase in Equity pick up Balance as at

beginning of equity during in current the end of the

Associates the Period the Period Period Period

Qinghua International 2,077,625 — — 2,077,625

Others 3,372,229 — 456,328 3,828.557

Company total 5,449,854 — 456,328 5.906,182

Tsingtao Asahi

Beverage Company

Limited 15,750,359 8,000,000 (2,458,845) 21,291,514

Nanning Company — 117,475,874 (2,143,654) 115,332,220

Others 2,046 — — 2.046

Group total 21,202,259 125,475,874 (4,146,171) 142,531,962
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13 LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (CONT’D)
(¢) Other equity investments

(Unaudited)
30th June 2004
Proportion of
shares held
by the Company
to the registered

Investment capital of the
Name of investees amount investees
Shanghai International Ming Jiu Development Corporation 7,000,000 17.5%
Tianjin Tsingtao Brewery Sales Company Limited
(“Tianjin Company”™) (i} 4,884,300 60%
Tsingtao Yingxiao Club 3,985,262 25%
Others 2,100,000
Company total 17.969,562
Guangxi Bei Hai Real Estate 3,610,000 15%
Others 4,147,805
Group total 25,727,367

(i) The Group does not exercise substantial influence over the financial and operating policies of Tianjing
Company.

(d) The details of the consolidation differences/equity investment differences are as follows:

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Addition in Amortization (Unaudited)
Reason of Initial Beginning current of current Unamortized
Subsidiaries formation investment balance Period Period balance
Shanghgj Songjiang Acquisition (133,483,335) 192,233,308) — 6,674,167 (85.559.141)
Five Star Company Acquisition (54,539,713 (39,995,790 — 2,726,986 (37.268,804)
Three Ring Company Acquisition 49,285,564 36,142,747 — (2,464.278) 33,678,469
Fuzhou Company Acquisition 64,192,777 32,730,014 — (3,209,639) 49,520,375
Others Acquisition (84.810,564) (35.090.687) — 4.239.061 (30,831,626
Company total (159.355.271) (78,447,024) — 7,986,297 (70,460.727)
Indirectly-held
subsidiaries of
the Group (44,600,685 (20,872.822) 6,892,339 2,147,313 (11.933.170)
Group Total (203.955.956) (99.419,846) 6.892.339 10,133,610 (82,393,897)

The consolidation difference/equity investment difference of the Group and the Company are amortised
over 10 years using straight-line method.
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14 FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

{(a) Group
Land and Plant and Motor Other
buildings machinery vehicles equipment Total
Original cost
Beginning of Period 2,744,816915  5.260.721,024 403,047.136 230.979.659  8.639.564.734
Transfer in from constrection
in progress (unaudited) 48.817.768 115,264,688 319,600 1.912.049 166,314,103
Additions (unaudited) 51,749,318 8.248,056 16,074,740 11.367.373 87,439,487
Disposals (unaudited) (9.423.848) (28.919,783) (2.779.332) (2.022,408) (43,145.371)
End of Period (unaudited) 2.835.960.153  5.355.313.985 416,662,144 242,236,673 8.850.172,955
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of Period 702,113.257  2.403.820.471 165,812,788 119.040.734  3.390.796.250
Charge for the Period (unaudited) 33,742.173 164,125.648 18,715,971 18,204,448 234,788.240
Disposal (unaudited) (2,766,502 (17.115.537) (2.735,366) (1,675.045) (24.292.450)
End of Period (unaudited) 733088928  2.550.839.582 181,793,393 135,570,137 3.601.292.040
Impairment loss
Beginning of Period 32,743,534 88.910,842 3,104,074 — 124,758.450
Charge for the Period (unaudited) 1,256,718 45,549.226 113,552 — 46,919,496
Reversal (unaudited) (2.639,798) (6.223.343) (388.534) — (9.251.675)
End of Period (unaudited} 31.360.454 128,236,725 2,829,092 — 162.426.271
Net book value
Beginning of Period 2,009.960.124  2,767,980.711 234,130,274 111938925 5,124.010,034
End of Period (unaudited) 2.071.510,771  2,676.237.678 232,039,659 106,666,536 5,086,454.644

As at 30th June 2004, an aggregate carrying value of approximately 97.527.000 of the Group’s buildings,
machinery and equipment and motor vehicles (31st December 2003: Nil} had been pledged as a
security for certain bank loans approximately to 16,000,000 of the Group (Note 18(c)).

As at 30th June 2004, the building ownership certificates ("Building Ownership Certificates”) for
certain buildings of the Group with carrying value of approximately 314,790,000 (31st December
2003: 356,360,000) had not yet been obtained. After consultation made with the Company’s legal
adviser, the Company’s Board of Directors consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group and
the Company to apply for and obtain the Buildings Ownership Certificates and it should not lead to
any significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group and the Company. Accordingly. no
provision for fixed assets impairment was considered necessary.

For certain buildings of the Group located on parcels of allocated lands granted by local governments,
please refer to Note 16 for details.
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14 FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (CONT’D)

(b) Company

Original cost
Beginning of Period
Transfer in from construction
in progress (unaudited)
Additiens (unaudited)
Disposals (unaudited)

End of Period (unaudited)
Accumulated depreciation

Beginning of Period

Charge for the Period (unaudited)

Disposal (unaudited)

Erd of Period (unandited)
Impairment loss

Beginning of Period

Charge for the Period (unaudited)

End of Period (unaudited)

Net book value
Beginning of Period

End of Period (unaudited)
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Land and Plant and Motor Other
buildings machinery vehicles equipment Total
552,749,378 1,194,828.887 144,821,347 99,069,140 1.991,468.752
1,634,313 14,453,713 — 42,220 16,130.246
11,388,118 7,386,345 3,154.497 5,084,430 27,013,390
(6,316,032) (6,232,922) (2,388,000} (1.488,584) (16.425.538)
559,455,777 1,210,436,023 145,587,844 102,707,206 2,018.186.850
161,482,164 746,479,880 69,888,024 48.651,071  1.026,501,139
8,717,307 25,707,714 8,229,183 6.889,531 49,543,737
(2,517,464 (4,322,268) (1,174.600) (1,342,163) (9.356,495)
167,682,007 767,865,326 76,942,609 54,198,439 1.066,688.381
— 6,884,800 5,950 — 6,890,750
- (11,038) — — (11,038)
— 6,873,762 5,950 — 6,879.712
391,267,214 441,464,207 74,927,373 30.418.069 958,076.863
391,773,770 435,696,935 48,508,767 944,618,757

68,639,285




15 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(Unaudited)
Proportion
of amount
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited)  invested to
Budgeted  Beginning (Unaudited) Transfer to (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  Sourceof  budgeted
Construction project amount of Period Additien  fixed assets Transfer out End of Period financing amount
Plant 1 production line 49.410,000 22,948,560 9,317,579 — — 32206139 Iniernally 65.3%
improvement generated
fund
Plant 2 production line 20014500 11000743 5774190 (15.186.478) — 1678457 fnternally 8.4%
improvement generated
fund
Plant 4 production line 2,183,000 639,000 824,349 —~ —~ 1463349 Internally 67%
improvement generated
fund
New factory plant 32.117.000  27.322.606 - — (680,960) 26,641,646 Internally 83%
generated
fund
Malt production line 58.420.000  5.930.876 530,049 (943.270) — 3517153 Internally 9.4%
improvement generated
fund
Qthers 432,000 415.580 — - — 415,580 Internally 96%
generaled
fund
Company total 162,576,500 68,347,365 16,446,167 (16,130,246 (630,960}  67.982,326
Xian Company production 31905736 11310105 8828724 (8903.368) (3313971 10702064  Internally 4%
line improvement generated
fund
Xingkaihu Company 345.753 394421 132,959 {40,803) - 486,573 Bank loans 57%
production line
improvement
Roageheng Company 36,200,000 42,789 261812 (79.535) (6.940) 218,105 lnternally 0.6%
production line generaled
improvement fund
Huangshi Company 92,068,543 78.164,209 13,602,615  (91,766,884) — —  Bank loans —
production line
improvement
Sanshui Company 31,000,000 465008 2220122 (383.227)  (383.622) 1916341 lntecaally 6.2%
production line generated
improvemeat fund
Tengzhou Company 5234000 1326233 686.311  (1,332.990) 217,402 877,016 Internaily 17%
production line generated
improvement fund
Zhuhai Company 44023053 28.336,203 1367419 (28.213.106) — 1490606  Intemally 34%
production line generated
improvement fund
No. § Company 12367568 532277 1492353 (331,041)  662,899)  6.821,186  Imernally 35%
production line generaied
improvement fund
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15 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONT’D)

Construction project

Penglai Company
production line
improvement

Chenzhou Company
production line
improvement

Weifeng Company
production line
improvement

Shouguang Company
production Jine
improvement

Three Ring Company
production line
improvement

Five Star Company
production line
improvement

Shenzhien Asahi Company
production line
improvement

Langfang Company
production line
improvement

Luzhou Company
production line
improvement

Fuzhou Company
production line
improvement

Changsha Company
production line
improvement

Suizhou Company
production line
improvement

Mishan Company
production fine
improvement

Gther subsidiaries
production line
improvement

Group total

(Unaudited) (Uinaudited)

Budgeted  Beginning (Unaudited)  Transfer to  (Unaudited) (Unaudifed)
amsunt of Period Addition  fixed assets  Transfer out End of Period
37.500.000 — 4,684 — — 4,684
20,000 — 18,357 — - 18,357
1,335,000 88,899 647,011 — — 735910
3.711.200 1,019,908 1,893,902 (1,231,962 (63,385 1,618,463
4,828,209 2.477.784 961,571 (61,538 — 3377817
3,104.680 1,657,656 1.493.018 (928.934) (429972) 1791768
6.219,000 55,040 613,882 — - 668.922
12,710,000 118,487 9,532,024 (9.650,511) - -
6381270 1446336 4175740 {103,709) — 5518367
16,542912  10473.927 1432808 (1.524.114) — 10,382,621
26,698,200 — 12413430 - — 22413430
350.000 — 702280 (696.000) (6.230) —
450,000 — 325554 — - 325554
72.829,155 3,944,420 15765448 (4.932.019) (§75.993) 13,901,761

609,424,779 214,991,772 105,998,193 (166.314,105)  {3,423.986)
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151,251,874

{Unaudited)
Source of
financing

Iniernally
generated
fund

Internally
generated
fund

[nternally
generated
fund

[nternally
generated
fund

Internally
generated
fund

loternally
generated
fund

Internally
generated
fund

Internally
generated
fund

Internally
generated
fund

Bank loans

Internally
generated
fund

[nternally
generated
fund

Internally
generated
fund

Tnternally
generated
fund

{Unandited)
Proportion
of amount
invested to
budgeted
amount

0.01%

44%

70%

38%

86%

63%

19%




15 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONT’D)

16

To the extent that the funds are specifically borrowed and used to finance the acquisition and construction
of fixed assets and construction in progress, the capitalisation rates used to determine the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as part of the costs of the related assets was 4.78% per annum
(31st December 2003: 4.78% per annum). During the Period, the Group capitalised approximately 375,000
(31st December 2003: 1,815,000) of its borrowing costs in the construction in progress.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a)

(b)

Group
(Unaudited) Remaining
(Unaudited) Aceumulated Beginning  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited}  (Unaudited) vears of Source of
Original cost  amortisation of Period Additions  Amortisation End of Period amortisation financing
{year)
Trademarks 129912382 (33.262,306)  99.140.864 424,185 (2914.973)  96.650,076 25-19 Injection by
shareholders and
acquisition of
subsidiaries
Land use rights 663,790,114 {110.813.806)  556.985.634 1,326,804 (5,336.130) 552,976,308 9—495 Purchase and
acquisition of
subsidiaries
Technology 18,629,100 {9.314548) 10,246,006 — (931.454) 9.314.552 3 Injection from
know-fow minority
shareholders
Qthers 12926746 (7.107.082y  (8763.08¢ 9.250.851 (21942730 25.819,664 0—95 Purchase and
acquisition of
subsidiaries
Total 845,258,342 (160.497.742)  685.135.590 11,001,840 (11,376.830)  684.760.600
Company
{Unaudited) Remaining
{Unaudited) Accumulated Beginning  (Unaudited)  (Unacdited)  (Unaudited) years of Source of
Original cost ~ amortisation of Period Additions  Amertisation End of Period  amortisation financing
(year)
Trademarks 100,000,000  (27,499.967)  73.750,033 - {1.250,000)  72.500,033 9 Injection by
shareholders
Land use rights 87411367 (19.138.446)  69.147.034 — 874.113) 68272921 39 Acquisition
Others 8.972.913 (1.731.647) 7.617.642 51,000 (447.371) 7.221.271 0—935 Acquisition
Total 196,384,280 (48.390.035) 150514709 51,000 (2.571484) 147,994,225

As at 30th June 2004, the land use rights certificates (“Land Certificates™) for certain lands of the
Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately 35,145,000 (31st December 2003: 35,499.000)
had not yet been obtained. After consultation with the Company’s legal adviser, the Company’s Board
of Directors consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group (o apply for and obtain the Land
Certificates and it should not lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.
Accordingly, no provision for intangible assets impairment was considered necessary.

In additien, as at 30 June 2004, certain operating facilities of the Group were located on parcels of
allocated land (“Allocated Land”) granted by certain local municipal governments to the previous
operating parties of the facilities. As at 30th June 2004, the carrying values of the associated buildings
and facilities constructed thereon were approximately 119,694,000 (31st December 2003: 136,317,000).
The Group is in the process of applying for the transfer of the legal title of these Allocated Land to the
Group.

In the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors, the underlying value of these assets was not less
than its carrying value in the books of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2004 and no
impairment provided.
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17 LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

(a) Group
(Unaudited)
{Unaudited) Accumulated Beginning  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited}  (Unaudited)  Remaining years
original cost  amortisation of Period Additions  Amortisation End of Period of amortisation
(year)
Advertising expenses of
the Company 3,000,000 (925.000) 2.225,000 — {£50,000) 2,075,000 6.5
Xian Company-greenery
expenditures 2225117 (1,241,697 1,097,924 — (114504) 983,420 4.5
Anqiu Company-building
usage rights 1,570,681 (928,407 733,593 — ©(91.319) 642,274 35
Yingcheng Company-
improvement expenses 2000000 (1,566,698) 633,306 — (200.004) 433,302 1
Others 3.595.339 (1.877.15% 1,394,539 701,970 {378,329y 1,718,180 03
Totat 12,391,137 (6.538.961) 6.084.362 701970 (934,156} 3,852,176
(b) Company
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)  Accumulated Beginning  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  Remaining years
Origina) cost  amortisation of Period Additions  Amortisation End of Period of amortisation
{year)
Advertising expenses of
the Company 3,000,000 (925,000) 2,225,000 — (150,000) 2.075.000 7
Others 506,000 (202,400) 354,200 - (50,6009 303,600 3
Total 3506000 (1,127.400) 2,579.200 — (200,600) 2.378,600

18 LOANS

Borrowing rate of the Group and the Company are determined based on the announced rate of the People’s
Bank of China.

(a) Short-term loans and current portion of long-term loans

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December

2004 2003 2004 2003

Secured loans 16,000,000 1,105,557 — —
Guaranteed loans

— by related parties 39,764,000 4,617,237 20,530,000 4,617,237

— by the Company 159,268,525 374,682,525 — —

Loans on open credit 1,078,652,504 083,593,226 827,670,000 599,899,000

1,293,685,029 1,363,998,545 848,200,000 604,516,237

Short-term loans 1,246,664,700 1,302,612,990 827,670,000 579,369,000
Current portion of

long-term loans 47,020,329 61,385,555 20,530,000 25,147,237

Total 1,293,685,029 1,363,998,545 848,200,000 604,516,237

As at 30th June 2004, the Group had no overdue short-term loans that had not yet been repaid.
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18 LOANS (CONT’D)

(b) Long-term bank loans

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Guaranteed loans 19,234,000 23,564,000 19,234,000 23,564,000
Loans on open credit 27,280,815 30,219,722 — —
Total 46,514,815 53,783,722 19,234,000 23,564,000
Repayment term analysis:
Group Company
Bank loans Bank loans
Foreign Foreign
currency RMB currency RMB
Loan terms balances Exchange rate equivalents balances Exchange rate equivalents
Maturity within one
(o two )'CEFS
— Danish Krone 400.000 1.3461 538,440 — — —
— Euro 158.618 10.0031 1,586,670 — — —
— RMB — — 19,234,000 — - 19,234,000
Maturity within two
to three years
— Danish Krone 400.000 1.3461 538,440 — - —
— Euro 158.618 10.0031 1.586.670 — — -
— RMB — — — — — -
Maturity within three
{o five years
— Danish Krone 800,000 1.3461 1,076,880 — - . —
— Euro 317,233 10.0031 3,173,333 — — —
— RMB — — — — — —
Maturity over
five years
— Danish Krone 5,000.000 1.3461 6.730.500 — — —
— Euro 1.184.621 10.0031 11.849.882 — — -
— RMB — - 200,000 — — —
Total 46.514.813 19.234.000
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18 LOANS (CONT’D)

(c) As at 30th June 2004, pursuant to the debt restructuring agreements or acquisition agreements of
certain subsidiaries, interest charges to be levied on approximately 19.234,000 (31st December 2003:
49,394,000) and 19,234,000 (31st December 2003: 44,094,000) of the loan balance of the Group and
of the Company, respectively, were waived by the lenders at no consideration. The remaining outstanding
loan balances are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 4.78% to 5.31% per annum (31st December
2003: 1.63% to 6.90%).

As at 30th June 2004, approximately 16,000,000 (31st December 2003: 1,106,000) of the loans of the
Group are secured by buildings, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and other equipment with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately 97,527,000 (31st December 2003: secured by fixed deposits
of approximately 28,000,000).

Most of the bank financing of the Group is in the form of short-term bank loans. As a result, the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately 624,499,000 (31st December 2003: 742,431,000) as
at 30th June 2004. The Board of Directors of the Company is confident that the Group will have
sufficient operating cash inflows and be able to renew its short-term facilities upon maturity or to
identify new sources of financing to replace the current short-term facilities.

19 NOTES PAYABLE

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Commercial bills 88,681,016 117,585,257 82,543,600 99,384,500
Bank drafts 407,616,524 407.864.252 —_ —
Total 496,297,540 525,449,509 82,543,600 99,384,500

The bank drafts of the Group and the Company will reach maturity within 6 months after the balance sheet
date,

20 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS, AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Group and the Company did not have any payable balances which were due to parties having 5% or
above shareholdings in the Company. The accounts payable and other payables aged over 3 years were
mainly due to balances acquired from subsidiaries upon acquisition. Advances from customers aged over |
year were mainly deposits for purchases.

21 TAXES PAYABLE

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December

2004 2003 2004 2003

Value added tax payable, net 56,010,069 10,757,817 24,074,981 4,509,948
Enterprise income tax

payable 40,308,554 47,519,934 21,595,688 23,972,519

Consumption tax payable 145,336,043 111,646,338 11,117,461 9,676,964
City maintenance and

construction tax payable 10,563,120 4,107,052 4,516,361 2,256.937

Others 5,640,536 6,698,686 2,951,830 4,752,068

Total 257,858,322 180,729,827 64,256,321 45,168,436
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22 ACCRUED EXPENSES

Group Company
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)

30th June 3]st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003

Selling and transportation
expenses 124,142,451 18,423,591 60,269,623 2,555,370
Interest expense 10,090,872 11,241,335 6,723,293 8,595,201
Repairs and maintenance 31,245,170 3,638,615 6,755,930 —
Utilities 7,982,408 3,908,260 267,877 —
Advertising expenses 25,273,314 17,576,942 17,000,000 3,512.492
Others 38,938,942 8,062,864 6,998,895 3,693,035
Total 237,673,157 62,851,607 98,015,618 18.356,098

23 PROVISIONS
(Unaudited)

30th June 31st December
2004 2003

Potential litigation with Qindao Guangming Company

(“Guangming Company™) (a) 27,000,000 —_—
Potential litigation with Qindao Yuanyang Xianghe

Trading Company (“Xianghe Company™) (b) 23,784,000 —
Others 284,422 —
Total 51,068,422 —

(a) Pursuant to a court verdict ruled by Shandong Province Higher People’s Court (*Shandong Higher
Court™) on 2nd April 2004, the Company was required to pay Guangming Company. a distributor, in
an aggregate of approximately 27,000.000 as loss from breaching of a distribution contract. The
Company appealed to the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC during the legal period for appeal. As of
the date of this report, the appealing procedures are currently in progress and no judgement from the
Supreme People’s Court of the PRC had been delivered. For the sake of prudence, Board of Directors
of the Company have fully accrued for 27,000,000 in the profit and loss account.

(b) Pursuant to a court verdict ruled by Shandong Higher Court on 19th April 2004, the Company was
required to pay Xianghe Company, a third party, in an aggregate of approximately 23,784,000 as
compensation for a dispute arising from a commodity barter contract between the Company and
Xianghe Company. The Company appealed to the Shandong Higher Court during the legal period for
appeal. As of the date of this report, the appealing procedures are currently in progress and no
judgment from the Shandong Higher Court had been delivered. For the sake of prudence, the Board of
Directors of the Company have fully accrued for 23.784,000 in the profit and loss account.
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24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

44

(a) Convertible bonds

Mandatory  Discounted net {Unaudited)
Type Face value Date of issue  conversion date present value  30th June 2004
Mandatory CB Tranche [] 665,813,304 Ist April 2003 31st March 2010 — 665,813,304
Mandatory CB Tranche 111 Part | 269,817,965  2ist October 2003 20th October 2010 — 269,817,965
Mandatory CB Tranche 1 Part 2 269,817,965  31st March 2004  30th March 2011 — 269,817,965

1,205,449,234

(b) Refundable bond interests

(Unaudited)
Type Interest payable (Unaudited) (Unaudited) Interest payable
at beginning Accrual Paid at the end
of the period for the Period during the Period of the Period

Mandatory convertible
bonds 4,513,880 9,087,172 (7.440,422) 6,160,630

On 21st October 2002, the Company and A-B Company, entered into the Strategic Investment Agreement,
pursuant to which A-B Company is obliged to subscribe for 3 tranches of mandatory CB to be issued by the
Company with an aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$1,416,195,000 (RMB1,503,448,000),
commencing from 2003, The CB are convertible into 308.219,178 new H Shares issuable by the Company
as follows:

Tranche 1 of the CB (*Tranche I'*)

The total subscription amount of Tranche I is HKS$280,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB297,999,000) which was issued to A-B Company in April 2003, Tranche I was converted into 60,000,000
new H shares issued by the Company at HK$4.68 (equivalent to approximately RMB4.96) per share on 2nd
July 2003. Tranche I was interest-free.

Tranche I1 of the CB (“Tranche IT)

The total subscription amount of Tranche II is HK$627,120,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB665,813.000) which was issued to A-B Company in April 2003 concurrently with the issuance of
Tranche 1. Tranche II can be converted into 134,000,000 new H shares at HK$4.68 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4.96) per share within seven years after the payment of the subscriptions. The CB will
be automatically converted at the end of the seven-year conversion Period (“Expiry Date”) if A-B Company
does not trigger the conversion before the Expiry Date. Tranche Il is interest-bearing at 2% per annum. A-
B Company will refund all the interests received as well as all related deductions or withholdings associated
with the interest payments made by the Company upon conversion.

As at the date of approval of the report, A-B Company has not exercised its conversion right.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)
Tranche II1 of the CB (“Tranche I11")

The total subscription amount of Tranche 111 is HK$508,275,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB539.636.000) which was issued to A-B Company by several instalments in October 2003 and in
March 2004, Tranche 111 can be converted into 114,219,178 new H shares at HK$4.45 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4.72) per share within seven years after the payment of the subscriptions. The CB will
be automatically converted at the end of the Expiry Date if A-B Company does not trigger the conversion
before the Expiry Date. Tranche 111 is interest-bearing at 2% per annum. A-B Company will refund all the
interests received as well as all related deductions or withholdings associated with the interest payments
made by the Company upcn conversion.

As at the date of approval of the report. A - B Company has not exercised its conversion right.

Upon the conversion of each of Tranche 1, Tranche 1 and Tranche 1T of the CB, the percentage shareholding
of Qingdao State-owned Assets Administration Bureau ("Qingdao Bureau™), the existing substantial
shareholder of the Company, has decreased/will decrease from approximately 40.0% to approximately
37.7%, 33.5% and 30.6%, respectively, whereas the holding of A-B Company in the Company has increased/
will increase from approximately 4.5% to 9.9%, 20.0% and 27.0%, respectively. However, the additional
7% of the shareholding held by A-B Company after the conversion of Tranche HI will be subject to a
voting trust arrangement in favour of Qingdao Bureau whereby A-B Company will enjoy the economic
benefits associated with the shares but Qingdao Bureau can exercise the respective voting rights at its sole
discretion. Accordingly. Qingdao Bureau, through its trustee, will be entitled to exercise the voting rights
attached 10 such shareholding at general meetings of holders of state shares and PRC legal person shares
and PRC public shares (H shares) class meetings of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Percentage (%) Percentage (%)
Unlisted shares
Founding person:
Including: State shares 399,820,000 37.72% 399,820,000 37.72%
PRC legal
person shares 53,330,000 5.03% 53,330,000 5.03%
453,150,000 42.75% 453,150,000 42.75%
Listed shares
PRC public shares in RMB
(“A Shares™) 200,000,000 18.87% 200,000,000 18.87%
Overseas public shares
(“H Shares™) 406,850,000 38.38% 406,850,000 38.38%
606,850,000 57.25% 606,850,000 57.25%
Total 1,060,000,000 100.00 % 1,060,000.000 100.00%
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26 CAPITAL SURPLUS

(a) Group

Beginning (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

balance Increase  Ending balance

Share premium 1,771,139,906 — 1.771,139.906
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 6,304,398 — 6,304,398
Assets donations received 4,871,808 — 4,871,808
Equity investment difference (/) — 23,819,242 23,819,242
Forfeited payables balances of subsidiaries 11,743,649 1,258,584 13,002,233
Others 4.817,221 2,039,642 6,856,863
Total 1.798,876,982 27,117,468 1.825,994.450

(b) Company

Beginning (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

balance Increase  Ending balance

Share premium 1,771,139,906 — 1,771,139,906
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 56,043,498 — 56,043,498
Assets donations received 4,871,808 — 4,871,808
Equity investment differences (i) — 23,819,242 23,819,242
Forfeited payables balances of subsidiaries 11,743,649 1,258,584 13,002,233
Others 4,817,221 2,039,642 6,856,863
Total 1,848,616,082 27,117,468 1,875,733,550

(i) The equity investment differences were equity investment differences arising from acquisition of 30%
equity interest in Nanning Company by Huanan Holding, please refer to Note 5(¢)(1) for details.

27 RESERVES

(a) Group
(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Statutory surplus reserve fund 218,185,385 218,185,385
Statutory public welfare fund 176,978,672 176,978,672
Total 395,164,057 395,164,057
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27 RESERVES (CONT’'D)

(b) Company

(Unaudited)
36th June 2004 31st December 2003
Statutory surplus reserve fund 151,280,901 151,280,901
Statutory public welfare fund 122,011,680 122,011,680
Total - 273,292,581 273,292.58]

In accordance with the provision of the Company Laws in the PRC, the articles of association of the
Company and board resofution passed by the Company. the Company appropriates 10% of its annual
profits (after offsetting any accumulated deficits) to a statutory surplus reserve, unti} the reserve
reaches 50% of the issued capital of the Company. With the approval obtained from the relevant
government authorities, the surplus reserve can be utilised to offset any deficit or 10 increase the share
capital of the Company, provided that the remaining balance of the reserve, after such uvtilisations,
does nat fall below 25% of the issued capital balance.

In addition, the Company also appropriates its profits of 5% to 10%, after offsetting any accumulated
deficits, to a statutory public welfare fund. The fund is designated for the use of staff welfare and it is
not distributable as dividends, Upon consumption of the fund, an equivalent amount has to be transferred
from the fund 1o a discretionary surplus reserve.

No appropriation to statutory surplus reserve fund or statutory public welfare fund during this Period
in the Group and the Company.

28 UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003

Undistributed profits at
beginning of Period/year 259,760,239 108,828,477 359,653,103 163,428,623
Retrospective adjustment
— cash dividends
approved by the
general meeting
subsequent to the
balance shect date — 220,000,000 — 220,000,000

Undistributed profits at
beginning of Period/year
as restated, after
retrospective prior year

adjustments 259,760,239 328,828,477 359,653,103 383,428.623
Add: Net profit for the
current Period/year 148,250,561 253,871,661 149,013,610 245,280,600

Less: profit appropriation

to statutory surplus

reserve fund — (55,530,809 — (24,528.,060)
Less: profit appropriation

(o statutory public

welfare fund — (47.409,090) — (24,528,060)
Less: Dividends (212,000,060) (220,000,000) (212,000,000) (220.000.000)

Undistributed profits
at end of Period/year 196,010,800 259,760,239 296,666,713 359,653,103
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29 REVENUE FROM MAIN OPERATIONS AND COST OF MAIN OPERATIONS

48

(a) Business segment

(b

=

The sole principal activity of the Group and the Company is the production and distribution of beer
products and the profit from other operations attributed to less than 10% of the consolidated net profit
of the Group. Accordingly, no analysis of business segment information is provided.

Geographical segment

Revenue from main operations
Tsingtao region

Other Shandong region

Hua Bei China region

Hua Nan China region

Overseas

Sub-total

Intra-segment elimination

Total

Cost of main operations
Tsingtao region

Other Shandong region
Hua Bei China region
Hua Nan China region
Overseas

Sub-total

Iater-segment elimination

Total

Group
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Six months ended Six months ended
30th June 30th June
2004 2003
1,300,030,916 1,082.293,059
604,088,389 607,474,545
1,176,726,236 922,265,465
1,342,837,557 1,243,984,922
154,034,999 229,574,634
4,577,718,097 4,085,592.625
(240,023,177) (250,130,390)

4,337,694,920

3,835,462,035

691,910,711 615,668,400
407,202,573 405,880,435
777,389,350 599,990,960
793,418,528 749,224,005
82,102,282 137,861,962
2,752,023,444 2,508,625,762
(240,023,177) (250.130,590)
2,512,000,267 2,258,495,172

No geographical analysis of the Company is provided as most of the sales and cost of sales incurred
by the Company were attributable to markets within the Tsingtao region.

For the six months ended 30th June 2004, sales made to the five largest customers of the Group and
the Company amounting to approximately 273,292,000 and 246,371,000, respectively. being 6.30%
and 17.53% of the turnover of the Group and the Company (for the six months ended 30th June 2003:
350,842,000 and 277,427,000, being 9.15% and 21.48%, respectively).
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30 TAX AND LEVIES ON MAIN OPERATIONS

31

32

Group Company
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Basis of Period ended Period ended Period ended Period ended
accrual 30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June
2004 2003 2004 2003
Consumption tax Refer to
Note 36(d) 400,817,171 349,860,509 63,433,673 52,785.14})
City maintenance
and construction ]
tax Refer to
Note 36(c} 42,901,462 34,850,949 12,647,635 9,144,945
Others 21,386,450 17,588,241 5,682,093 3,889,312
Total 465,105,083 402,299,699 81,763,401 65,819,398
PROFIT FROM OTHER OPERATIONS
Group Company
{Unaudited) (Unaudited} (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months ended  Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended
30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June
2004 2003 2004 2003
Other operating income
Sale of materials 27,318,996 1,732.219 96,032,560 196,623.320
Sale of scraps 9,215,884 7,055,163 1,647,782 632,458
Others 25,246,965 10,607,925 4,224,674 2,285,195
Sub-total 61,781,845 16,365,307 101,905,016 159,540,973
Other pperating expenses
Sale of materials 27,475,653 3,050,581 97,528,869 197.520.028
Sale of scraps 2,809,176 1,477,414 1,424,976 632,458
Others 15,716,657 7.621,879 1,890,098 714,572
Sub-rotal 46,001,486 12,149,874 100,843,943 198,867,058
Profit from other operations 15,780,359 7,245,433 1,061,073 673,915
FINANCE EXPENSES
Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Interest expense
Less: Interest income
— others
Exchange differences, net
Others

Total

Six months ended  Six months ended
30th June 2004 30th June 2003

Six months ended Six months ended
30th June 2004 30th June 2003

(34,528,190) (67,848.827) (18,927,219) (20.,768,265)
6,916,968 6,055,230 1,718,296 1,400,634
3,071,284 (3,276,186) 2,602,093 (1,478,440)
(2,511,980) (1,932.126) (1,774,413) (2.836,903)

(27,051,918} (67,001,909) (16,381,243) (23,682.974)
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35
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INVESTMENT INCOME

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months ended  Six months ended Six months ended  Six months ended
30th June 2004 30th June 2003 30th June 2004 30th June 2003

Equity share in profits

(losses) of subsidiaries — — 24,809,516 (2,492,031)
Equity share in (losses)

profits of associated

companies (4,146,171) (3,318.885) 456,328 75,973
Income from debt

investments 97,978 983,652 97,978 983,652
Amortisation of equity

investment differences 10,133,610 11,737,678 7,986,297 8,376,914
Interest income from

entrusted loans — — 10,777,660 —
Others {1,598,421) 20112 1,712,538 —
Total 4,486,996 9,423,557 45,840,317 6,944,508

There are no significant restrictions on the repatriation of investment income of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

SUBSIDY INCOME

During the acquisitions of certain subsidiaries of the Group in the current Period and prior years, the
Group entered into various agreements with the relevant municipal governments. Under the terms of these
agreements, these subsidiaries can enjoy certain financial incentives granted by the relevant municipal
governments, including financial subsidies determined based on the amounts of various taxes paid by the
subsidiaries.

The Company’s Board of Directors are not aware of any reasons that the said financial subsidies will not
be available to the subsidiaries in the future,

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Group Company

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months ended  Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended
30th June 2004 30th June 2003 30th June 2004 30th June 2003

Non-operating income

Gain on disposal of

fixed assets 2,749,462 1,491,424 31,574 187,106
QOthers 2,719,134 2,188,030 112,059 413,677
Total 5,468,596 3,679,454 143,633 600,783

Non-operating expenses

Compensation and penalty 50,992,521 — 30,903,366 —
Loss on disposal of

fixed assets 9,370,205 5,948,642 7,018,769 869,314
Provision for impairment

of fixed assets 46,919,496 24,001,718 — —_
Others 1,330,135 5,465,504 150,000 2,671,214
Total 108,612,357 35,415,864 58,072,075 3,540,528
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36 INCOME TAXATION

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended
36th June 2004 30th June 2003 30th June 2004 30th June 2003

PRC Enterprise Income

Tax (a) 74,483,833 54,437,013 30,678,556 19.511.684
Hong Kong profits tax (b) 1,452,777 478.130 — —
Total 75,936,610 54,915.143 30,678,556 19,511,684
(a) PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(b)

(c)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is provided on the estimated assessable income for the Period
calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering all the available
tax benefits and allowances.

In accordance with an approval document dated 18th April 1994 issued by the State Administration for
Taxation, net profit earned by the Company is subject to profits tax at 15% effective from the date of
establishment of the Company. This rate will remain effective until and unless the enterprise income
tax law and regulations change otherwise. The Company received a confirmation from the Qingdao
Ministry of Finance on 23rd March 1997 stating that this preferential tax treatment would not be
terminated unti] further notice.

Sanshui Company, Chenzhou Company and Shenzhen Asahi are approved as foreign invested enterprises
and therefore, they are exempt from EIT for two years starting from the first year of profitable
operations after offsetting prior year tax losses, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years.
It has been the fifth, third and fourth year of profitable operations for Sanshui Company, Chenzhou
Company and Shenzhen Asahi respectively.

Shenzhen Sales Company is exempted from EIT for the first year starting from the first year of
profitable operations after offsetting prior year tax losses. followed by a 50% reduction for the next
two years. Current year was the fourth year of profitable operations after offsetting all the prior year
tax losses of Shenzhen Sales Company, and it no longer privileged this preferential tax treatment.

Zhuhai Company and Xitamen Company are established and operated in the Zhuhai and Xiamen
Special Economic Zones respectively, accordingly, they are subject to EIT at a rate of 15%.

Other subsidiaries of the Group which are established and operated in the PRC are subject to EIT at a
rate of 33% based on their respective assessable income for the Period.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (30th June 2003: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the Period.

Value-added tax (“VAT”)

According to the PRC value-added tax temporary regulations (VAT Regulations”), the Group is
subject to output value-added tax (“output VAT™) which is calculated at 17% of the sales amount of
tangible goods. The Group also pays input VAT on its purchases of raw material and auxiliary materials,
which is deducted against output VAT in arriving at the net VAT amount payable to the PRC Government.
In addition, the Group accrues and pays for city maintenance and construction tax and educational
surcharge based on 7% and 3% of net VAT amount payable, respectively.
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36 INCOME TAXATION (CONT’D)
(d) Consumption tax

The Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the State Administration of Taxation issued the “Notice for
changes in consumption tax for alcoholic products” (Caishui {20011 No. 84), which states that for beer
with an ex-factory price (including packaging material and related deposits) over RMB3,000 per ton,
the consumption tax is RMB250 per ton. For all the other beer sold, the consumption tax is levied at
RMB220 per ton.

37 DIVIDENDS
During the Period, the Company’s shareholders approved the payment of a final dividend of 212,000,000

for 2003 at the annual general meeting (RMBG.20 per share). The directors do not recommend the payment
of an interim dividend for the six months ended 30th June 2004 (six months ended 30th June 2003: Nil).

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Six menths ended Six months ended

30th June 30¢h June

2004 2003

Dividend paid — 87,732,000
Dividends proposed and declared
2003 final: RMBO0.20 per share

(2002 final: RMBO0.22 per share) 212,000,000 220,000,000

The final dividend for 2003 of RMBO0.20 per share was proposed on 1st April 2004. As at 30th June 2004,
the dividend distribution progress has not been completed.

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The name and relationship with the Group of the related parties with no control relationship but with
transactions or balances outstanding are as follows:

Name of company Relationship with the Group

Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Lid. Certain common directors and a common
major shareholder

Tsingtao Brewery Shi Ye Co., Lid. Certain common directors and a common
major shareholder

Tsingtao Brewery Real Estate Co., Ltd. Certain common directors and a ¢common
major shareholder

Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Co., Ltd. Certain common directors and a common
major shareholder

Tsingtao Brewery Advertising Co., Ltd. Certain common directors and & common
major shareholder

Tsingtao Brewery Trading Co., Lid. Certain common directors and a common
major shargholder

Tsingtao Brewery Property Management Co., Ltd. Certain common directors and a common
major shareholder

Tsingtao Brewery (Zhangzhou) Company Limited Certain common directors and a common
major shareholder

Xian Hans Beverages Company Limited Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

Name of company Relationship with the Group

Asahi Breweries Limited Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Itochu Corporation Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Sumikin Bussan Corporation Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Jiangsu Peixian State Owned Operations Company Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Shandong Weifang Lanzai Brewery Company Limited Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Sichuan Huo Ju Hua Gong Company Limited Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Beijing Asia Shuang He Sheng Three Ring Beer Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

Company Limited

Beijing Asia Shuang He Sheng Five Star Beer Group Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Company

Zhuhai Doumen Huang Mei Enterprise Group Company Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Fuzhou Brewery Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Carlsberg Asia Private Company Limited Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
A - B Company Major investor

Tsingtao Brewery (Guangzhou) General Agency Co, Ltd. Associated company

Beijing Tsingtao Brewery General Agency Co. Ltd. Associated company

Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou) Company Limited Associated company

Qinghua International Associated company

Liaoning Shenging Tsingtao Brewery Sales Company Limited Associated company

Nanning Company Associated company
Tsingtao Beer Asahi Beverage Company Limited Associated company
Liaoning Anshan Municipal Light State Owned Assets Minority shareholder of a subsidiary

Operating Co. Ltd

China Railway Construction Corporation Railway Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
Transportation Division

Except for A-B Company, none of the above related companies own any equity interest in the Company
during the Period.
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

related and associated companies:

Sales of goods:

Liaoning Shenging Tsingtao Brewery Sales
Company Limited

Nanning Company

Tsingtao Brewery Shi Ye Co., Ltd.

Qinghua International

Tsingtao Brewery (Yangzhou) Company Limited

Purchases of goods:
Qinghua International
Tsingtao Brewery Trading Co., Ltd.
Shandong Weifang Lanzai Brewery Company Limited
Tsingtao Brewery (Zhangzhou) Co., Lid.

Tsingtao Brewery Shi Ye Co., Ltd.
Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Co., Lid.

Advertising services provided by a related company:

Tsingtao Brewery Advertising Co., Ltd.

Equipment installation service provide to
a related company by the Group:

Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Co., Ltd.

Equipment installation services provided to the Group:

Tsingtao Brewery Engineering Co., Lid.

Guarantees provided by related companies
for the Group’s bank loans:

Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Ltd.
Asahi Breweries Limited, Itochu Corporation,
Sumikin Bussan Corporation

(a) For the six months ended 30th June 2004, the Group had the following material transactions with

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Six months ended Six months ended
30th June 30th June
2004 2003
74,747,233 40,582,785
5,018,054 —
313,118 —
3,031,101 2,199,569
— 47,768
83,109,506 42,830,122
80,738,288 33,303,875
12,176,544 6.281,831
48,272 180,975
20,475,045 _
4,288,731 —
256,952 —
117,983,832 39,766,681
— 470,633

110,109 —
688,623 79.800
39,764,000 125,000,000
— 125,000,000
39,764,000 250,000,000

(i) The pricing of all the sales or purchases made to/from related parties by the Group is determined

based on market price.

(ii) Tsingtao Brewery Group Co., Ltd. has provided a guarantee for the accounts receivable repayment
plan of 105,000,000 due from a customer and Tsingtao Brewery (Guangzhou) General Agency
Co., Ltd.. As at 30th June 2004, approximately £3,808,000 of the balance (deducting the related
provisions) was still outstanding, please refer to Note 8(c) and 38(b).
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) As at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following significant current balances with related and
associated companies:

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Included in short-term
investment {entrusted
loans) (i):
Tsingtao Brewery
(Yangzhou) Company
Limited 56,450,000 66,450,000 56,450,000 66,450,000

Included in accounts
receivable and
long-term accounts
receivable:

Tsingtao Brewery

(Guangzhou) General

Agency Co., Lid.

((a)(ii}) 82,560,810 86,860,810 82,560,810 86,860.810
Beijing Tsingtao

Brewery General

Agency Co., Ltd. 11,245,784 11,245,784 11,245,784 11,245.784
Tsingtao Brewery Shi
Ye Company Limited 1,588,376 1,553,781 1,588,376 1,553,781

Tsingtao Brewery
(Yangzhou) Company

Limited 1,177,728 1,086,850 1,177,728 1,086,850
Nanning Company 5,101,947 — — —
Qinghua International 1,893,809 — 1,893,809 —
Tsingtao Brewery

(Zhangzhou)

Company Limited — 156,000 — 156.000

103,568,454 100,903,225 98,466,507 100,903,225
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) As at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following significant current balances with related and
associated companies: (Cont’d)

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Included in other
receivables:
Nanning Company 21,019,200 — — —
Liaoning Anshan
Municipal Light
State Owned Assets
Operating Co., Ltd 906,533 877,186 —_ —
Sichuan Huo Ju 48,669 2,204.706 — —
Tsingtao Brewery Shi
Ye Company Limited 212,942 208,373 212,942 208,373
Xian Hans Beverages
Company Limited 227,992 126,479 — —
Tsingtao Brewery
Advertising Co., Ltd 12,812 3,037,775 12,812 10,775
Tsingtao Brewery
Group Co., Lid 7,075,757 2,936,756 4,379,147 240,146
Tsingtao Brewery
Engineering Co., Ltd 209,575 248,154 209,575 248,154
Tsingtao Brewery
Trading Co., Ltd 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525 2,938,525
Tsingtao Brewery
(Zhangzhou)
Company Limited 11,900,605 15,524,000 11,500,000 11,500,000

Zhuhai Doumen Huang

Mei Enterprise Group

Company 9,996,279 5,000,000 — —
Fuzhou Brewery Niang

(Singapore) Private

Co., Ltd — 5,679 — —

Tsingtao Brewery Real
Estate Co., Ltd —_ 10,000.000 — 10,000,000
54,548,889 43,107,633 19,253,001 25,145,973
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) As at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following significant current balances with related and
associated companies: (Cont’d)

Group Company
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
30th June 3ist December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Included in advances
to suppliers
Nanning Company 61,442,163 — —_ —
Tsingtao Brewery
(Zhangzhou)
Company Limited 444,104 — - —
Tsingtao Brewery
Engineering Co., Ltd — 1,189,240 — —
61,886,267 1.189,240 — —

Included in advances
from suppliers:

Liaconing Shenging

Tsingtao Brewery

Sales Company

Limited 626,326 3,073,220 626,326 3,073.220
China Railway

Construction

Corporation Railway

Transportation

Division 36,496 — — —
Nanning Company 183,885 — — —
846,707 3,073,220 626,326 3,073,220
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) As at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following significant current balances with related and
associated companies: (Cont’d)

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Included in other payabies
and long-term
accounts payable:
Tsingtao Brewery
Engineering Co., Ltd. 870,334 52,608 154,472 —
Tsingtao Brewery Group
Co., Ltd. 24,599,396 25,099,396 — —

Jiangsu Peixian State

Owned Operations

Company 441,187 441,187 —_ —
Beijing Asia Shuang He

Sheng Five Star Beer

Group Company 25,453,610 50,944,166 — —
Tsingtao Beer Asahi

Beverage Company

Limited 136,618 136,618 136,618 136,618
Tsingtao Brewery Shi

Ye Company Limited 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Tsingtao Brewery

Property Management

Co., Ltd. 3,700 3,700 3,700 3.700
A-B Company (i) 124,150,500 124,047,480 — —
Sichuan Huo Ju 62,730 3,393 — —
Carlsberg Asia Private

Co., Ltd. — 11,822 — 11,822
China Railway

Construction

Corporation Railway

Transportation Division 29,295 — — —
Nanning Company 12,875 — — —

175,768,245 200,748,370 302,790 160,140
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(by As at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following significant current balances with related and
associated companies: (Cont’d)

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Included in accounts
payable:
Tsingtao Brewery
Trading Co., Lid 185,737 2,136,104 185,737 2,136,104
Tsingtao Brewery Shi
Ye Company Limited 97,146 528,410 97,146 450.582
Sichuan Huo Ju 370,730 370,730 — -—
Tsingtao Brewery
Engineering Co., Ltd 256,952 280,892 —_ —
Tsingtao Brewery
Advertising Co., Ltd 13,332 26.664 13,332 26,664

Shandong Weifang

Lanzat Brewery

Company Limited 81,060 82,788 — —
Tsingtao Beer Asahi

Beverage Company

Limited 6,000 12,672 6,000 —
Beijing Asia Shuang He

Sheng Five Star Beer

Group Company — 13,966,225 — —

1,010,957 17,404,485 302,215 2.613,350

Included in notes payable:

Nanning Company 55,000,000 — — —

Except for the amount mentioned in (a) and the loan mentioned in (i) and (ii) below, the Group’s and
the Company’s current balances with related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed repayment term.

(i) As at 30th June 2004, the Company had provided approximately 56,450,000 (31st December
2003: 66.450,000) entrusted loans to an associated company, through the Bank of Communications.
The entrusted loan is interest free, unsecured and it will mature within one year.

(i1) In October 2003, Hong Kong Company entered into a loan agreement with A-B Company, pursuant
to which, Hong Kong Company borrowed a loan of US$15,000.000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB124,151,000) (the “Loan™) from A-B Company. The Loan is interest bearing at 1% per
annum, unsecured and repayable within five years. The Company has undertaken to guarantee the
repayment of the Loan.
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60

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Pursuant to the related policies for housing reform issued by the State Council and Qingdac Municipal
Government in 1998, the policy of allocating staff quarters as a staff welfare was terminated. In replacement,
qualified employees are to be compensated in the form of monetary housing subsidies (“Housing Reform™).
As at 30th June 2004, no formal plan has yet been developed by the Group and the Company, and no plans
had been announced by the Group and the Company to their employees in respect of the arrangements.
After seeking legal advice, the Company’s Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Group and the
Company had no obligation to make any payment or provision for such monetary housing subsidies as at
30th June 2004 and there is no reasonable basis to accrue for any potential liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

The Group’s and the Company’s capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet date but not
recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Group Company

{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Construction projects 29,422,000 33,301,000 10,287,000 13,189,000

Investments and

acquisitions (i} 2,900,000 9,950,000 — —
39,322,000 43,251,000 10,287,000 13,189,000

(1) The capital commitment was for Doumen Company. a subsidiary, to purchase assets from Zhuhai
Doumen Malt Factory (“Doumen Malt Factory™), details refer to Note 41(c).

(b) Operating lease commitments

The future minimum operating lease payment according to the agreement contracted is as following:

Group Company
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Less than one year 2,130,000 — 310,000 —

As detailed in Note 5(d), TB Baoji, a subsidiary of the Group, committed to take up the responsibility
of the related operating cost of Baoji Brewery Company and relevant staff cost of Baoji Alcohol.
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41 SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) In November 2003, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement (the “Transfer Agreement™)
with Canada EVG Enterprises Inc. ("EVG™), pursuant to which EVG will acquire 25% equity interest
in Beijing Tsingtao Brewery Three Ring Company (“Three Ring Company”) owned by the Company.
In February 2004, the Company signed another agreement with EVG to cancel the Transfer Agreement.
The Company and Hong Kong Company instead reached an equity transfer agreement in which the
Company will transfer its 25% equity interest in Three Ring Company to Hong Kong Company at a
consideration of US$8350,000. This transaction in relation to the change of foreign equity interests has
been approved by the government authorities in July 2004. After the transaction, the Company and
Hong Kong Company will hold 29% and 25% equity iaterests of Three Ring Company, respectively.

(b) In May and June 2004, the Company entered into an investmeunt agreement and a supplementary
agreement with Gansu Nongken Brewery Company Limited (“Gansu Nongken™) and its shareholders
that the registered capital of Gansu Nongken is increased. The Company would inject an amount of
approximately 60,481,000 into Gansu Nongken and hold 50% of its equity interests. The change of
business registration relating to the increase of the registered capita] was completed in July 2004,
Gansu Nongken was also renamed as Tsingtao Brewery (Gansu) Company Limited.

{c) In December 2003, Tsingtao Brewery (Doumen) Meit Company Limited (“Doumen Company™), a
subsidiary of the Company. entered into an asset transfer agreement with Zhuhai Doumen Malt Factory
(“Doumen Malt Factory™). Pursuant to the agreement, Doumen Mal Factory will transfer Land Use
right. buildings. equipment and parts of utility supply system belonging to Doumen Malt Factory to
Doumen Company at a consideration of approximately 19,900,000. As at 30th June 2004. Doumen
Company had paid approximately 10,000,000 to Doumen Malt Factory. The payment of the remaining
balance and the relevant legal approval procedures for the transaction were still in progress.

(d) The shareholders approved the dividend distribution of year 2003 i.e. cash dividend RMB0.20 per
share in the 2003 general meeting of shareholders. This distribution had been completed as at 30th
July 2004.

42 NET PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES

(Unaudited)
Six months ended
30th June 2004

Net profit 148,250,561
Add (less): Extraordinary gains and Josses
— Losses on disposal of Jong-term cquity investments, fixed assets,

construction in progress and other long-term assets 6,620,743

— Subsidy income (29,485,149)

— Non-operating income (excluding gains on disposal of fixed assets) (2,719,134)

— Non-operating expenses (excluding Joses on disposal of fixed assets) 52,322,656
174,989,677

Tax effect on extraordinary gains and losses (10,494,145)
Net profit before extraordinary gains and losses 164,495,532

43 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain items of the comparative financial information have also been reclassified and disclosed in accordance
to the disclosure requirements in this Period.
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

(1) RETURN ON EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE INDEX

62

Group

Company

Return on equity

Earnings per share

Return on equity Earnings per share

Profit for the Fully
Period diluted
For the six months

ended 30th June

2004 (Unaudited)
Gross profit 39.12%
Operating profit 9.04%
Net profit 4.26%
Net profit before

extraordinary items 4.73%
For the six months

ended 30th June

2003 (Unaudited)
Gross profit 37.02%
Operating profit 5.94%
Net profit 3.76%
Net profit before

extraordinary items 4.04%

Weighted Fully Weighted
average diluted  average
31.92% 1.2836 1.2836

8.76 % 0.2967 0.2967
4.13% 0.1399 0.139%
4.58% 0.1552 0.1552
35.19% 1.1455 1.1455
5.65% 0.1838 0.1838
3.58% 0.1164 0.1164
3.84% 0.1249 0.1249

Fully Weighted Fully Weighted
diluted  average diluted  average
15.42% 14.95% 0.5100 0.5100

5.47% 5.30% 0.1809 0.1809
4.25% 4.12% 0.1406 0.1406
5.90% 5.72% 0.1952 0.1952
13.51% 12.84% 04224 0.4224

4.08% 3.87% (.1274 0.1274

3.58% 3.40% 0.1119 0.1119

3.67% 3.49% 0.1148 0.1148

Return on equity (“ROE”) and earnings per share (“EPS”) are calculated based on the method specified in
“Listed Companies Disclosure Regulation No. 9 — Computation and Disclosure of ROE and EPS™.
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (Cont’d)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

(2) ANALYSIS OF ASSET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

(a) Group
(Unaudited)
Beginning of (Unaudited) Write back/ (Unaudited)
Item period Additions set off End of period
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Accounts receivable 123,447,460 10.749,075 (640,695) 133,555,840
Other receivahles 54,319,553 379,324 (36,186) 54,662,891
Long-term accounts
receivable 21,191,858 — — 21,191,858
Total provision for
bad debts 198,958,871 11,128,599 (676,881) 209,410,589
Raw materials 2,805,178 183,070 — 2,988,248
Finished goods 9,049,580 — — 9.049.580
Other inventories 13,275,427 14,799,151 (213,824) 27.860,754
Total provision for
diminution of
inventories 25,130,185 14,982,271 (213,824) 39,898,582
Provision for diminution
of long-term
investments 7.054,708 — — 7,054,708
Land and buildings 32.743,534 1,256,718 (2,639,798) 31,360.454
Plant and machinery 88,910,842 45,549,226 (6,223.343) 128.236,725
Motor vehicles 3,104,074 113,552 (388,534) 2,829,092
Total provision for
impairment of fixed
assets 124,758,450 46,919,496 (9,251,675) 162,426,271
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (Cont’d)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

(2) ANALYSIS OF ASSET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (CONT’D)

(b) Company

(Unaudited)
Beginning of (Unaudited) Write back/ (Unaudited)
Item Period Additions set off End of Period
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Accounts receivable 59,874,622 2,621,375 — 62,495,997
Other receivables 32,414,087 602,340 (2,679.375) 30,337,052
Long-term accounts
receivable 21,191.858 — — 21,191,858
Total provision for
bad debts 113,480.567 3,223,713 (2,679,375) 114,024,507
Raw materials 1,022,238 — — 1,022,238
Total provision for
diminution of
inventories 1,022,238 — — 1,022,238
Provision for diminution
of long-term
investments 2,992,862 — — 2,992,862
Plant and machinery 6,884,800 -— (11,038) 6,873,762
Motor vehicles 5,950 — — 5,950
Total provision for
impairment of fixed
assets 6,890,750 — (11,038) 6,879,712
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (Cont’d)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

(3) RECONCILIATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND HK GAAP

The Group has prepared a separate set of statutory financial statements for the six months ended 30th June
2004 in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, “Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises™ and relevant regulations (“PRC GAAP”) for shareholders of A shares of the Company.

Differences between PRC GAAP and HK GAAP give rise to differences in the reported balances of assets,
liabilities and net profit of the Group. The financial effect of the material differences between PRC GAAP

and HK GAAP are summarised and explained in the following table:

Impact on the consolidated net assets:

(Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Net assets as per accounts prepared under PRC GAAP 3,477,601 3.513,503
HK GAAP adjustments:
Adjustments arising from different exchange rates used
under HK GAAP and PRC GAAP 141,253 141,253
Additional depreciation charges for assets acquired before
unification of the two-tier exchange rate system in the PRC (123,667) (117,927)
Difference between the amortisation of investment differences
under PRC GAAP and amortisation of goodwill and
negative goodwill under HK GAAP (89,050) (58.106)
Adjustments arising from adoption of HK SSAP 12 (2,530) (2,001)
Difference in accounting for the principal balance of
convertible bonds and the corresponding interest 1,212,716 938,231
Others (938) (527)
Net assets per accounts prepared under HK GAAP 4,615,385 4.414,826
Impact on the consolidated profit and loss account:
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
30th June 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Net Profit under PRC GAAP 148,251 116,403

HK GAAP adjustments:
Additional depreciation charges for assets acquired before
unification of the two-tier exchange rate system in the PRC (5,740) (5,740)
Difference between the amortization of investment differences
under PRC GAAP and amortization of goodwill and

negative goodwill under HK GAAP (5,086) (6,068)
Profited payable balances of subsidiaries 1,259 238
Adjustments arising from adoption of HK SSAP 12 (529) {393)
Difference in accounting for interest of convertible bonds 7,031 3,549
Others (412) 780

Profit attributable to shareholders under HKGAAP 144,774 108,769
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

{PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN HONG KONG)

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other expenses, net

Distribution costs

Administrative and other operating expenses
Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associated companies
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

Dividends

Basic earnings per share

Fully diluted earnings per share
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(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June

2004 2003

Note(s) RMB'000 RMB 000
3,9,28 3,872,590 3,433,162
28 (2,512,000) (2,258,495)
1,360,590 1,174,667
4,19 (56,157) (2,420)
(710,465) (624,175)
(323,608) (303,282)

4 270,360 244,790
7 (24,728) (64,530)
(4,146) (3.319)

241,486 176,941
8 (75,637) (54,616)
165,849 122,325
(21,075) (13,556)

11 144,774 108,769
10 212,000 220,000
12 RMB0.14 RMBO.11
12 RMBO.11 RMBO.10




TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2004 AND 31ST DECEMBER 2003
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN HONG KONG)

(Unaudited) (Audited)

30th June  31st December

2004 2003

Note(s) RMB’600 RMB 000

Non-current assets
intangibie assets i4 270,442 257,041
Fixed assets 13 5,427,446 5,467,547
Construction in progress 176,222 210,144
Long-term investments 27 17,862 17,930
Interest in associated companies 27 117,454 21,197
Negative goodwill 15 (95,081) (98,191)
Deferred tax assets 23 6,901 7,111
Other long-term assets 16, 28 58,695 58.826
________ 5,979,941 | 5.941,603
Current assets

Inventories 17 1,276,504 1,305,503
Short-term investment 4,530 —
Trade receivable 16, 28 228,050 165,204
Bills receivable 98,055 50,883
Deposits. prepayments and other receivables 28 637,361 527.474
Short-term bank deposits 31,024 12,016
Pledged bank deposits 22,051 83,135
Bank balances and cash 1,579,319 837.749
3,876,894 2,981,964
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2004 AND 31ST DECEMBER 2003
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN HONG KONG)

(Unaudited) (Audited)
30th June  3ist December
2004 2003
Nate(s) RMB’000 RMB000
Current liabilities
Trade payable 21,28 786,619 646,913
Current portion of long-term bank loans 18 47,020 61,386
Bills payable 22,28 496,298 525450
Accruals 243,834 67,365
Taxes payable 40,309 47,520
QOther payables 28 1,216,625 940,836
Dividends payable 10 214,876 1,100
Short-term bank loans 18, 28 1,246,665 1,302,613
Sales deposits 28 146,122 126,068
Provisions 19 51,068 —
_______ 4489436 3722251
Net current Habilites (§12ZS42_) _________ (740,287)
Total assets less current liabilities 5,367,399 5,201,318
Financed by:
Share capital 24 1,060,000 1,060,000
Convertible bonds 20 1,191,192 923,738
Reserves 25 2,364,193 2,219,088
2003 proposed final dividends 10, 25 - 212,000
Shareholder’s fund 4,615,385 4.414.826
Minority interests 551,043 579,465
Non-current liabilities
Long-term bank loans 18 46,515 53,784
Deferred liabilities 13,730 12,113
Deferred tax liability 23 16,575 17,083
Long-term loan due to a shareholder 28 124,151 124,047
__________ 200971 207,027
5,367,399 5,201,318
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004
{PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN HONG KONG)

{Unaudited)
Statutory  Statutory
Share Share  Convertibie Capital surplus public ~ Exchange Accomulated  Proposed

capital  premium bonds reserve reserve welfare fund  differences losses  dividends Total
RMBO0D  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMBY000  RMB'0O0  RMB'0D0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000

At 15t January 2004 1,060,000 2,115.258 §23,73% 12921 118,185 176,978 1 (304365 22000 4414826
Exchange differences - - - - - - 331 -~ - 31
Disidends (Nore /0) - - - - - - - — Q12,0000 (212,000)
Profit for the period - - - - - - - 144,774 - 144,774
Issuance of convertible

bond, net (Nose 20) - - 167454 - - - - - - 267454
A1 30th June 2004 1,060,000 2115258 1191192 12,921 118,183 176,978 42 (199%91) ~ 4615385
At 1t Janvary 2003 1000000 1393826 - 11,448 162,634 129,369 By N4y N0 318541
Cumulative effect of

change in acconnting policy — - — - - - — (1200 — (1.7
Al Jst January 2003, as restated 1000000 1393826 - 11448 162654 129,569 I (2336300 220000 3154206
Exchange differences - — — - - - 13§ — - 135
Dividends (Note 10) - - - - - — - — (2200000 (220,000)
Profit for the period - - — - - - - 108,769 - 108,769
[ssuance of convertible

bond, net (Noie 20) — — 935.811 - - — — - - 935,811
At 30th June 2003 1,000,000 1.893.826 933,811 11,448 161,654 129,569 44 (124861) — 4008921
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN HONG KONG)

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 851,257 686,248
Net cash outflow from investing activities (277,138) (275,797)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 155,104 (165,432
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 729,223 245019
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 849,765 762,166
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 331 135
Cash and cash equivalents at 30th June 1,579,319 1,007,320
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash 1,579,319 1,007,320

Cash and cash equivalents do not include the short-term bank deposits with maturities longer than 3 months and
other cash and bank deposits required to be placed with banks for obtaining banks drafts. As at 30th June 2004,
these short-term bank deposits and pledged cash and bank deposits are approximately RMB31,024.000 (30th
June 2003: RMB28,000,000) and RMB22,051.000 (30th June 2003: RMB35,509,000), respectively.
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN HONG KONG)

1  ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (the “Company’) was established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC™) on 16th June 1993. It obtained the business license of a sino-foreign joint stock company on
27th December 1995, Its H shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 15th July 1993 and its A shares have been listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since
27th August 1993,

On 21st October 2002, the Company signed a “Strategic Investment Agreement” with Anheuser-Busch
International Holdings, Inc. ("A-B Company”) pursuant to which the Company issued several tranches of
mandatory convertible bonds (“CB”) to A-B Company amounting to approximately HK$1,416,195,000
{equivalent to approximately RMB1,503,448,000). Upon full conversion of the CB, the equity holding of
A-B Company in the Company will increase to approximately 27%. During 2003, approximately
HKS$1,162,057.000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,233,630,000) of the CB were issued and the related
proceeds were received from A-B Company, out of which approximately HK3280,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB297,999,000) of the CB had been converted into 60,000,000 new H-shares as at 31st
December 2003, The remaining balance of the CB of approximately HKS254,138,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB269,818,000) was received on 31st March 2004, More details are set out in Note 20.
During the six months ended 30th June 2004, all the CB has been issued without any conversion of new H-
shares occurred.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
production and distribution of beer products.

Please refer to Note 27 for details of the Group and the Company’s major acquisitions during the period.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These interim consolidated accounts of the Group are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statement

of Standard Accounting Practice ("HK SSAP™) 25, “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong

Society of Accountants (“HKSA").

These accounts are unaudited, but they have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company.

These accounts should be read in conjunction with the 2003 annual accounts. The accounting policies and

methods of computation used in the preparation of these accounts are consistent with those used in the
annual accounts for the year ended 31st December 2003.
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SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The sole principal activity of the Group is the production and distribution of beer products. Accordingly,
no analysis of business segment information is provided.

The Group’s operating activities are mainly conducted in the PRC. An analysis by geographical segment is
as follows:

{Unaudited)
Six months ended 36th June 2004
Other
Tsingtao Shandong Hua Bei Hua Nan
Region Region Region Region Overseas  Eliminations  Consolidated

RMB'000 RMB 400 RMB G006 RMB 400 RMB600 RMB'900 RMB0%0

Turnover
External sales 1,073,567 471,163 974,802 1,205,720 147,338 - 3,872,590
Inter-segment sales 130,039 36,537 39,646 13,801 - {249,023 -
Turnover 1,203,606 507,700 1,034,448 1,219,521 147,338 (240,023 3,872,590
Result
Segment results 138,344 {1,210) 44,793 115,820 44,499 342,248
Unallocated expenses, net (71,888)
Operating profit 270,360
Finance costs (24,728)
Share of profits {ess losses of

associated companies (4,146) — — — N (4,146)
Profit before taxation 241.486
Taxation _ﬁﬁl_‘il
Prafit after taxation 165,849
Minority intesests (21,075
Profit attributable to shareholders 144,774
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3 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONT’D)

Turnover

External sales
Inter-segment sales

Turnover

Results

Segment results

Unallocated expenses, net

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of
associated companies

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

(Unaudited}
Six months ended 30th June 2003
Other

Tsingtao Shandong Hua Bei Hua Nan
Region Region Region Region Overseas  Eliminations  Consolidation
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000
906,244 515,752 762,219 1,020,861 228,086 - 3,433,162
98.182 — 48,361 103,388 — (250,131 —
1,004,426 515,752 810,580 1,124,449 228,086 (250.131) 3.433.162
116,192 12,646 35,639 55,346 85,930 305,773
(60.983)
244,790
(64.530)
(3.319) — — - — (3.319)
176,941
(54.616)
122.325
(13.556)
108,769
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OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Loss on disposal of fixed assets. net 6,621 4,457
Provision for/(reversal of) inventory provision 214 (1,261)
Costs of inventories (including depreciation,
amortisation and staff costs) 2,512,000 2,258,495
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 238,661 243,169
Amortisation of intangible assets
— Trademark 1,608 1,314
— Technology know-how 931 885
— Others 2,194 699
Amortisation of goodwill expenses 9,580 8,667
Amortisation of negative goodwill (5,150) (5,122)
Auditors’ remuneration 3,233 2,915
Operating lease rentals 2,364 6,941
Provision for doubtful debts 10,108 28,035
Impairment losses of fixed assets 46,920 24,002
Written down of inventories to net realisable value 14,982 2,114
Research and development costs 1,699 842
Provisions in respect of potential litigations loss 51,068 —
Staff costs (Note 5} 269,207 264,766
STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wages and salaries 201,898 189,089
Social security costs 18,575 22,278
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 44,249 50,596
Staff employment medical benefits 4,485 2,803
Total 269,207 264,766
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

{(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Directors’ emoluments
Non-executive directors
— Directors’ fee — —
— Other emoluments — —
Executive directors
— Directors’ fee — —
— Salaries. allowances and benefits-in-kind 508 142
— Retirement fund contributions 17 14
Total 525 156

Management’s emoluments

Details of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (None of them (six months ended 30th June
2003: Same) are directors or supervisory committee member of the Company) are as follows:

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June

2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind 524 349
Retirement fund contributions 21 14
Total 545 363
Supervisory committee members’ emoluments
The emoluments of the five existing and former committee members are as follows:
(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind 328 75
Retirement fund contributions 17 i4
Total 345 89

For the six months ended 30th June 2004, emoluments of each of the directors and the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, supervisory committee members and employees) were less than RMB530.000
(equivalent to HK$500,000) (For the six months ended 30th June 2003: same) and no (For the six months
ended 30th June 2003: None) director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. During the period,
no (For the six months ended 30th June 2003: No) emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No (For the six months ended
30th June 2003: No) emoluments were paid to non-executive directors.
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7 FINANCE COSTS

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’0600 RMB 000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable within 5 years 25,303 65,117
Amounts capitalised (575) (587)
Total 24,728 64,530
8 TAXATION
(a) Profits tax
(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hong Kong profits tax (i) 1,453 478
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") (ii) 74,483 54,437
Deferred taxation relating to the reversal of
temporary differences (299) (299)
75,637 54,616
Reconciliation of statutory tax rate to effective tax rate:
(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
Statutory tax rate 33% 33%
Tax effect of net income/expense that is not taxable/deductible
in determining taxable profit 4% 9%
Loss sustained by subsidiaries 9% 9%
Effect of different taxation rate of different subsidiaries of the Group 21%) (17%)
GOthers 5% (3%)
Effective tax rate 30% 31%

(i) Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the period.

(ii) EIT

EIT is provided on the estimated assessable income of the year calculated in accordance with the relevant
regulations of the PRC.

In accordance with an approval document dated 18th April 1994 issued by the State Administration for
Taxation {"SAT"} of the PRC, net profit earned by the Company is subject to EIT at 15%, effective from
the date of establishment of the Company. This rate will remain effective until and unless the EIT law
and regulations change otherwise. The Company received a confirmation from the Ministry of Finance of
Qingdao on 23rd March 1997, stating that this preferential tax treatment would not be terminated until
further notice.
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8 TAXATION (CONT'D)

(a) Profits tax (Cont’d)

(ii) EIT (Cont’d)

Tsingtao Brewery (Sanshui} Company Limited (“Sanshui Company™), Tsingtao Brewery (Chenzhou)
Company Limited (“Chenzhou Company™) and Shenzhen Tsingtao Beer Asahi Company Limited
("Shenzhen Company™) were approved as enterprises with foreign investment and therefore, they are
exempt from EIT for two years starting from the first year of profitable operations after offsetting prior
year tax losses, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three consecutive years thereafer. The current
year was the fifth profitable year for Sanshui Company, the third profitable year for Chenzhou Company
and the fourth profitable year for Shenzhen Company.

Shenzhen Tsingtao Brewery Hua Nan Sales Company Limited (“Shenzhen Sales Company™) is exempied
from EIT for the first year starting from the first year of profitable operations after offsetting prior year
tax losses. followed by a 50% reduction for the next two vears. The current year was the fourth profitable
year for Shenzhen Sales Company and EIT was provided at the prevailing full tax rate of 15% in
Shenzhen.

Tsingtao Brewery (Zhuhai) Company Limited and Tsingtao Brewery (Xiamen) Company Limited (“Xiamen
Company™) were established in the Zhuhal and Xiamen Special Economic Zones, respectively, where
they conduct their operations. Accordingly. they are subject to EIT at a reduced rate of 15%.

Other subsidiaries of the Group which are established and operating in the PRC are subject to EIT a1 a
standard rate of 33% based on their respective assessable income for the relevant period.

(b) Valne-added tax {“VAT")

()

According to “the People's Republic of China Value-added Tax Temporary Regulations” (“VAT Regulations™),
the Group is subject to output VAT which is calculated at 17% of the sales of tangible goods. The Group also
pays input VAT on its purchases of raw materials and work-in-progress which is deducted against output VAT
in arriving at the net VAT amount payable 1o the PRC Government. In addition, the Group accrues and pays
City maintenance and construction tax and educational surcharge based on 7% and 3% of net VAT amount
payable, respectively.

Consumption tax

The Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the SAT issued the “Notice for changes in consumption tax for
alcoholic products™ (Cai Shui {2001] No. 84). which states that for beer production with an ex-factory price
(including packaging materials and related deposits) of RMB3,000 or above per ton, the consumption tax is
RMB250 per ton. For all other beer production sold below that price, the consumption tax is levied at
RMB220 per ton.

9 SEASONAL/CYCLICAL REVENUE

Summer and autumn times (May to October) of each year is the peak season for beer sales. The sales
volume during the peak season is normally 1 to 2 times the sales volume of slack season (November (o
April of the following year).
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10 DIVIDENDS

11

12

78

During the period, dividends distribution of RMB212,000,000 (dividend per share: RMB0.20) for 2003 was
approved in the shareholders’ general meeting. The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of
an interim dividend for the six months ended 30th June 2004 (30th June 2003: nil).

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB 000
Dividends, paid: — 87,782
Dividends proposed:
Final dividend for 2003 of RMB0.20 per share
(2002 final dividends: RMB0.22 per share) 212,000 220,000

The final dividend for 2003 of RMBO0.20 per share was proposed on lst April 2004, As at 30th June 2004,
the respective distribution had not been completed. The final dividends of RMB0.22 per share for 2002
were proposed on 2nd April 2003 and were paid in 2003.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes profit of approximately RMB 146,639,000
(30th June 2003: RMB105,376.000) which has been dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and fully diluted earnings per share are based on the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders of approximately RMB 144,774,000 (30th June 2003: RMB108,769,000).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of 1,060,000,000 (30th June 2003:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares) ordinary shares in issue during the period. The fully diluted earnings per
share is based on 1,279,664,384 (30th June 2003: 1.097.535,912) ordinary shares which is the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in'issue during the period plus the weighted average number of
279,664,384 (30th June 2003: 97,535,912) ordinary shares deemed to be issued if all outstanding mandatory
convertible bonds had been converted into shares.
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13 FIXED ASSETS
Land use Plant and Motor Other
rights  Buildings machinery vehicles equipment Total

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000

Cost or valuation

Begining of period 647,189 2.391.588 4,602,799 413,170 230,486  8,285.232
Transfer-in from construction

in progress (unaudited) — 48,818 115,265 320 1,912 166,315
Additions (unaudited) 1,327 51,749 8.248 16.074 11.367 88,765
Disposals (unaudited) — (9.424) (28,920 (2,779) (2,022) (43,145}
End of period (unaudited) 648.516 2,482,731 4,697,392 426,785 241,743 8,497,167

Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment loss

Begining of period 110912 522,263 (,895,316 170,119 119,075 2,817,685
Charge for the period (unaudited) 5,282 32,078 164,512 18.660 18,129 238,66)
Written back on disposal

(unaudited) — (2,767) (17.116) (2,735) (1.675) (24,293)
Reversal of impairment

loss provision (unaudited) — (2.640) (6,223) (389) — (9,252)
Impairment Joss provision

(unaudited) — 1,257 45.549 114 — 46,920
End of period (unaudited) LoJlieaed 550,091 2082038 185769 135,529 3,069,721
Net book value
End of period (unaudited) 532,322 1,932,540 2.615,354 241,016 106.214 5,427,446
Begining of period 536,277 1,869,325  2,707.483 243,051 111,411 5,467,547

All the land and buildings of the Group and of the Company are located in the PRC. The useful lives of the
land use rights of the Group and the Company are 50 years.

As at 30th June 2004, approximately RMB97.527,000 of the Group’s buildings, plant and machinery,
motor vehicles and other equipment (31st December 2003: nil) had been pledged as security for certain
bank loans amounting to RMB16.000,000 of the Group (Note 18).

As at 30th June 2004, ownership certificates (“Building Ownership Certificates™) of certain buildings of
the Group with respective carrying value of approximately RMB314,790,000 (31st December 2003:
RMB356,360,000) and land use right certificates (“Land Certificates”) of certain parcels of land of the
Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB35,145,000 (31st December 2003:
RMB35,499,000) had not yet been obtained. After consultation made with the Company’s legal adviser, the
Company’s directors consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group and the Company to apply for
and obtain the Buildings Ownership Certificates and Land Certificates and there will not be any significant
adverse impact on the operations of the Group. Accordingly, no provision for fixed assets impairment was
considered necessary.

In addition. as at 30th June 2004, the operating facilities of certain subsidiaries of the Group were located
on parcels of allocated land (“Allocated Lands™) owned by certain local municipal governments. Majority
of the municipal government have agreed to process the legal title transfer, The carrying values of the
associated buildings and facilities constructed thereon were approximately RMB119,694,000 (31st December
2003: RMB136,317,000). The Company's directors consider that there is no any significant adverse impact
on the operation of the Group. Accordingly, no provision for intangible assets impairment was considered
necessary. The Group is in the process of applying for the transfer of the legal title of these Allocated
Lands to the Group.
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Technology
Goodwill Trademarks(i) know-how(ii) Others Total
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost

Begining of period 194,520 103,346 18,629 23,689 340,184
Additions (Unaudited) 18,039 424 — 9,251 27,714
Deduction (Unaudited) — — — (13) (13)
End of period (Unaudited) 212,559 103,770 18,629 32,927 367,883

Accumulated amortisation

Begining of period 43,214 26,620 8,383 4,926 83,143
Charge for the period (Unaudited) 9,580 1,608 931 2,194 14,313
Deduction (Unaudited) — — — (13) (13)
End of period (Unaudited) 52,794 28,228 9,314 7,107 97,443

Net book value

End of period {Unaudited) 159,765 75,542 9,315 25,820 270,442

Begining of periad 151,306 76,726 10,246 18,763 257,041

(i) Trademarks

Trademarks mainly include the “TSINGTAO BEER™ trademark which was injected by the founding shareholders
into the Company on 16th June 1993 as their capital contributions. The recorded value of the trademark was
assessed based on the results of a valnation approved by the State-Owned Assets Administration Bureau of the
PRC. Since then, amortisation of the trademark is provided on a straight-line basis to amortise the revalued
amount of the trademark over its estimated useful lives of 40 years.

In the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors, the above trademark is essential to the operations of the
Group and it is expected to bring enduring economic benefits to the Group and the Company continuously.
Therefore, it is amortised over a period of 40 years, which is longer than the presumed period of 20 years
prescribed by HK SSAP 29.

Other trademarks were acquired as a result of acquisitions of certain subsidiaries. The cost of these intangible
assets were determined based on their fair value at the respective dates of acquisition. They are amortised over
their estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 10 years.

(ii) Technology know-how
Technology know-how was injected by a minority shareholder of a subsidiary into that subsidiary during its
reorganisation. It was recorded at a value agreed among all the shareholders of that subsidiary and is amortised
on a straight-line basis over an expected period of inflow of economic benefits of 10 years. The cost of these

intangible assets were determined based on their fair value at the respective dates of acquisition.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the underlying value of the intangible assets as at 30th June 2004
were not less than their carrying values in the books of the Company and of the Group as at that date.
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15 NEGATIVE GOODWILL

RMB’000
Cost
Begining of period (131,390)
Additions (Unaudited) (2,040)
End of period (Unaudited) - Q?’ffz‘_‘i‘?)
Accumulated Amortisation
Begining of period 33,199
Charge for the period (Unaudited) 5,150
End of period (Unaudited) _____"_____:’{8_:;9_?
Net Book Value
End of period (Unaudited) (95,081)
Begining of period (98,191)

The negative goodwill is recognised as other revenue over the remaining weighted average useful life of
the identifiable depreciable fixed assets of the subsidiaries acquired.

16 TRADE RECEIVABLE

The ageing analysis of trade receivable is as follows:

(Unandited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Provision Balance Provision Balance
for after for after
Amount had debts provision Amount  bad debts  provision

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Less than one year 199,103 (7,933) 191,170 128,796 (2.599) 126,197
One to less than two years 33,447 (8,746) 24,701 42273 (12,592) 29.681
Two to less than three years 36,004 (33,937) 2,067 28,272 (19.312) 8,960
Over three years 93,052 (82,940) 10,112 89,311 (88,945) 366
Total 361,606  (133,556) 228,050 288.652 (123,448) 165,204

Credit is granted to customers based on specific assessment made by management on the circumstances of
each customer. Credit period granted will not be lenger than one year.

The Group and the Company make specific bad debt provisions against certain doubtful trade receivable
balances. In addition, based on past experience of the Group and conditions of individual customers, full
provision for doubtful debts is generally made for balances with outstanding balances aged over two years,
and with clear evidence indicating that they are uncollectible. For balances expecting partial settlement to
be recovered, provision is made for the estimated uncollectible portion.
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TRADE RECEIVABLE (CONT’D)

The Group and the Company reached a settlement agreement with a customer and a related company
(collectively “the Debtors™) in 2001 in connection with an aggregate outstanding receivable balance aged
over three years due from them, totaling RMB105,000,000. Pursuant to the agreement, the entire outstanding
balance will be repayable in eight annual installments, commencing from 1st January 2002. In addition,
Tsingtao Brewery Group Company also undertook to guarantee the repayment of the balance. As at 30th
June 2004, relevant provision has been accrued and amounts of approximately RMB10,000,000 and
RMB53,808,000 were recorded as trade receivable and other long-term assets on the consolidated balance
sheets, respectively.

INVENTORIES
(Unaudited)

30th June  31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Raw materials, packaging materials and auxiliary materials 1,006,445 1,036,906
Work-in-progress 174,622 128,850
Finished goods 135,336 164,877
1,316,403 1,330,633
Provision for inventories to net realisable value and obsolescences (39,899) (25,130)
Inventories, net 1,276,504 1,305,503

Approximately RMB25.500,000 (31st December 2003: RMB25,130.000) of the gross value of finished
goods of the Group were covered by full provision.

BANK LOANS
{Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
Short-term Long-term Short-term  Long-term
bank loans bank loans Total bank loans bank loans Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Repayable :
— within | year 1,246,665 47,020 1,293,685 1,302,613 61,386 1,363,999
— in the second to
fifth years inclusive — 27,734 27,734 — 34,810 34,810
— over 5 years — 18,781 18,781 — 18,974 18,974
Total 1,246,665 93,535 1,340,200 1,302,613 115,170 1,417,783

Portion due within one year  (1,246,6653) (47,020) (1,293,685) (1,302,613) (61,386) (1,363,999)

Long-term portion — 46,515 46,515 — 53,784 53,784

Pursuant to the debt restructuring agreements or acquisition agreements of certain subsidiaries, the interest
charges on the Group’s and the Company’s loans levied on approximately RMB19.234,000 (31st December
2003 : RMB49,394,000) and RMB19,234.000 (31st December 2003 : RMB44,094,000), respectively, were
waived by the lenders at no consideration. The remaining outstanding loan balance are interest bearing at
rates ranging from 4.78% to 5.31% per annum (31st December 2003: 1.63% to 6.90%).

Approximately RMB16,000,000 (31st December 2003 : RMB1,106,000) of the Group’s loans are secured
by buildings, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and other equipment with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB97,527.000 as at 30th June 2004 (31st December 2003 : secured by fixed deposit of
approximately RMB28,000,000).
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BANK LOANS (CONT’D)

Most of the bank financing of the Group is in the form of short-tcrm bank Joans. As a result. the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately RMB612.542,000 (31st December 2003: RMB740,287.000) as at
30th June 2004. The Board of Directors of the Company is confident that the Group will have sufficient
operating cash inflows and be able to renew its shori-term bank loan facilities upon maturity or to identify
new sources of financing to replace the current ones.

As at 30th June 2004, the Group had unutilised balance of approximately RMB2,075,000,000 (31st December
2003: RMB1,000,000,000) out of the available banking facilities granted from certain banks.

PROVISIONS

(Unaudited)

30th June  31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000

Potential litigation loss with Qingdao Guangming Company
("Guangming Company™) (a) 27,000 —

Potential litigation loss with Qingdao Yuanyang Xianghe

Trading Company (“Xianghe Company™) (b) 23,784 —
Others 284 —
51,068 —

(a) Pursuant to a court verdict ruled by Shandong Province Higher People’s Court (“Shandong Higher
Court™) on 2nd April 2004, the Company was required to pay Guangming Company, a distributor, in
an aggregate of approximately RMB27,000,000 as loss from breaching of a distribution contract. The
Company appealed to the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC during the legal period for appeal. As of
the date of this report, the appealing procedures were still in progress and no judgement from the
Supreme People’s Court of the PRC had been delivered. For the sake of prudence, Board of Directors
of the Company have fully accrued for RMB27,000,000 in the profit and loss account.

(b) Pursuant to a court verdict ruled by Shandong Higher Court on 19th April 2004, the Company was
required (o pay Xianghe Company, a third party, in an aggregate of approximately RMB23,784.000 as
compensation for a dispute arising from a commodity barter contract between the Company and
Xianghe Company. The Company appealed to the Shandong Higher Court during the legal period for
appeal. As of the date of this report, the appealing procedures were still in progress and no judgment
from the Shandong Higher Court had been delivered. For the sake of prudence, the Board of Directors
of the Company have fully accrued for RMB23,784,000 in the profit and loss account.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 30th June 2004, the details of CB without converted into new H shares of the Company are as
follows:

(Unaudited)

Mandatory Discounted net 30th June

Date of issune conversion date Face value present value (i) 2004
RMB 000 RMB"000 RMB’000

Ist April 2003 31st March 2010 665,562 (9.873) 655,689
21st October 2003 20th October 2010 271,444 (3.395) 268.049
31st March 2004 30th March 2011 270,275 (2,821) 267,454
1,191,192

(i} Discounted net present value represents the difference between the net present values of estimated
cash flows of expected annual interest payments payable by the Company to the bondholder, and the
expected refunds from the bondholder to be receivable by the Company upon conversion of the bonds
(assuming mandatory conversion occurs upon the expiry of the contracted conversion periods).
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D)

84

During the six months ended 30th June 2004, interest of approximately RMB14,114,000 was paid by the
Company associated with the CB.

On 21st October 2002, the Company and A-B Company entered into a Strategic Investment Agreement,
pursuant to which A-B Company undertook to subscribe for three tranches of mandatory convertible bonds
(“CB”) issued by the Company with an aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$1,416,195,000
(RMB1,503,448.,000), commencing from 2003. The CB are convertible into 308,219,178 new H Shares
issuable by the Company as follows:

Tranche 1 of the CB (“Tranche I’*)

The total subscription amount of Tranche T was HK$280,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB297.999,000) which was issued to A-B Company in April 2003. Tranche [ was converted into 60,000,000
new H shares issued by the Company at HK$4.68 (equivalent to approximately RMB4.96) per share on 2nd
July 2003. Tranche I was interest-free.

Tranche II of the CB (“Tranche II"*)

The total subscription amount of Tranche 11 was HK$627.120,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB665,813,000) which was issued to A-B Company in April 2003 concurrently with the issuance of
Tranche L. Tranche II can be converted into 134,000,000 newly issued H shares at HK$4.68 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4.96) per share within 7 years after the issuance. The CB will be automatically converted
at the end of the seven-year conversion period (“Expiry Date”) if A-B Company does not trigger the
conversion. Tranche 11 is interest-bearing at 2% per annum. A-B Company will refund all the interests
received as well as all related deductions ar withholdings associated with the interest payments made by
the Company upon conversion.

As at the date of approval of the accounts, A-B Company had not exercised its conversion right,
Tranche 111 of the CB (“Tranche I11*)

The total subscription amount of Tranche TII was HK$508,275,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMBS539.636,000) issued to A-B Company by several instalments in October 2003 and March 2004,
Tranche I can be converted into 114,219,178 newly H shares at HK$4.45 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4.72) per share within 7 years after the payment of the subscriptions. The CB will be automatically
converted at the end of the Expiry Date if A-B Company does not trigger the conversion before the Expiry
Date. Tranche 111 is interest-bearing at 2% per annum. A-B Company will refund all the interests received
as well as all related deductions or withholdings associated with the interest payments made by the
Company upon conversion.

As at the date of approval of the accounts, A-B Company had not exercised its conversion right.

Upon the conversion of each of Tranche I, Tranche II and Tranche III of the CB, the percentage shareholding
of Qingdao State-Owned Assets Administration Bureau (“Qingdao Bureau™). the existing substantial
shareholder of the Company, has decreased/will decrease from approximately 40.0% to approximately
37.7%. 33.5% and 30.6%, respectively, whereas the holding of A-B Company in the Company has increased/
will decrease from approximately 4.5% to 9.9%, 20.0% and 27.0%, respectively. The additional 7% of the
shareholding held by A-B Company after the conversion of Tranche III will be subject to a voting trust
arrangement in favour of Qingdao Bureau whereby A-B Company enjoys the economic benefits associated
with the shares but Qingdao Bureau can exercise the respective voting rights at its sole discretion.
Accordingly, Qingdac Bureau, through the trustee, will be entitled to exercise the voting rights attached to
such shareholding at general meetings of holders of state shares and PRC legal person shares and PRC
public shares or H shares class meetings of the Company.
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TRADE PAYABLE

The ageing analysis of wrade payable is as follows:

(Unaudited)

30th June  3ist December

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB'000

Less than 1 year 761,978 603,964
One to less than two years 14,268 27,342
Two to less than three years 3,911 6,159
Over three years 6,465 9,448
Total 786,619 646,913

BILLS PAYABLE

All bills payable balance of the Group and of the Company were within a six-month ageing period.
Approximately RMB22,051,000 (31st December 2003: RMBS55,135,000) of deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbit were mostly pledged for these bills.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using the
applicable principal taxation rates of entities within the Group from 15% te 33% (2003: same).

As at 30th June 2004, deferved tax assets were recognised {or temporary differences arising from fair value
adjustment on depreciation of fixed asseis acquired in business combination to the extent that realisation of
such taxes benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. In addition. the Group also had unrecognised
deferred tax assets assocjated with tax losses available to be carried forward of approximately
RMB228,586,000 (31st December 2003: RMB210.526,000) which will expire in the period of 2004-2009,
and fair value adjustment on depreciation of fixed assets of approximately RMB83.887,000 {31st December
2003: RMB96,283,000), provision for realisation and impairment losses of receivable balances, inventories
and fixed assets of approximately RMB93,848,000 {31st December 2003: RMB77,999.000) as there is no
certainty of realisation through future taxable profits.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
(i} Deferred tax assets

Fair value adjustment

Provisions on depreciation Other Total
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Joth Jone 315t December  30th June 31st December  30th June 31ut December  30th June 315t December
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

RMBY000  RMB'C00  RMBG00  RMBOOG  RMBOGR  RMBO00  RMBUOO  RMBUM

Begining of Period/year - - i 7328 - 310 (AN 12,629
Debited 10 profit and foss account - - 1210 {47 - {5,101} {210) {3.518)
End of Perind/year - -~ 6,301 71 — — 6,301 744
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23 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities
Adjustment for fair value of
depreciation
{Unaudited)
30th June  31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB 000
Begining of Period/year 17,083 18,098
Credited to profit and loss account (508) (1,013
End of Period/year 16,575 17,083
The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:
Deferred tax assets to be recovered more than 12 months 6,484 6.694
Deferred tax liabilities 1o be settled after more than 12 months 15,559 16,068
24 SHARE CAPITAL
(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
RMB’0006  Percentage (%) RMB'000  Percentage (%}
State shares 399,820 37.72% 399,820 37.72%
PRC legal person shares 53,330 5.03% 53,330 5.03%
PRC public shares (A Shares) 200,000 18.87% 200,000 18.87%
Overseas public shares (H Shares) 406,850 38.38% 406,850 38.38%
Totat 1,060,000 106.00% 1,060,000 100.00%
25 RESERVES
(i} Statutory reserves
Aceording o the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company shall set aside 10% of its net
profit after taxation under the PRC accounting standards for the statutory surplus reserve (except
where the reserve balance has reached 50% of the Company’s paid-up share capital), and it is also
obliged to appropriate funds to the statutory public welfare fund at a percentage of the net profit after
taxation determined by the directors. These reserves cannot be applied for purposes other than those
for which they are created and are not distributable as cash dividends.
The Board of Direciors have resolved that the statutory public welfare fund is to be utilised to build or
acquire capital items, such as dormitories and other facilities for the Company’s employees. However,
the fund cannot be used to pay for staff welfare expenses. Legal title to these capital items remains
with the Company.
(ii) Basis of profit distribution and appropriation
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Document Cai Huai Zi {1995] No.3!
issued by the State Ministry of Finance, appropriations to statutory surplus reserves, statutory public
welfare fund and discretionary surplus reserves should be made based on the amount of profits as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations. In accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association, the Company declares dividends based on the lower of distributable
profits as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations and those
determined in accordance wirh the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
inappropriate profit available for distribution to sharcholders as at 30th June 2004 amounted to
approximately RMB159,591.000 (31st December 2003: RMB 193,404 000).
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TRADE PAYABLE

The ageing analysis of trade payable is as follows:

(Unaudited)

30th June 3]st December

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB'000

Less than | year 761,975 603,964
One to less than two years 14,268 27.342
Two to less than three years 3,911 6.159
Over three years 6,465 9.448
Total 786,619 646,913

BILLS PAYABLE

All bills payable balance of the Group and of the Company were within a six-month ageing period.
Approximately RMB22,051,000 (31st December 2003: RMB35,135,000) of deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi were mostly pledzed for these bills.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using the
applicable principal taxation rates of entities within the Group from 5% to 33% (2003: same).

As at 30th June 2004, deferred tax assets were recognised for temporary differences arising from fair value
adjustment on depreciation of fixed assets acquired in business combination to the extent that realisation of
such taxes benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. In addition, the Group also had unrecognised
deferred tax assets associated with tax losses available to be carried forward of approximately
RMB?228,586,000 (31st December 2003: RMB210,526,000) which will expire in the period of 2004-2009,
and fair value adjustment on depreciation of fixed assets of approximately RMB83,887,000 (31st December
2003: RMB96,283,000), provision for realisation and impairment losses of receivable balances, inventories
and fixed assets of approximately RMB93,848,000 (31st December 2003: RMB77,999,000) as there is no
certainty of realisation through future taxable profits.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
(i) Deferred tax assets

Fair value adjustment

Provisions on depreciation Other Total
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited)
30th June 31st December 30t June 315t December  30th June 31st December  30th June 31st December
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

RMB006  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'009  RMB'000  RMB'ODO  RMB'000

Begining of Period/yeat - — EAN 1528 - 5.0 i 12429
Debited to profit and loss accouat - — (210) {41 - (5,101} (210 (5,518)
End of Period/vear - — 6,301 7111 - - 6,901 11
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23 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities
Adjustment for fair value of
depreciation
{Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB 000
Begining of Period/year 17,083 18,098
Credited to profit and loss account (508) (1,01%)
End of Period/year 16,575 17,083
The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:
Deferred tax assets to be recovered more than 12 months 6,484 6,694
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12 months 15,559 16,068
24 SHARE CAPITAL
(Unaudited)
30th June 2004 31st December 2003
RMB’000 Percentage (%) RMB'000  Percentage (%)
State shares 399,820 37.72% 399,820 37.72%
PRC legal person shares 53,330 5.03% 53,330 5.03%
PRC public shares (A Shares) 200,000 18.87% 200,000 18.87%
Overseas public shares (H Shares) 406,850 38.38% 406,850 38.38%
Total 1,060,000 100.00 % 1,060,000 100.00%
25 RESERVES
(i) Statutory reserves
According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company shall set aside 10% of its net
profit after taxation under the PRC accounting standards for the statutory surplus reserve (except
where the reserve balance has reached 50% of the Company’s paid-up share capital), and it is also
obliged to appropriate funds to the statutory public welfare fund at a percentage of the net profit after
taxation determined by the directors. These reserves cannot be applied for purposes other than those
for which they are created and are not distributable as cash dividends.
The Board of Directors have resolved that the statutory public welfare fund is to be utilised to build or
acquire capital items, such as dormitories and other facilities for the Company’s employees. However,
the fund cannot be used to pay for staff welfare expenses. Legal title to these capital items remains
with the Company. '
(ii) Basis of profit distribution and appropriation
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Document Cai Huai Zi [1995] No.31
issued by the State Ministry of Finance, appropriations to statutory surplus reserves, statutory public
welfare fund and discretionary surplus reserves should be made based on the amount of profits as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company declares dividends based on the lower of distributable
profits as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations and those
determined in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
inappropriate profit available for distribution to shareholders as at 30th June 2004 amounted to
approximately RMB159,591,000 (31st December 2003: RMB193,404,000).
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26 PENSIONS AND RETIREMENT FUNDS CONTRIBUTION

27

Pursuant to “the Temporary Regulations on Municipal Enterprise Employee Pensions and Retirement
Protection for Qingdao™ which has become effective since Ist October 1994, the Company has provided a
government-sponsored defined contribution retirement scheme for its full-time employees. During the six
months ended 30th June 2004, the Group's contributions were approximately RMB44,249.000 (30th June
2003: RMB50,596,000).

Tsingtao Brewery (Hong Kong) Trading Company Limited ("Hong Kong Company”). a subsidiary operating
in Hong Kong, established a defined contribution mandatory provident fund in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation of the government of Hong Kong. During the six months ended 30th June 2004,
the subsidiary made contributions of approximately HK$75,000 (equivalent to RMB79,000) (30th June
2003: HK%74,000 (equivalent to RMB78,000)). The assets of the fund are held separately from that of the
subsidiary and are managed by independeut professional fund managers.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(ay Comparing with the financial statements for the prior year, the scope of consolidation has included the
following newly established subsidiaries:

Place of
establishment  Registered
Date of and principal  and share Equity interest held
Name of new subsidiaries blishment  operation capital by the Company (%)  Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
held held
Xuzhou Pengeheng Brewery  January 2004 Xuzhou, the RMB3,000.000 —  8380%  Treding of heer
Sales Company Limited PRC :

Tsingtao Brewery (Changsha)  Janwary 2004 Changsha, the  RMB68,000,000 0%  2830%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited (1) PRC domestic trading of beer

(i) In January 2004, the Company together with Tsingtao Brewery Huanan Holding Company Limited
(“Huanan Holding Company™), a subsidiary of the Company, agreed to set up a company named
Tsingtao Brewery (Changsha) Company Limited (“Changsha” Company) with a registered capital
of RMB10,000,000. Both the Company and Huanan Hotding Company invested RMB7,000,000
and RMB3,000,000 to hold 70% and 30% of the shareholdings of Changsha Company, respectively.
In March 2004, with the approval of Board of Directors, the Company and Huanan Holding
Company injected additional capital of RMB40,600,000 and RMB17.400,000 into Changsha
Company. After this additional capital injection, the registered capital of Changsha Company was
increased from RMB10,000,000 to RMB68,000,000. The equity interests of Changsha Company
held by the Company and Huanan Holding Company remained unchanged.

(b) In current period, there were changes in equity interests of the following subsidiaries:

(i) In May 2004, the Company entered into an agresment with Sichuan Huo Ju Hua Gong Company
Limited {“Sichuan Huo Ju™), pursuant to which, the Company acquired 40% interests of Tsingtao
Brewery (Luzhou) Company Limited (“Luzhou Company”) held by Sichuan Huo Ju at a
consideration of approximately RMB34,296,000. After the transaction, the equity interests of
Luzhou Company held by the Company increased from 55% to 95%.

(i) During the current period, Hong Kong Company acquired 3% and 20% interests of Xiamen
Company held by the Company and Ou Mei Investment Company, respectively. In May 2004, the
relevant procedures have been completed. Accordingly, the equity interests 75% and 25% were
held by the Company and Hong Kong Company, respectively. In addition. the Company and Hong
Kong Company injected additional capital of RMB60,000,000 and RMB20,000,000 into Xiamen
Company, respectively, which has been approved by Xiamen Foreign Investment Bureau. The
change of business registration was completed in July 2004, After the additional capital injection,
the registered capital of Xiamen Company was increased from RMB 10,000,000 to RMB90.000.000
and there is no change in the proportion of equity interests held by the Company and Hong Kong
Company.
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27 SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D)

(¢) Huanan Holding Company, a subsidiary of the Company, acquired 30% equity interest in Nanning
Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited (“Nanning Company™) from Tailian Brewery (Cayman Islands)
Company Limited (“Tailian Brewery”). The legal procedures in relation to this acquisition were
completed in June 2004, In May 2004, Huanan Holding Company and Tailian Brewery entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, Huannan Holding Company undertook to acquire an
additional 45% equity interest from Tailian Brewery at a consideration of approximately
RMB200,880,000. As at the reporting date, the approval of the State Ministry of Business was still in
progress. After completion of above equity transfer, the equity interest indirectly held by the Company
would be increased from 30% to 75%.

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) For the six months ended 30th June 2004, the Group had the following material transactions with
related parties:

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Sales to associated compaties 83,1190 42,830
Purchases from related companies (minority shareholders of
a subsidiary, companies with the same ultimate shareholder
and an associated company) 117,984 39,767
Advertising services provided by a related company
{company with the same ultimate shareholder) — 471
Equipment and installation services provided to a related company 110 —
Equipment and installation services provided by a related company
(company with the same ultimate shareholder) 689 80
Guarantees provided by related companies for
the Group’s bank Joan 39,764 250,000

The Board of Directors of the Company are of the opinion that all above transactions were entered
into in the ordinary course of business and based on mutually agreed terms.
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

29

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

€]

As at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following significant current account balances with related
parties:

(Unaudited)
30th June  31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
Included in:
Trade receivable and other long-term assets (d}
— Related parties 103,568 100,903
Other recejvables
— Related parties 54,549 45,108
Prepayments
— Related parties 61,886 1.189
Included in:
Other payables and long-term loan due to a shareholder
— A-B Company (f} 124,151 124,047
— Other related parties 51,617 76,701
Trade payable
— Related parties 1,011 17,404
Advance
— Related parties 847 3,073
Bills payable
— Related parties 55,000 —_

Except for those mentioned in notes (d) and (f), the Group’s balances with related parties are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and with no fixed repayment terms.

Loans of the Group amounting to approximately RMB39,764,000 (31st December 2003:
RMB125,000.000) are guaranteed by Tsingtac Brewery Group Company Limited.

The Group and the Company reached a settiement agreement with a customer and a related company
in 2001 in connection with an aggregate outstanding receivable balance aged over three years due
from them, totaling RMB105,000.000 (details see also Note 16).

As at 30th June 2004, the Company had arranged advances and loans to an associated company of
approximately RMB56,450.000 (31st December 2003: RMB66.,450,000) through entrustment loan
arrangements made with banks in the PRC. All these loans are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
with maturity within one year.

In October 2003, Hong Kong Company entered into a loan agreement with A-B Company, pursuant to
which, Hong Kong Company borrowed a loan of US$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB124,151,000) (the “Loan”) from A-B Company. The Loan is interest bearing at 1% per annum,
unsecured and repayable within five years. The Company has undertaken to guarantee the repayment
of the Loan.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Pursuant to certain policies for housing reform issued by the State Council and Qingdao Municipal
Government in 1998, the policy of allocating staff quarters as staff housing welfare of the employees was
terminated. In replacement, qualified employees are to be compensated in the form of monetary housing
subsidies (“Housing reform”). As at 30th June 2004, no formal plan has yet been developed by the Group
and the Company and no plans had been developed by the Group and the Company to their employees in
respect of the arrangements. After secking a legal advice, the Company’s Board of Directors is of the
opinion that the Group and the Company had no obligation to make any payment or provision for such
monetary housing subsidies as at 30th June 2004 and there is no reasonable basis to accrue for any
potential liabilities.
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30 COMMITMENTS

Saved as disclosed in other notes to accounts, as at 30th June 2004, the Group had the following
commitments:

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had no capital commitments which were authorised but not contracted and provided for as
at 30th June 2004,

The Group’s capital commitments which were contracted but not provided for are as follows:

(Unaudited)

30th June  31st December

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB 000

Construction projects 29,422 33,301
Investments and acquisitions 9,900 9,950
Total 39,322 43,251

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 30th June 2004, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases of land and buildings as follows:

(Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
Not later than one year 2,130 —

In 2003, Tsingtao Brewery (Xi’an) Company Limited (*Xi'an Company”), a subsidiary of the Company,
and Shanxi Baoji Brewery Company Limited (“Baoji Brewery Company”) entered into a lease agreement,
pursuant to which Baoji Brewery Company leases all its operating fixed assets and seconds its employees
to Tsingtao Brewery (Baoji) Company Limited (“Tsingtao Brewery Baoji”), jointly set up by the
Company and Xi'an Company, for beer production business, and Baoji Brewery Company bears all the
operating costs relating to the leased assets and employees.

In May 2004, Tsingtao Brewery Baoji and Shanxi Baoji Alcohol factory (“Baoji Alcohol™), the biggest
shareholder of Baoji Brewery Company, entered into a lease agreement, pursuant to which Baoji
Alcohol leases its buildings, land and equipment to Tsingtao Brewery Baoji, in return, Tsingtao
Brewery Baoji undertakes to utilise Baoji Alcohol’s personnel in its operations and bear the relevant
staff costs. Xi’an Company is also committed to bear the related operating costs of Tsingtac Brewery
Baoji.

31 SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(2) In November 2003, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement (the “Transfer Agreement’)
with Canada EVG Enterprises Inc. (“EVG™), pursuant to which EVG will acquire 25% equity interest
in Beijing Tsingtao Brewery Three Ring Company (“Three Ring Company”) owned by the Company.
In February 2004. the Company signed another agreement with EVG to cancel the Transfer Agreement.
The Company and Hong Kong Company instead reached an equity transfer agreement in which the
Company will transfer its 25% equity interest in Three Ring Company to Hong Kong Company at a
consideration of US$850,000. This transaction in relation to the change of foreign equity interests has
been approved by the government authorities in July 2004. After the transaction, the Company and
Hong Kong Company will hold 29% and 25% equity interests of Three Ring Company, respectively.
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31 SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONT’D)

()

©)

(d)

In May and June 2004, the Company entered into an investment agreement and a supplementary
agreement with Gansu Nongken Brewery Company Limited (“Gansu Nongken™) and its shareholders
that the registered capital of Gansu Nongken is increascd. The Company would inject an amount of
approximately RMB60,481,000 into Gansu Nongken and hold 50% of its equity interests. The change
of business registration relating to the increase of the registered capital was completed in July 2004.
Gansu Nongken was also renamed as Tsingtao Brewery (Gansu) Company Limited.

In December 2003, Tsingtao Brewery (Doumen) Melt Company Limited ("Doumen Company™). a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an asset transfer agreement with Zhuhai Doumen Malt Factory
(“Doumen Malt Factory™). Pursuant to the agreement, Doumen Malt Factory will transfer Land Use
right, buildings, equipment and parts of utility supply system belonging to Doumen Malt Factory to
Doumen Company at a consideration of approximately RMB19,900,000. As at 30th June 2004, Doumen
Company had paid approximately RMB10,000,000 to Doumen Malt Factory. The payment of the
remaining balance and the relevant fegal approval procedures for the transaction were still in progress.

The shareholders approved the dividend distribution of year 2003 i.e. cash dividend RMBO0.20 per

share in the 2003 general meeting of shareholders. This distribution had been completed as at 30th
July 2004.

On behalf of the Board
Li Gni Rong

Director

Qingdao, the PRC
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TSINIGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

RECONCILIATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PRC GAAP AND HK GAAP

The Group has prepared a separate set of statutory accounts for the six months ended 30th June 2004 in
accordance with “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”, “"Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises” and relevant regulations (“"PRC GAAP”) for shareholders of A shares of the Company.

Differences between PRC GAAP and HK GAAP give rise to differences in the reported balances of assets,
liabilities and net profit of the Group. The financial effect of the material differences between PRC GAAP and

HK GAAP are summarised and explained in the following table:

Impact on the consolidated net assets:

Net assets as per accounts prepared under PRC GAAP
HK GAAP adjustments:

Adjustments arising from different exchange rates used under HK
GAAP and PRC GAAP

Additional depreciation charges for assets acquired before
unification of the two-tier exchange rate system in the PRC

Difference between the amortisation of investment differences under
PRC GAAP and amortisation of goodwill and negative goodwill
under HK GAAP

Adjustments arising from the adoption of HK SSAP 12

Difference in accounting for the principal balance of
convertible bonds and the corresponding interest

Others

Net assets per accounts prepared under HK GAAP

Impact on the consolidated profit and loss account:

Net Profit under PRC GAAP
HK GAAP adjustments:

Additional depreciation charges for assets acquired before
unification of the two-tier exchange rate system in the PRC

Difference between the amortization of investment differences
under PRC GAAP and amortization of goodwill and negative
goodwill under HK GAAP

Waiver of liabilities of certain subsidiaries

Adjustments arising from adoption of HK SSAP 12

Difference in accounting for interest of convertible bonds

Others

Profit attributable to shareholders under HK GAAP

(Unaudited)
30th June 31st December
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000
3,477,601 3,513.903
141,253 141,253
(123,667) (117,927)
(89,050) (58.106)
(2,530 (2,001)
1,212,716 938,231
(938) (527)
4,615,385 4.414,826
(Unaudited)

Six months ended 30th June
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB’000
148,251 116,403
(5,740) (5,740)
(5,086) (6.068)
1,259 238
(529) (393)
7,031 3.549
(412) 780
144,774 108,769
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONS REVIEW FOR THE FIRST HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of 2004, with the steady growth of the domestic economy and the better environment for
growth of consuming market, the total beer output of the country has reached 140.8 million hl with 18.64%
y-0-y growth.

Due to the price inflations in raw materials, energy and transportation costs in the first half year, the
domestic brewers are all facing more pressure than before. Under this disadvantageous condition, with the
core strategy of “Quality, Synergy, Efficiency and Credibility” regulated at the beginning of the year, the
Company adopted various kinds of effective measures timely and realised continuous growth in beer
output, sales income and profit.

The total output and sales volume of the Company in the first half was 18.77 million hl with 14% y-o-y
growth. The Company promoted brand structure and product structure adjustment and enhanced marketing
of high and medium end products and realized initial effect: Tsingtao. the principal brand, had 5.7 million
hl sales volume with 13% y-o-y growth; the principal brand and the secondary brands including Laoshan
represented 58% of the total sales volume with 4% y-o-y growth; which greatly increased the gross profit
margin of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s overall planning of brand development, the Company had gradually
promoted and adopted new Tsingtao Beer logo domestically in the first half of the year, which energized
the centennial brand and promoted the products” modernization image. Taking advantage of the promotion
of new logo and new products, the Company accelerated the consolidation progress and the sales volume of
high and medium end brands were continuously increased in high-speed rather than being decreased with
the price raised.

Facing the new competition conditions of the beer industry in the first half, the Company focused mainly
on internal consolidation. The Company enhanced the development of basement markets, improved logistics
through adopting modern ERP management system, enhanced controls on various expenses by optimizing
procedures and strengthening management and enhanced synergy effect, thus offset the rising pressure on
production costs effectively.

The total export amount in the first half was 270 thousand hl with 42% decrease, which was mainly caused
by Taiwan market due to the reason as is known to all. while there was over 10% growth in the export to
European districts and other near ocean areas.

USE OF PROCEEDS

In 2001, the Company raised RMB787 million by issuing 100 million additional A shares. Till the end of
the reporting period, except the draft beer project in Xi’an has not been started yet due to the local market
prospect, the other projects invested with the capital raised by additional issuance of A shares have been
completed and begun io bring about profit. The remaining RMB121.15 million is temporarily used as the
Company’s cash flow,

BUSINESS OUTLOOK FOR THE SECOND HALF OF THE YEAR

The joining of foreign brewers in large scale will intensify the competition in domestic beer market in the
second half of the year. The Company will continue to execute effective management measures to enhance
adjustment strength of brand structure and promote the Company’s profitability while keeping rapid growth
in total sales volume. The Company is quite confident in realizing the target of 36 million sales volume in
the year.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1. DIVIDENDS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of the Association, the Company does not recommend
the payment of interim dividend for the 6 months ended 30th June 2004.

2. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS OR ARBITRATIONS DURING THE REPORT PERIOD

(1} The case of Guangming General Company suing the Company for the breach of distribution contract
as disclosed in the Company’s 2001 Annual Report was ruled in the first trial by Shandong Province
Higher People’s Court (“Shandong Higher Court™) on 2nd April 2004, and the Company received the
written judgment on 12th April 2004. The Company appealed to the Supreme Court of the P.R.C
during the legal appealing duration and received the written notice of acceptance from “Shandong
Higher Court™ on 23rd June 2004. The Company is waiting for the written notice of a trial from the
Supreme people’s court of the P.R.C till the end of the reporting period.

(2) The Company received a written final judgment on 8th May 2004 made finally by “Shandong Higher
Court” on 19th April 2004 in relation to the Company’s barter contract disputation with Qingdac Yuan
Yang Xiang He Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd (“Xianghe Company™), pursuant to which, the Company
had to pay in an aggregate amount of RMB23.78 million to “Xianghe Company” as compensation for
commodity and gunny bag money. The Company has submitted its appeal request to “Shandong
Higher Court” and the appealing procedures are currently in progress.

(3) The Company has appealed to “Shandong Higher Court” against its second verdict on the Company’s
litigation with Qingdao Hong long Trading Co., Ltd and “Shandong Higher Court™ placed the case on
file for retrial. The case is still in retrial procedures till the end of reporting period.

3. ACQUISITIONS & MERGERS AND ASSETS RECONSTRUCTION DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(1) The RMB60 million and RMB20 million additional investment on Tsingtao Brewery (Xia’men) Company
Limited ("Xia’men Company”) made respectively by the Company and Tsingtao Beer (Hong Kong)
Trading Company Limited ("Tsingtao Beer Hong Kong Company™) as disclosed in the Company’s
2004 First Quarter Result Report was approved by Xia’men Foreign Investment Bureau, and the
change of industrial and commercial registration was finished on 5th July 2004, Currently, the registered
capital of “Xia’men Company” is RMB90 million, of which the Company holds 75% and “Tsingtao
Beer Hong Kong Company” holds 25%.

(2) On 2nd March 2004, upon the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, the Company and
Shenzhen Tsingtao Beer Huanan Investment Company Limited (“Huanan Investment”) injected
respectively additional RMB40.6 million and RMB17.4 million on Tsingtao Brewery (Changsha)
Company Limited (“Changsha Company”), pursuant to which the registered capital of “Changsha
Company” was increased from 10 million to 68 million while the Company still holds 70% and
“Huanan Investment” holds 30% equity of it. The additional injection has been finished till the end of
the reporting period.

(3) On 9th May 2004, the Company signed a “Equity Transfer Agreement” with Sichuan Huoju Chemical
Group Company Limited (“Sichuan Huoju™), pursuant to which the Company will acquire 40% stakes
of “Sichuan Huoju™ in an aggregate of RMB34.3 million depending on equity transfer calculation
basis of the 40% net assets value of Tsingtao Brewery (Luzhou) Company Limited (“Luzhou Company™)
audited on 31st December 2003. Upon the close of equity transfer, the Company and “Sichuan Huoju”
hold respectively 95% and 5% equity of “Luzhou Company™.

(4) On 14th May 2004, under the precondition of considering the Company’s strategic development
requirement in Guangxi market and the assets quality of Nanning Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited
(“Nanning Company™) and etc. , “Huanan Investment” and Tailian Brewing (Cayman Island) Company
Limited (“Tailian Brewing”) signed a “Equity Transfer Agreement”, pursuant to which, “Huanan
Investment” will acquire 45% equity of "Nanning Company” transferred from “Tailian Brewing™ in an
aggregate of RMB200.88 million. The above equity transfer js in the procedure of waiting for the
approval of ministry of commerce of P.R.C. till the end of the reporting period. Upon the close of
equity transfer, “Huanan Investment™ will hold 75% equity of “Nanning Company” and “Tailian
Brewing” will hold the remaining 25%.
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(5) Respectively on 20th May and 16th June 2004, the Company signed a “Additional injection and Equity
Transfer Agreement” and a “Supplementary Agreement” with Gansu Nongken Beer Company Limited
(“Nongken Beer”), pursuant to which and depending on net asset value of “Nongken Beer” confirmed
by the auditing report made on 31st December 2003, the Company injected RMB60.4808 million into
“Nongken Beer” and thus holds 50% stakes of it. The procedures for the above additional injection
and equity transfer have been finished and the Company name of “Nongken Beer” was changed to
Tsingtao Brewery {Gansu) Nongken Company Limited. “Nongken Beer” owns two factories in Gansu
Province with total annual output capacity of 2 million hl.

On 31st March 2004, the Company issued the 2nd Sub-tranche of Tranche 111 Convertible Bonds in an
aggregate of HK$254,137,671 to Anheuser-Bush, which was remitted to the specified account of the
Company in the same day. After this, the Company has issued all the Convertible Bonds in accordance with
the “Strategic Investment Agreement” signed on 21st October 2002.

On 20th January 2003, Tsingtao Brewery Xi'an Company Limited (“Xi’an Company™) , a subsidiary of the
Company. and Shanxi Baoji Beer Company Limited (“Baopi Company”) entered into an Tenancy Agreement,
pursuant to which, Tsingtao Brewery Baoji Beer Company Limited (*“Tsingtao Baoji”), jointly established
by the Company and “Xi’an Company™, leased all the assets other than the current assets of “Baopi
Company”. On 29th May 2004, “Tsingtac Baoji” and Shanxi Province Baoji Alcohol Factory, the first
shareholder of “Baopi Company”. entered into an Tenancy Agreement, pursuant to which, Tsingtao Baoji
will rent the houses, land, equipment and cther assets of Baoji Alcoho] Factory for operation at equal value
exchange of using staffs of “Baoji Alcohol Factory™ and bearing related operation cost of them. Through
renting the assets of Baoji Alcohol Factory. the management efficiency of “Tsingtao Baoji” will be improved
and the operation will be ensured effectively,

During the reporting period. neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the listed shares of the Company.
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

1 CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

No changes in the equity of the Company occurred during the reporting period

2 SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS

D

(2)

3)

No changes happened on the Company’s equity held by the Company’s Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Managements in the reporting period.

H share

As at 30th June 2004, none of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Managements of the Company
has any interests and short positions in the H shares, underlying H shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance)
which was recorded in the register required to be kept under section 332 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.

For the latest disclosure of interests filing for the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Managements of
the Company. please refer to the “Disclosure of Interests” section at the Stock Exchange's website at
www.hkex.com.hk.

Directors and Supervisors’ Interests

None of the Directors, Supervisors and major management personnel had interests in any contracts
entered into with the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the reporting period.

3 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

(D

The top 10 shareholders of the Company at the end of the reporting period

Increase

and decrease

Atend of  Percentage to (shares) in

Type period total share the reporting

Name of Share (shares) capital (%) period
Office of Qingdao State-owned Assets

Administration Bureau A 399.820,000 31.72 0

HKSCC Nominees Limited H 294,535,180 27.79 553,800

Anheuser-Busch Companies Inc. H 105,000,000 9.91 0

Oriental Asset Management Company of PR.C A 29,250,000 2.76 —

Construction Bank of China, Qingdao Branch A 19,080.000 1.80 —

E Fund Stable Growth Fund A 9,745,225 0.92 —

Shanghai Shenneng Biology

Technique Company Limited A 6,922,213 0.65 —
Tonggian Fund A 5.986,058 0.56 —
Qingdao Huaging Financial

Service Company Limited A 5.000,000 0.47
Yuyuan Security Investment Fund A 4,745,432 0.45 —
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The above informations for the top 10 shareholders of the Company were listed in accordance with the
List of Shareholders supplied by China Security Registrars Limited Shanghai Branch and Hongkong
Security Registrars Limited as at 30th June 2004. Saved as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2004.,
none of the shareholders registered in the Company had 5% or over 5% listed shares of the Company.

(2) Save as disclosed below, the Directors of the Company are not aware of any persons (other than a
Director or Supervisor or chief executive of the Company or his/her respective associate(s)) who, as at
30th June 2004, had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which was recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:—

Name Nature

Qingdao State-Owned
Assets Administration
Office

Long Position

Long Position

Unlisted , physically
seitled derivatives
{mandatory
convertible bonds)

Anhesser-Busch
Companies, Inc.

Long Position

Unlisted . physically
setiled derivatives
{mandatory
convertible bond)

Long Position

Franklin Resources, Inc, Long Position

Government of Siegapore
Investment Corporation
Ple Lid

Long Position

The Capital Group
Companies, Inc,

Long position

Class of

Shares

A shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

A shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

Capacity
Beneficial

Inierests of persons
acting in concert

Interests of persons
acting in concert

Corporate

Corporate

Interests of persons

acting in concert

Corporate

N/A

Corporate/Investment
Manager

Note

N/A

Number of  entire
sharesfunderlying  issued afl issued
shares  capital H shares
399820000 37.72% NIA
A shares
105.000000  991%  2581%
H shares
8219178 A% 61U
underlying H shares
103.000.000  991%  25.81%
H shares
A8200.07 4% 6601%

underlying H shares

199,820,000 31.12% NA
A shares
2438000 2.29%  5.96%
H shares
36.658.000  3.46%  9.01%
H shares
33608000  317%  8.26%
H shares
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Noves:

(1}

Qingdao State-Owned Assets Administration Office ("QSOAAO") was interested in the above 399,820.000 A
shares. Pursuant to an undertaking agreement between QSOAAOQ and Anheuser-Busch Companies, Ine. ("A-
B") dated 21st October 2002, which constitutes a section 317 agreement under the SFO, QSOAAO was
deemed to be interested in the H shares and the relevant underlying H shares in which A-B was interesred, and
A-B was deemed to be interested (n the A shares in which QSOAAQ was interested.

Pursuant to the Strategic Investment Agreement between the Company and A-B, A-B had directly or through a
nominee subscribed 3 tranches of mandatory convertible bonds convertible ro 308,219,178 H shares. The first
tranche of the convertible bonds was converted into 60,000,000 shares on 2nd July 2003.

23,388,000 H shares were deemed 1o be interested by Franklin Resources, Inc. through wholly-conirolled
corporations.

33,608,000 H shares were deemed to be interested by The Capital Group Companies, Inc. through wholly-
controlled corporations.

For the larest disclosure of interests filings for the Company's substantial shareholders, please refer to the
“Disclosure of Interests” section ar the Stock Exchange’'s web-site at www.hkex.com. hk.
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o ur BEST PRACTICE

The Company had complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of HKEx during the reporting period.

AUDITING AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE

The Auditing and Financial Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company had reviewed the un-audired
2004 interim report of the Company.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

1.

~

A copy of the interim report as duly signed by the Chairman of the Company.

Accounting statements as duly signed and stamped by legal representative, financial managers and accounting
managers.

Original copies of documents and announcements of the Company disclosed in newspapers designated by
China Securities Regulatory Commission during the reporting period.

Qingdao, PR.C.

11th August 2004
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Official name of the Company:
Name in English:

Stock Listing of the Company:
A Share:

Stock code:

H Share:

Stock code:

Registered Address:
Office Address:

Postecode:
Website:
E-Mail:

Legal representative:

Secretary of the Board:
Securities Affairs Representative:
Telephone:

Fax:

E-Mail:

Designated newspapers for
information disclosure:

Website for Interim Report:
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TSINGTAO BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED

Shanghai Securities and Stock Exchange :
600600: Stock name in short: ¥ & 8 (Tsingtao Beer)
Houng Kang Stock Exchange

0168; Stock name in short: & & 1 i (Tsingtao Beer)

No.36, Dengzhou Road, Qingdao, Shandong Province, PR.C

Tsingtao Beer Tower, May Fourth Square, Hong Kong Road,
Central, Qingdao, Shandong Province, P.R.C

266071

www.isingtao.com.cn

info@tsingtao.com.cn

Li Gui Rong

Yuan Lu

Zhang Rut Xiang
86-532-571383]
86-332-5713240

secretary @isingtao.com.cn

“China Securities Post”; “Shanghai Securities Post™,
Hong Kong, “Wen Wei Po”; “The Standard”
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